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CORPORATE INFORMATION
TXEH

PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
STOCK CODE

3315

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LING Wai Lim (re-designated from non-executive Director with
effect from 15 March 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. LIU John Jianhua
Ms. YE Lu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman)
Mr. LIU John Jianhua
Ms. YE Lu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
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Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. LIU John Jianhua

Ms. YE Lu

LEGAL ADVISOR

Mayer Brown

16th—19th Floors, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. LI Yijin
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LU Run Ting
Ms. LI Yijin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Deutsche Bank AG, Filiale Hong Kong
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
TEER @)

REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Room 1301

13th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Center

No. 56 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.goldpac.com

INVESTOR RELATION

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

04 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2018

AMNEE  ARRESEN
FEEEME,

BB

{52
HELITE56%
R iRT
PR
13/81301%

EEROBEETER
BRRBMETE

BEBRSEELARAT
BFAEERABRI183I
AR 221E
NETE S

www.goldpac.com

REEBE

B : goldpac@goldpac.com



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

3.5;@
=
og‘ﬂﬂt
o £
<}
SE

Turnover RMB1,411 Million +0.7%
S AR®14.11 B o
2
. 2 o
Net Profit* RMB175 Million 6.2% 258
EZIRE . AR 1.75 5t [ =
o RMB254-Million ) R
EBITDA ’ﬂrﬁéﬂuﬁi +3.5% E_g
Platform and %8
Service
Segment 2 E
A TR IR 5% : %ﬁ
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS 4h&¥4& g .
For the year ended 23%
31 December Eom
BE12AMBLEEE 2R
2017 Change =
RMB’000 #1t S
ARBTT AgH
2Ex
Turnover SR 1,411,127 1,400,842 +0.7% £ ?W,z@
S3m
=W
Profit for the year attributable to RAEHE AEG 175,187 164,477 +6.5% °
owners of the Company FE ) 5 ol
£ ¥
o g
Gross Profit Margin ESVIES 27.6% 29.8% -2.2PPS e58
ERr
Net Profit Margin FHE 12.4% 11.7% +0.7PPS L @
BO% S af
N s
FINANCIAL POSITIONS 81 # k% §
At 31 December . %m
M12A31H E5M
- 2018 2017 Change -
RMB’000 #1 B
ARETTT “EW
Total assets wEE 2,628,452 2,706,875 -2.9% £
Total liabilities wafE (648,369) (776,992) -16.6% S
boF
g
Net assets FEE 1,980,083 1,929,883 +2.6% o
* Profit for the year * FEME -
xk EBITDA equals to profit before taxation plus interest expense, *x EBITDAZS AR RTFLE A B2 H « ITEMEmAL SR o

depreciation and amortisation of intangible assets.
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2018 MAJOR EVENTS
2018 £ RERE

INNOVATION DRIVEN BY TECHNOLOGIES
P BRE) Bl FT 3 R

KE2018F 2B [ XABETR/NHEKRARKE]
Recognized as “Most Valuable small and Mid-Cap Company” at the
Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards 2018

ICMA 2018 &IEAREE ]
Honored with the
2018 ICMA “People’s Choice Award”

IR ERERF B HEMVE @
World's First EMV Product Based on China Chip

BFEAEMRERE RIS IRFEXEMREZIREERED S0 EE
Goldpac Cooperated with Guoxin Micro to Promote China’s Outsourcing
Industry in Financial Services and Accelerate to the High-end in the
Global Value Chain

BFEARETHIEXRAERS - RESRE
KRR EZ A ER

Goldpac Joined Hands with CEC Huada Electronic
to Promote the Deep Integration of the Industrial
Chain and the Application of Fintech in a Wider
Range of Fields

06 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Goldpac Honored with the

“Most Influential Enterprise Award” and
the "Most Competitive Product Award” at
the 16th China International Software and
Information Service Fair

WM BB ORI R L IER S T

Construction Begins at the Newly Commissioned Zhuhai Fintech Center

2018 B RISINME AR
Top 100 of 2018 Service Outsourcing
Enterprises in China

THEBRLADRHPENMN - mBEHRRIER
B I &&ZHW—RINE

Goldpac Wins Tender for A.l. Self-service Kiosk of
Hangzhou and Nantong Citizen Card issuance, the
Win is a Further Step Towards “One-Stop Shop”
Government Services

ERE D REAR TEIAR
2018 Intelligent Manufacturing Pilot Enterprise
in Guangdong Province

SHEHABZERERAT —2-NF58 07



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FEHRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITREHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of
Goldpac Group Limited (the “Company”), | am
delighted to present the Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

10 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2018
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

As one of the earliest financial technology (“Fintech”) companies
in China, the Group is committed in empowering the business
growth of the financial institutions such as banks with innovative
technologies. Despite various challenges, the implementation
of the Group’s well-defined corporate strategies provided
the Group with stable and sound development. In 2018, the
turnover was approximately RMB1,411 million and the net profit
was approximately RMB175 million, representing an increase
of approximately 0.7% and 6.2% as compared with last year
respectively.

With a rapid growth in various credit card products and through the
Group’s continued efforts to improve the product portfolio and to
advance high value fashionable products, the pressure from market
price decline was alleviated. The platform and service business
segment made great strides and has become a new growth area
with a turnover of approximately RMB301 million, representing
an increase of approximately 19.9% as compared with last year,
the ratio of this segment to the total turnover was uplifted by 3.4
percentage points year-on-year to 21.3%.

The Group has already paid an interim dividend of HK4.0 cents
per ordinary share for 2018. The Board proposed to declare a final
dividend of HK10.0 cents and a special dividend of HK6.0 cents
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018. If this
proposal is approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the total amount of dividend
declared for the year of 2018 would be HK20.0 cents and the
dividend payout ratio would be approximately 81.7%. The total
amount of dividend declared since IPO in 2013 will be approximately
HKD723 million (equivalent to approximately RMB605 million)

The Group’s financial position remains strong with an aggregate
amount of bank balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged
bank deposits reaching approximately RMB1,337 million. The
Group's stable cash flows combined with a strong financial position
provides the Group with a great flexibility in funding its innovation,
overseas expansion and the construction of Zhuhai Fintech Center.

Looking forward into 2019, the Group remains cautious but fully
confident. The Group will focus on technology-driven innovation
and development, harness the historical opportunities presented by
the cooperation in the Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater
Bay Area, step up the structural adjustment and the shift of old and
new growth drivers, so as to achieve the phased goal of innovative
business development.

FREMRE @\

EATHEERFHN B R((€mitE )t
¥ —  AEBERORERBIF RN ARTT
LoRBBERE  DISREEERNE -
2018F - REEBRAEZE - BEASKEE
TENITELEEIRS 2 FHRESEERHNARKE
141187 - REEBEL0.7%  FFBLHA
R¥1.7587m  ALERLD6.2% @ RIFE
fREER o

2018%F - AEBEEMGHIFEENL - KN
PREERHER  EAFEMRFREE
’ R AAEBGTE T THER THEDY
BH o FaMRBIRBIET REMNES -
THREATHERE  SEEEBOAR
¥3.011870 ' FAILIER19.9% @ ERE X
R R EA3AEBE D2 E21.3% °

AEBEEERE2018FH AR EFIREER
B4 - EEEEEAMELLE2018F12
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A K2 45 B RE BB 56,01l » &t EH AR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FEHREE)

The rapid development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area will provide new opportunities and growth areas
for the Group. The Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area was released in February 2019,
which is regarded as an important outline document guiding the
current and future cooperation and development of the Greater Bay
Area. The plan calls for the joint efforts to build a smart city cluster
and advance smart public platform with unified standards and open
interfaces so as to promote high-level interconnectivities of the
Greater Bay Area.

Headquartered in the core region of the Greater Bay Area, the
Group is committed to pursuing the integration and advancing
the interconnectivities through technologies so that the
transportation and social welfare systems could be seamlessly
connected and integrated in the Greater Bay Area. The Group
has been collaborating with parties in realization of constructing
smart transportation system and promoting the application and
integration of frontier technologies of Internet of Things (loT), cloud
computing and big data analyzing in the sector of transportation
related areas. In the future, the Group will continue its efforts in
a number of sectors such as social security, welfare, and business
travelling.

The structural transformation of the Chinese economy has
presented the future featuring intelligence and unmanned service
for the sectors of governmental, public and financial services. The
“One Stop Shop” reform advocated by the Chinese government
to facilitate the government service has created huge demand
for artificial intelligence (A.l.) self-service kiosks in the sectors of
finance and social security. The demands for kiosks in the next five
years are expected to be numerous.

The Group has a strong capability in software system development.
The Group's proprietary A.l. self-service card-issuing and card-
receipt kiosks provide powerful hardware and software supports
for intelligent network construction and renovation of provincial/
municipal social security authorities and commercial banks. The A.l.
self-service kiosks independently developed by the Group have won
bids for several citizen card projects, and were also well-received at
a number of international fairs.

12 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

China, as the leader in the global smart secure payment sector, is
fully capable of introducing its advanced standards, technologies,
experiences, and products to other countries and regions. In 2019,
the Group’s overseas market expansion will be reaching out to
more countries and regions around the world. The Group will
build greater synergies with China UnionPay’s global strategy and
promote China’s proven standards, services and technologies.
The Group will adopt the strategy of “Product + Service” total
solutions to penetrate into overseas governments, transportation,
entertainment, insurance, education, property and other fields, in
order to strive for breakthroughs in key indicators such as turnover
growth and market share in 2019.

The Group firmly upholds the vision of technology-driven innovation
and development. The research and development (R&D) expenses
maintain a continuous growth since IPO in 2013. In 2018, it grew
to approximately RMB114 million, representing an increase of
approximately 4.4% as compared with last year.

In October 2018, Goldpac Fintech Innovation Hub was officially
named “Zhuhai Fintech Center” by Zhuhai Municipal Government
and the construction has been officially started with the aim of
exploring new horizons and eco-system for Fintech innovation in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. It is expected to
be completed in 2020 and intended to be the center of excellence
in three major areas of science and technological innovation, data
security and privacy protection with environmentally ergonomic
design. The center is designed to be a catchment for innovative
ideas, attract companies, capital, projects and talents within the
Greater Bay Area to foster new growth drivers in the areas of A.l,
smart payment, chips, loT and cloud computing.

Last but not least, | would like to extend my sincere appreciation to
all of our committed team members who firmly uphold the vision
of technology-driven innovation and development and concentrate
in creating value for the clients, so as to ensure the Group's
sustainable growth.

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As one of the earliest Fintech companies in China, the Group
is committed to empowering the business growth of financial
institutions, such as banks, with innovative technologies. The
Group fully implemented its well-defined corporate strategy and
maintained a stable and sound growth in 2018. Both turnover and
net profit increased as compared with last year.

2018 Review — Stable and Sound Development

Despite various challenges, the implementation of the Group’s
well-defined corporate strategies provided the Group with a stable
and sound development. In 2018, the turnover was recorded at
approximately RMB1,411 million, representing an increase of
approximately 0.7% as compared with last year.

The shift of growth drivers between the two business segments
is gathering momentum. Adversely impacted by the decline of
market price, the embedded software and secure payment products
segment achieved a turnover of approximately RMB1,110 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.4% as compared with
last year. However, the Group was still ranked first in the Chinese
financial cards market in terms of market share with rapid growth
in the sales volume of credit card products. Through the Group’s
continued efforts to improve the product portfolio and to advance
high value fashionable products, the pressure from market price
decline was alleviated.

The platform and service business segment made great strides and
has become a new growth area. With a turnover of approximately
RMB301 million, representing an increase of approximately 19.9%
as compared with last year, the ratio of this segment to the total
turnover was uplifted by 3.4 percentage points year-on-year to
21.3%.

In 2018, the gross profit declined by approximately 6.5% as
compared with last year to approximately RMB390 million. The
gross margin decreased by 2 percentage points year-on-year to
27.6%. The gross margin for the embedded software and secure
payment products segment was recorded at approximately 24.5%
while that of the platform and service segment was recorded at
approximately 39.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR D@

R&D expenses continued to grow to approximately RMB114
million in 2018, representing an increase of approximately 4.4% as
compared with last year. R&D efforts were focused in the areas of
secure chips, solutions, as well as software and hardware for A.l.
self-service kiosks. Through effective cost control management,
selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses were
totalled to approximately RMB144 million and remained at the same
level as compared with last year.

The net profit increased by approximately 6.2% to RMB175 million
as compared with last year. This increase included an exchange gain
caused by factors such as USD-RMB appreciation of approximately
RMB23.1 million.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB8.6 cents) per ordinary share
(HK10.0 cents in 2017) and a special dividend of HK6.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB5.1 cents) per ordinary share
(HK6.0 cents in 2017) for the year ended 31 December 2018. If
this proposal is approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the dividend payout
ratio for the year of 2018 would be approximately 81.7%, and
the total amount of dividend declared since IPO in 2013 would
be approximately HKD723 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB605 million).

Market Analysis and Outlook

In 2018, the Chinese economy advanced its transformation from
high-speed to high-quality growth. Through great efforts to correct
financial irregularities, regulatory reinforcement of the financial
industry has become apparent in China. Banks are pursuing profit
growth through quality improvement rather than quantity chasing.
This has led to an enhancement in detail-oriented management and
a reduction of extensive card issuance.

During this transition period, the banking card is getting closely
intermingled with various sectors and its application scenarios have
been continuously broadened. According to the Payment System
Report for the first three quarters of 2018 issued by the People’s
Bank of China, the banking card transaction amount has surged to
a new historical high of RMB651.6 trillion, representing an increase
of 15.3% as compared with the corresponding period in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In particular, the credit card sector grew rapidly and gradually
occupied a dominant position in personal consumption finance, that
can hardly be challenged by emerging payment methods. The credit
card number per capita in China has nearly doubled from 0.25 in
2012 t0 0.47 in 2018.

The rapid development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area will provide new opportunities and growth areas
for the Group. The QOutline Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area was released in February 2019
and is regarded as an important outline document guiding the
current and future cooperation and development of the Greater
Bay Area. The plan calls for joint efforts to build a smart city cluster
and advance smart public platform with unified standards and open
interfaces so as to promote high-level interconnectivity within the
Greater Bay Area.

Headquartered in the core region of the Greater Bay Area, the
Group is committed to pursuing integration and advancing
interconnectivity through technology so that the transportation and
social welfare systems can be seamlessly connected and integrated
in the Greater Bay Area. The Group has been collaborating with
parties on the realization of construction for a smart transportation
system and the promotion of application and integration of frontier
technologies like the 10T, cloud computing and big data analysis in
transportation related sectors. In the future, the Group will continue
its efforts in a number of sectors such as social security, welfare and
business travel. The Group will surely benefit from the numerous
opportunities presented by the cross-border integration in the
Greater Bay Area.

The structural transformation of the Chinese economy has
presented a future featuring intelligent and unmanned services for
the government affairs, public services and financial services sectors.
The “One Stop Shop” reform designed to facilitate government
services by the Chinese government has created a huge demand for
A.l. self-service kiosks in the sectors of finance and social security.
The demands for kiosks in the next five years are expected to be
numerous.

China, as a leader in the global smart secure payment sector, is
fully capable of introducing its advanced standards, technologies,
experience and products to other countries and regions. The
potential for overseas market is huge and pending to be explored.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DT @E

2019 - Technology-driven Innovation and
Development

In 2019, the Group will uphold its vision of technology-driven
innovation and development, and continue to implement its key
strategies of strengthening core advantages, expanding overseas
market coverage, and diversifying its business segments, so as to
further speed up the structural adjustment and the alternation of
old and new growth drivers, thereby achieving its phased goal of
innovative business development.

Strengthening the Core Advantages -
Following Trends in Banking Card Upgrades

The banking card in China is expected to be upgraded. On the
one hand, the banking card product structure is being upgraded.
Despite the gradually weakened demand for basic banking card
products, fashionable products with innovative materials, trendy
design and advanced functions specific for targeted market
segments, are becoming more popular. These new types of products
have strong market demand and can create greater value for banks.
On the other hand, banking cards will also embrace the future
of digitization, networking and interactivity on the back of the
traditional business model and open up new prospects through the
integration of big data analysis and the intelligent supply chain.

The Group will continue to step up its innovations in banking card
products. Firstly, the Group will consistently pursue creative design
and introduce more fashion elements to maintain its industry
leadership position. Secondly, more innovative functions will be
integrated in order to launch the AR (Augmented Reality) card,
CVV (Card Verification Value) card, LED card, voice card and next
generation fingerprint card among others. Furthermore, the Group
will explore and search for innovative materials, including metals
and new compounds, in order to deliver more environmentally
friendly and fashionable products that are capable of versatile
functions. The innovation in banking card products will also enable
the Group to reinforce its core competitive advantages and maintain
its reasonable profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group will also provide more value-added services for banks
through the innovative smart card supply chain management
system. Based on the well-established digital operation platform,
the Group will continue to improve its automation processes,
including intelligent warehousing, intelligent logistics and intelligent
scheduling, so as to establish a flexible, safe and efficient mass
customization operation system. At the same time, the Group will
become increasingly interdependent and integrated with banks
through its use of open interfaces.

Expanding Overseas Markets

In 2018, the Group further improved its human resources structure
for the overseas market. With the joining of experienced managers
with rich expertise in overseas market operations, the Group has
stepped up exploration in several overseas markets, including
Singapore, the Philippines, Australia and Vietnam, as well as the
Middle East and Africa, to promote the Group’s various smart secure
payment products and solutions to banks and governments.

Through the efforts of the overseas marketing team, the Group’s
smart secure payment products and solutions are well-received.
The Group will continue investing resources and consolidating its
overseas businesses, in order to strive for breakthroughs in key
indicators such as turnover growth and market share in 2019.

In 2019, the Group's overseas market expansion will be reaching
out to more countries and regions around the world. The Group will
continue to follow China UnionPay’s global strategy and promote
China’s proven standards, services and technologies. The Group
will adopt the strategy of “Product + Service” total solutions to
penetrate into international sectors such as overseas governments,
transportation, entertainment, insurance, education and property.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBNWR D@

Diversified Expansion

The Group will pursue its consistent vision of technology-driven
innovation and development and focus on its diversified expansion
in the following three areas:

20

A.l. self-service kiosks represent the future of technological
innovation and development and are also in line with the
Chinese government’s “One Stop Shop” reform to facilitate
government services. In a wide range of sectors such as
finance, social security, medical care and public services, A.l.
self-service kiosks are urgently demanded and have already
been introduced in some regions and fields. The Group's
proprietary A.l. self-service kiosks have won bids for several
citizen card projects and were also well-received at a number
of international fairs.

Leveraging its strong capability in software system
development, the Group’s A.l. self-service card-issuing and
card-receipt kiosks, featuring ease-to-access, integrated and
scenario-based, adopt technologies like biometrics, facial
recognition, and natural language processing, so as to meet
the needs of different industries, scenarios and customers. The
kiosks provide powerful hardware and software support for
intelligent network construction and renovation for provincial/
municipal social security authorities and commercial banks.

The Group is endeavoring to open up the internet-based
business model on the basis of the traditional banking card
business, to embrace the future of digitization, networking
and interactivity. In 2019, the Group will strive for progress
in this area through new cooperation model and resource
integration.

2019 may be the first year of 5G commercialization.
Capitalizing on its strengths in secure encryption
authentication, the Group will prioritize its R&D in the area of
loT to seek for new business opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In October 2018, Goldpac Fintech Innovation Hub was officially
named “Zhuhai Fintech Center” by Zhuhai Municipal Government
and the construction has been officially commenced. With the aim
of exploring new horizons for Fintech innovation in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, it is expected to be completed
in 2020. As the center of excellence in technology innovation,
data security and privacy protection and given an environmentally
ergonomic design, it is expected to be a catchment area for
innovative ideas, attract companies, capital, projects and talents
within the Greater Bay Area to form an eco-system and foster new
growth drivers in the areas of A.l.,, smart payment, chips, loT and
cloud computing.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to 31 December 2018, no material events have
occurred.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 22 May 2019, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 May 2019. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 17 May 2019
to Wednesday, 22 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June 2019. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
10 June 2019 to Wednesday, 12 June 2019, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject
to shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 22 May
2019, the dividends will be paid on Friday, 28 June 2019 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 12 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DT @E

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from
the global offering of approximately RMB975.0 million (after
deducting underwriting commissions and related expenses). As at
31 December 2018, the Company utilized approximately RMB800.0
million for the purposes of production capacity expansion,
innovative product and service research and development,
investment in associates and acquisition, market expansion
outside of China, working capital supplementation and other
general corporate purposes. The balances of the net proceeds
were deposited in banking account. The Company has utilized
and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant to the purposes and the
proportions as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 22
November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEBERTWR D@

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial 72018 12A318 * MR AR EEMER
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2018 is  TEF A RASAGBE L ST T ¢
set out below:

= S
Utilized Unutilized E%%
amount amount e
as at 31 as at 31 2.
December December ugijﬁ
% of net Net 2018 2018 ¥
proceeds proceeds 20185 20185 %é
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HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
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R&D of new products and services — Ff & 37 T M AR IS 35.0% 341,113 341,113 - §_§§
Expansion to production facilities, — IBFREERE - ARK éﬁé
upgrades and other improvements ~ EREE£ER §* 55{;
to existing card production and BIRRIER G g
data processing facilities 35.0% 341,113 232,144 108,969 5
Financing future strategic TR ARREEFHRRMETER % é;‘ﬁl
alliances with complementary BBMEmTES 5 SR
companies 10.0% 97,461 32,120 65,341 25k
Further strengthening presence AT EARKEM s ™
in existing markets outside BI([ B ])5Esh % o
the People’s Republic of China REMSHEEERTY ‘é‘;%ﬁ
(the "PRC") 10.0% 97,461 97,461 - < 0
Working capital and other general & EES N g
corporate purposes EE—RAFRR 10.0% 97,461 97,461 - :
Total At 100.0% 974,609 800,299 174,310 [
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR D@

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the daily operations and
working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.
By assuming a conservative financial management attitude, the
Group continued to maintain the healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,337.4 million (2017: approximately
RMB1,617.0 million), of which approximately RMB942.7 million
(2017: approximately RMB781.7 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 70.5%, and approximately RMB394.7
million (2017: approximately RMB835.3 million) was denominated
in USD and HKD, etc., representing approximately 29.5%.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s at financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) was RMB232.6 million, which was
the structured deposits represented principal-guaranteed financial
products issued by banks, among which approximately RMB61.0
million was in China Construction Bank, RMB60.0 million was
in Ping An Bank, RMB51.5 million was in China CITIC Bank and
RMB60.2 million was in Agricultural Bank of China (2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group had no
bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB413.8 million (2017: approximately RMB417.7
million). It is the industry practice that settlement of trade
receivables peaks around the end of year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total current assets amounted
to approximately RMB2,000.1 million (2017: approximately
RMB2,196.9 million), representing a decrease of approximately
9.0% compared with that of the previous year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current ratio was 3.2 (2017:
approximately 2.9), representing a high liquidity.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio (the gearing
ratio is equivalent to total debt divided by total assets as at the
end of the year) was approximately 24.7% (2017: approximately
28.7%).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the Group’s sales were mainly
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the operating expenses
and purchases were mainly denominated in RMB with portions
in USD and HKD. The Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the fluctuation of foreign currency rates.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’'s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB43.1 million. (2017:
approximately RMB213.0 million). The capital expenditure includes
expenses in fixed assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December
2018 was approximately RMB18.0 million (2017: approximately
RMB14.8 million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, bank deposits of approximately RMB165.6
million (2017: approximately RMB111.3 million) were pledged to
secure the bills payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEN R D (&)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s purchasing
volume from Gemalto N.V. ("“Gemalto”) amounted to
approximately RMB93.6 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 59.1%. The Group is highly committed
in self-driven R&D. The Group has launched proprietary embedded
chip operating system to diversify its chip supplies and the
purchasing volume of continuing connected transactions has
decreased.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group plans to utilize its own funds of approximately RMB167.9
million for the purpose of construction of Zhuhai Fintech Center
during 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of environmental
and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's
environmental, social and governance (“ESG"”) management
team had managed, monitored, recommended and reported
on environmental and social aspects. An ESG report is prepared
with reference to Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
(Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide) and will be
published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
encourages its employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers and provides
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
continued and sustainable development.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,735 employees (as at
31 December 2017: 1,731), with an increase of 4 employees as
compared with that as at 31 December 2017.

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important assets.
In addition to offering competitive remuneration and welfare
packages, the Group is also committed to providing specialized and
challenging career development and training programs. Generally,
a salary review is conducted annually. The Group also adopted the
Pre-IPO share option scheme, the share option scheme and the
share award scheme to motivate prospective employees. Apart
from basic remuneration, for employees in the Mainland China,
the Group makes contributions towards employee mandatory
social security, pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and medical and unemployment insurance in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations of the Mainland China.
The Group also provides full coverage of housing provident fund
contributions as required by local regulations in the Mainland China.
For overseas employees, the Group also make contributions towards
relevant insurance scheme as required by the local regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
BEENSREEE (&)

DIRECTORS

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including six executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The

X

following table sets forth certain information relating to the =& :

Directors:
Name Age
a4 FiR

Position in the Group

SEE%

EFEeRNRESAN  BREABHTE
B ZRBEUNITES - UTRBREE

Executive Directors

BITES

LU Run Ting 64
EEE

HOU Ping 58
& ¥

LU Runyi 61
EEfe

LU Xiaozhong 50
ENE

WU Sigiang 46
RER

LING Wai Lim (Note) 32
ERR (A1)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFBTES

MAK Wing Sum Alvin 66
BKTR

LIU John Jianhua 68
Bl

YE Lu 56
%

Note: Mr. LING Wai Lim was re-designated from non-executive Director to executive B BEERSGAERN201943 A15H MIESTE S F/E

Director with effect from 15 March 2019.

Chairman & Executive Director
FRERATES
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

BITEERERATE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President
BITESE R REEE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President
WITEE RS REEER

Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
BITEERERERTE

Executive Director

HITES

Independent Non-executive Director
BIIEHITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BIUIFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director

BURAITEF

RYPTES »
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Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (EBZE) (“Chairman Lu"), aged 64, is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and the
founder of the Group. He was first appointed as Director on 10
December 2004 and was designated as an executive Director
with effect from 15 November 2013. Chairman LU is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of the Group. He has over 25 years
of experience in financial card industry and was honored as the
finalist award of CNBC Asia Business Leaders Award in October
2015. Chairman LU has been the Chairman of the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries, Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited and Goldpac Limited (formerly named as
“Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited”) since 2011 and also has
been a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited (formerly named
as "“Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private Limited”), the Company’s
subsidiary, from 2016 to July 2018, and has been the director
of Goldpac Investment Limited, the Company’s subsidiary, since
2016, and has been the director of Goldpac Innovation Limited, the
Company'’s subsidiary, since 2018. He was the managing Director
and a Director of the Group from 2004 to 2011 and also served
as the vice Chairman and president of both Goldpac Datacard
Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited from 2000 to 2011
and 1995 to 2011 respectively.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman LU
had interest in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"),
the Company’s controlling shareholder and Director since 1993.
Chairman LU also served as various management positions at the
subsidiaries of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior
to the establishment of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as
the chairman of GIHL. Chairman LU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL. Chairman
LU is the elder brother of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director
of the Company, and is the father of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an
executive Director of the Company.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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Mr. HOU Ping (&%), aged 58, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August
2011, and was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years
of experience in the banking industry, including over 20 years of
experience in the card industry. He has been a Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has also served
as a director of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and
Goldpac Limited, since 2011. He has also served as directors of four
subsidiaries of the Company, a director of Goldpac Fintech Private
Limited since 2016, and a director of Goldpac Technology Service
Limited (Hengqin), SecureTech Holdings Limited and Goldpac
Fintech Hong Kong Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries, since 2018.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre
from 2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of
China group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC
Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to
2004. Mr. HOU served as an independent non-executive director
of the Huijin Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300561) from November
2016 to January 2019. Mr. HOU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
December 2003. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi (E818), aged 61, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 25 years
of experience in the security payment industry. He has been a senior
vice president of the Group since 2004 and has also been a director
of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac
Limited since 2011. He currently also serves as a director of GIHL,
and has also served as a director of Goldpac Technology Service
Limited (Henggin) since 2018. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director
of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.
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Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Mr. LU Run Ting, who is
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and is
the uncle of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (E /&), aged 50, is an executive Director and
a senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director on 21 May 2013, and was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
corporate business, quality and security department of the Group.
Mr. LU has approximately 25 years of experience in the security
payment industry. He has been the senior vice president, general
manager of the corporate business management department and
chief officer of the information security of Goldpac Limited since
2012. Since 2011 to 2014, he acted as the director of Goldpac
Limited and Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited. He also
served various management positions at Goldpac Limited from
1995 to 2012. Mr. LU had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU has been an external expert consultant of China UnionPay
since 2010. He served as a member of the Economic Crime
Consultancy expert team of the Zhuhai Police Bureau. Through
these appointments, he has accumulated relevant experience
in compliance, quality control and confidential information
management and intellectual property right of customers. Mr. LU
graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University. (/83 @A Z)
with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Polymer Materials in July
1990 and received a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006.

Mr. WU Siqiang (R 23%), aged 46, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall operation
of the Group. Mr. WU was designated as an executive Director
with effect from 18 May 2017, he has approximately 20 years of
experience in the security payment industry. Mr. WU was a manager
of the production division, vice general manager of the operation
division, general manger of the production management division of
Goldpac Limited from 2001 to 2011 successively and has been the
chief operating officer of Goldpac Limited since 2011. Mr. WU also
served as a manager of the procurement division of Goldpac Limited
since 2004, and has also served as a director of Goldpac Technology
Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018. Mr. WU had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University (5
MW EBR) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology (&=
T 2K with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July 1993.

Mr. LING Wai Lim (EE ) (formerly known as Mr. Wai Lim (& 5k)
and Mr. LING Wai Lim (ZEBR)), aged 32, joined the Company as
non-executive Director on 18 May 2017. He was designated as an
executive Director with effect from 15 March 2019, and has served
as a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin)
since 2018. Mr. LING has over 10 years of experience in biomedical
research and research project management. Mr. LING served as a
project analyst, a project manager and the senior scientific advisor,
respectively, of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited
(Stock Code: 8158), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from June
2015 to December 2018. Mr. LING served as a research assistant
of The University of Hong Kong, Department of Paediatrics and
Adolescent Medicine, from December 2010 to May 2012. Mr. LING
had not been a Director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong
or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LING received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology) from
The University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy in
Microbiology from The University of Hong Kong in 2010, and also
the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of
Hong Kong in 2015.

Mr. LING is the son of Mr. LU Run Ting, who is the Chairman of
the Board, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. He is also the
nephew of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior
vice president of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z k%) (also known as Mr. MAK Wing
Sum), aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined
the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MAK is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hong Kong Television Network Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), I.T Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 999), Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 590), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1125) and Crystal International
Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 2232). At the same time, as a member of Hong Kong
Housing Society, Mr. Mak has been selected as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, and also the member of the Supervisory Board,
Remuneration Committee and Special Committee on Investment.
Mr. MAK, after working in Citibank for over 26 years, went into
his retirement in April 2012. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various
senior positions, managing the regional global asset management
business and financial control for North Asia, he last served as the
Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed
herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (2|3 %), aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013,
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. LIU has been the chairman of the Academy of International
Transport of the City University of Hong Kong since 2012. Mr.
LIU served as the director of the Center for Transport, Trade and
Financial Studies and the visiting professor at the department of
management science of the City University of Hong Kong since
2011 to December 2015 and 2016 respectively. Mr. LIU has been
a visiting professor of Faculty of Business Administration of Beijing
Institute of Technology, Zhuhai since 1 January 2017.

Mr. LIU received a Master in Engineering degree in March 1982
from Huazhong Engineering University (224 T2f5%) (now known as
Huazhong University of Science & Technology (2R fH¥ K £2)). He
received a Master of Science degree major in Engineering-Economic
Systems from Stanford University in the United States in June 1983
and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Industrial Engineering from
Pennsylvania State University in August 1986 in the United States.
Mr. LIU had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Ms. YE Lu (¥3%), aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood
Mallesons in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Ms. YE is a member of the Council of the London
Court of International Arbitration, and an arbitrator of American
Arbitration Association, China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission and Hong Kong International Arbitration
Center and Singapore International Arbitration Center. Prior to
2004, Ms. YE was a consultant and worked for an international law
firm for 9 years, and was a lawyer and a partner in two other Beijing
law firms for 6 years.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of Peking
University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws from the
Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in June 1986,
and also received the Master of Laws from the Harvard Law School
in June 1994. Ms. YE was admitted as lawyer in the PRC and New
York State in 1988 and 1999 respectively. Ms. YE had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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Name Gender Age Position
HE 14 5l FiR %

LI Yijin Female 48

F o L°8

LI Jun Male 57

FE 5 BRERME

Ms. LI Yijin (Z25#), aged 48, is the chief financial officer of
the Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily
responsible for the management of the accounting and finance
department of the Group. Ms. LI has approximately 25 years of
experience in the accounting and financial reporting matters. She
was the financial controller of the Group from 2004 to 2012 and
has been the chief financial officer of the Group since 2012.

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in
November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified Public
Accountants) Australia since October 2004 and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had
not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LI Jun (ZE), aged 57, is the chief technology officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the technical solutions department and
R&D department of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 20 years
of experience in the technology related industry. He has been the
chief technology officer of the Company since January 2013. He has
also been the chief technology officer of both Goldpac Limited and
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited since January 2013.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
BEMBERARME
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient
GmbH as engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 served as the
Director for security equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China)
Information Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications (1t R E5 T £63) with
a degree in radio communication and received a master degree
in engineering from Universitat-Gesamthochschule Paderborn in
Germany and a master certificate in project management from the
George Washington University through its program in Beijing in July
1983, June 1997 and May 2005 respectively. Mr. LI had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z=253), aged 48, is the company secretary of the
Group, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no changes in
information of Directors required to be disclosed for the year
ended 31 December 2018 pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules
Governing the Listing Rules.
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The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group is specialised in
delivering embedded software, secure payment products and A.l.
financial self-service kiosks for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide date processing, system platforms
and other total solutions for customers in a wide business range
including finance, government, healthcare, transportation and
retails. The Group is the exclusive secure payment products supplier
in the PRC, which is certified by all six of the world-leading credit
card organisations of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American
Express, JCB and Diners Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier, the
Group is actively involved in drafting and formulating of industrial
standards and criterion. To drive the innovation by customers’
diversified demands and evolving front-line technologies, the
Group watches the cutting-edge technologies trends with the
closest interests, covering internet banking, mobile payment,
loT, to reinforce the Group’s leading industrial position and
boost the whole industry’s evolution. Motivated by the strong
R&D aptitudes and affluent practical experiences, the Group was
actively involved in numerous significant industrial events and
projects, including China’s secure and reliable financial IC card chip
promotion project, the first EMV (Europay, MasterCard and VISA)
projects in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, the first provincial
social security card project, the first financial social security card
project, the first citizen card project and the first healthcare card
project in the Mainland China. Adhering to the spirit of “Virtue,
Innovative, Efficiency and Cooperation” and leveraging its leading
technologies, preeminent qualities and premium service, the
Group is fully engaged in promoting a wider and in-depth Fintech
application. At the same time, inspired by the Chinese government'’s
"Belt and Road” initiative, the Group is now continuously
expanding its international market and extending its superior
solutions and services to a wider geographical area and delivering
convenient, secure and easy payment experiences to people around
the globe.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2018 are set out

in the Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 202 to
page 207 of this Annual Report.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income on pages 126 and 127 of this Annual
Report.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2017: HK10.0 cents) and a special
dividend of HK6.0 cents (2017: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 has been proposed by
the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2018, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 14 to page 27 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 22 May 2019, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 May 2019. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 17 May 2019
to Wednesday, 22 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June 2019. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
10 June 2019 to Wednesday, 12 June 2019, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject
to shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 22 May
2019, the dividends will be paid on Friday, 28 June 2019 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 12 June 2019.

EESHRE @R

FENKRE 2K

KEBPEZE2018F12A31BIL 2 FEE
EEHRAFERF126 R 127THEABHRLE
HEERARR -

EEeREBEHZE2018F 128318 2FE
IR REARE B MR T R ARE R 10.01U(2017
FEABE10.01L) - LARERIIREEEE.0
1L(2017F E BER6.01L) -

RERR

FNAEE2018FEAMKERIR - FEH
TERERE  MHBMRARARAEENEE
EBBEANTWmESTHNAFREI14RE
F27EN [BIEB W IO IH

TEMERNBFECTFE

ABEERRBELFILMR20196F5 5228
(EH=)RTBEAFASLEE - 1B
BERSERABREAER2019F5816H
(EHM) T OEE =+ 208 » REAQEZ
BROBFELESEEFEFZRLERAA i
ItAEBERABERISIFEAMBPLN22E o
AREHR2019F5 8178 (E28H)E2019
FS5ANB(EHZ)  BREEEMK =
WEROBEELTFE -

AETHREGRERNNZZZRPBRER
BARE  FTEBFREEREBHEREER
BH2019F6 A6 B (BEHM) THFNE=1+5
Al REARB 2N ELREEEFHFERT
BRAR i AFEBE2FRERI18IRE
MA L0221 « R AAFER2019F6 A10H
(EH—)Z2019F6 A 12H(EH=) - 817
BREMX HEHERMDBFERTFE - F
MR2019F5 822 B (EH =) 82T 2 REEAF
A FERGHEER - ERREER2019F
6H28HB (28 A)IKE T1K2019F6712H
(EHZ ) SR RHERB R ARRBRES
2B -

SHEHABZRERAT —-NFFH 39

Corporate
Information
EER

Highlights
HRHE

Financial

2018 FRER

2018 Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement
EEHRE

D

and Analysis
BE B

EBREERE

Management

BEER

Directors and Senior [ Management Discussion

i
o
©
v
=
fa)

EEEHRE

—
°
2
o
Q
7]

<

Corporate Governance
Report
EEREE

CHERER

Environmental,
Social and Governance

=i

Financial Statements
B|E



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i) The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry and
trends

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production and data processing
of financial cards. The consumer financial services industry
is characterised by rapid launches of new products and
services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards, such as the Group’s
customers, may face difficulty in anticipating changes in
consumer tastes, preferences and requirements and designing
financial products to meet such changes, which could lead to
a lower demand for financial cards and in turn decrease these
organisations’ demand for the products and services, which
may adversely affect the financial results of the Group.

(ii) As a supplier to financial institutions and
government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions providers, which the Group must satisfy
in order to be eligible to supply products and services to
these customers. For example, as required by the Group’s
financial institution customers, the Group has obtained

40 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

certifications from all six of the leading worldwide payment
card organisations (VISA, MasterCard, American Express,
China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club) with respect to the
Group's card manufacturing and personalisation services. To
maintain such certifications, the Group is subject to rigorous
periodic audits by these payment card organisations to review
the Group's compliance with their standards and criteria.
The Group makes significant investments in order to meet
these standards and criteria, which vary depending on the
organisation or body, including investments required to satisfy
changes adopted from time to time by these organisations
and bodies in their respective standards and criteria. Further
investments to meet these standards and criteria may be
costly, and if the Group is unable to continue to meet these
standards and criteria, the Group may become ineligible to
provide products and services that have constituted in the past
an important part of the Group’s revenue and profitability.

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will not
produce the same or similar products or products of a better
quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services at the
same or lower prices than the prices at which the Group’s
products and services are provided.
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The Group’s competitors may also react more quickly to new
or emerging technologies or changes in customer preferences.
In addition, the Group may face greater than expected
downward pricing pressure as a result of possible price
competition by competitors seeking to stimulate demand in
order to maintain or increase market share. Such competition
could adversely affect the Group’s results of operations and
business prospects. Any adverse changes in the Group’s
competitive environment could cause a reduction in the sales
quantity, its market share, or the sales price of its products,
which would lower the Group’s profitability. As a supplier
to the major financial institutions in China, the Group’s
performance and profitability may be adversely affected if
its customers, when faced with operational difficulties and
decreasing profit margins, seek to demand more favourable
trading terms from the Group in relation to price and credit
period. The Group’s performance and profitability will also be
adversely affected if any of its customers faces cost control or
cash flow problems due to such operational difficulties.

(iv) Fluctuations in consumer spending and

financial services in the PRC may affect
the Group’s business and financial
performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy.
The Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy
will continue to grow at historical rates, or at all, and any
slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy or consumer
spending or consumer banking may adversely affect the
Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(v) Adverse changes in China’'s economic,

political and social conditions as well
as laws and government policies, may
adversely affect the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in China differ
from those in more developed countries in many respects,
including structure, government involvement, level of
development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange,
capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation
and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform
and opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a
planned economy. In recent years, the PRC government has
been reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform and measures emphasising the utilisation
of market forces in the development of the PRC economy
in the past three decades. These reforms have resulted in
significant economic growth and social prospects. Economic
reform measures, however, may be adjusted, modified or
applied inconsistently from industry to industry or across
different regions of the country. The Group cannot predict
whether the resulting changes will have any adverse effect
on the Group’s current or future business, financial condition
or results of operations. Despite these economic reforms and
measures, the PRC government continues to play a significant
role in regulating industrial development, allocation of natural
and other resources, production, pricing and management
of currency, and there can be no assurance that the PRC
government will continue to pursue a policy of economic
reform or that the direction of reform will continue to be
market friendly.

(v) FE&E - Boa

BEEEHRE (@)

BRI
IS 9; &ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]’f’ﬂ%
By AEBEAER -

\717']'%% %‘é“%%ﬁ*ﬂiﬂ’ﬁ

FEIAOE - BUR RALE R B B
BXREFZTEAEMTRE - 21528
B BF2EREE - BFRAKFE - HEE
EHEETH  BEXABERE BR
D BRERE S FEEHMKR - £
—NENFRERB A - FREEE
BET AT o MR - B BUT T Ef
PR B A A RS AN R 2R o Bl
wmeERE=TZFR  FREFE
B e 4T 2R B AN HE B DA 98 5 AE AR B 4K
EHEREPERMENE - BENRE
EEPEALEERMTERNG
REEZF - A - LBEREIE i A 86
e HETRMITESKE AT R H R
MmaAE « BRI TT - NEBE®ETE
BIIEREEE A EBEIRA SRR E
% R EEESTERD

NEE BEBERASEERNERE
o PEBRNESEEXER AR

,QJEZiﬁtﬁJQJE ol AEE EER

ERERBTENEBHEEEAE

i 2% 5= B SOA R 78 b B BT & AR
TRBERERR - T TERERET
ﬁ%%@ﬁm%ﬁﬂ

SHAERBRMERAT —T-NEEHR 43

Financial Corporate
2018 FRER Information

2018 Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Directors and Senior [ Management Discussion

B 2
o
£t
99
&2
2a

Environmental, Corporate Governance
Report

Social and Governance

Financial Statements
BIHRE

Highlights
HRHE

and Analysis
BE B

Management

953

EER

ETERE

D

EBREERE

&

EEEHRE

EEREE

CHERER

5

b

B



The Group’s ability to successfully expand its business
operations in the PRC depends on a number of factors,
including macro-economic and other market conditions, and
credit availability from lending institutions. Stricter credit or
lending policies in the PRC may affect the Group’s customers’
consumer credit or consumer banking business, and may
also affect the Group’s ability to obtain external financing,
which may reduce its ability to implement its expansion
strategies. The Group cannot assure that the PRC government
will not implement any additional measures to tighten
credit or lending standards, or that, if any such measure is
implemented, it will not adversely affect the Group’s future
results of operations or profitability. Demand for the Group’s
goods and services and its business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected by the
following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;

. changes in laws, regulations, and administrative
directives or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation
or deflation; and

o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are
beyond the Group’s control.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(vi) The Group's business may be adversely

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group face competition from new payment technologies,
which could reduce the demand for financial cards as a
payment method. If there are any new payment technologies
which will reduce the demand for financial card products
or other new products the Group may introduce from time
to time, including new products arising from the Group’s
research and development activities, the Group may
experience material and adverse effects on its business,
financial condition and results of operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. The Group provides pre-employment and
on-the-job training and development opportunities to its
staff members. The training programs cover areas such
as managerial skills, innovative technologies, sales and
production, customer services, quality control, workplace
ethics and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.
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(ii)

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, for all employees in the Mainland China,
the Group provides employee mandatory social security funds,
pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance,
medical and employment insurance, and full coverage of
housing provident fund contributions in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations of the Mainland China.
For overseas employees, the Group also makes contributions
towards relevant insurance schemes required by the local
regulations. Meanwhile the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Scheme to recognize and motivate the contribution of the
employees and attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group. As at 31
December 2018, no shares have been granted or agreed to be
granted to any selected participants (2017:10,374,000 shares)
of the Share Award Scheme.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics.
The Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track record,
experience, financial strength, reputation, products qualities
and quality control effectiveness. The Group also requires its
suppliers to comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy.

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its diversified
clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental organizations,
world-leading financial institutions, transportations projects
and multinational companies. The Group maximizes client
value by offering professional and effective operation model
and innovative and differentiated products and services, to
intensify the interaction and viscosity between clients and the
Group and enhances the client experience.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China and Hong Kong while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
year 2018, the Group have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year 2018 are set out on pages 130, 131 and 132 of
this Annual Report and in Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 267 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2018 are set out in Note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 219 and 220 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS
The Group had no bank loan during the year 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2018 are set out in Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 234 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB53.2 million (31 December 2017: approximately RMB146.2
million).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE @)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST FIVE
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past five years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 268 of this Annual
Report.

INCENTIVE SCHEMES
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of recognising the
contribution of certain employees and directors made or may
have made to the growth of the Group and/or the listing of
the Group on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and will
expire on 3 December 2019.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
27,738,000, representing approximately 3.33% of the shares
of the Company in issue on that day.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November 2013,
upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee. All the options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted on
19 November 2013. The exercise price of each Pre-IPO share
option of the Company is HKD2.71 per share.

48 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2018
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The Pre-IPO share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme of the Company may be exercised by each

grantee in the following manner:

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s Pre-IPO TRXBEAATIEEREEMEEN
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme held by HRAREENBRETE THER
Directors and employees and movements in such holding for EREREZE2018F12A31HIEZF
the year ended 31 December 2018: EzEE
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31H1L2+=1@A
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2018 2018
Name #2018%F Exercised Lapsed 74201845
=L 1818 [EEGgEd 2AM 12A318
Directors
=
Mr. LU Run Ting 2,960,000 — — 2,960,000
Mr. HOU Ping 1,200,000 — — 1,200,000
BEEE
Mr. LU Runyi 1,600,000 — — 1,600,000
EBREE
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
ENBEE
Mr. WU Sigiang 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
REBSEE

Senior management

EREERE

In aggregate 8,300,000 — — 8,300,000
A

Other employees

Hivfgg

In aggregate 12,057,000 — (379,000) 11,678,000

PAN
I:l;:t

Total 28,117,000 — (379,000) 27,738,000
@it
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at RMB69,935,000
(equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using the Binomial Option
Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Share price HKD4.52
Exercise price HKD2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%

Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB2,497,000
(2017: RMB4,426,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.
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(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme, approved by
the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15 November 2013
(the “Share Option Scheme"), are substantially the same as
the terms of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme except that:

(i)  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange;

(i) the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of offer to grant; and

(iii)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at their discretion and will not be lower than
the highest of: (a) the closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange at the offer date, which must be a
trading day; (b) the average closing price of the ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 7 September 2016, 20,000,000 share options were
granted and all share options were forfeited during the year
ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017 and 2018,
no options were granted or agreed to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have
been granted, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000,
representing approximately 9.6% of the Company’s issued
share capital as at the date of the Company’s 2018 Annual
Report.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(c) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award Scheme
are to (i) align the interests of any employee, adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member
of the Group whom the directors in its sole discretion considers
may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the "Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants. The
Trustee purchases the Company’s shares being awarded from
the open market with funds provided by the Company by way
of contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no ordinary shares
of the Company have been acquired (2017: Nil). As at 31
December 2018, no shares have been granted or agreed to
be granted to any selected participants (2017:10,374,000
shares) of the Share Award Scheme. The share awarded
shall vest in 3 years on each anniversary of the first vesting
date in equal portions. The first vesting date is 26 November
2017. The estimated fair value of the awards granted are
approximately RMB24,239,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKD27,564,000) based on the market price of the relevant
shares at the grant date. There are 4,843,000 (2017:
7,867,000) shares held by the Trustee and RMB4,303,000
(2017: RMB2,792,000) was placed to the Trustee as
prepayments at the end of reporting period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2018 and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LING Wai Lim (re-designated from non-executive Director with
effect from 15 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. LIU John Jianhua
Ms. YE Lu

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 28 to 37 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year 2018 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are as follows:

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
Mr. LIU Xuhui

54 Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqgin)

Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LING Wai Lim
Mr. WU Sigiang
Mr. LI Yuangang

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited

Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Innovation Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

SecureTech Holdings Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Miss. LU Xiaowei Winifred

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Miss. LU Xiaowei Winifred

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. FU Kwan Lun Peter
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years, which shall be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the executive Director or the Company. The non-executive
Director has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years. Each of independent non-executive Directors
has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term
of three years. The appointment of each Director is subject to the
provisions of appointment and retirement of directors under the
Articles of Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. LU
Run Ting, Mr. LU Runyi and Mr. LIU John Jianhua shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. LU
Runyi, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. LIU John Jianhua will give
up his re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. LIU
John Jianhua and Ms. YE Lu, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence
of each of these Directors. The Company considers that the
independent non-executive Directors had been independent from
the date of their appointment to 31 December 2018.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS

For transaction, arrangement or the year ended 31 December 2018,
the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (all within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO")), disclosed in accordance with the

Listing Rules were detailed below:

Interests in Shares

BEEEHRE (@)

ESNEEITENER

REE2018F12831HILZFEE - EEH
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o

IR 17 1 55

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company (%)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held® RG22 7=
EEpE ERtE FiEESFHEO WA E D (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman) Interest of Controlled Corporation®® 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
EEEXE(FE) REHEE RO 355,259,4220%(L)
Beneficial owner @ 4,700,000 Shares (L) 0.56%
Xz A0 4,700,0008%(L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner @ 2,700,000 Shares (L) 0.32%
r FhAE Z@mAQ 2,700,0000%(L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner @ 4,921,000 Shares (L) 0.59%
EEakE XmA@ 4,921,0008%(L)
Mr. LU Xiaozhong Beneficial owner ® 1,501,000 Shares (L) 0.18%
ENAREAE Z@mAC 1,501,0008%(L)
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner © 1,931,000 Shares (L) 0.23%
RE®ELE ZmAO 1,931,0008%(L)
Mr. LING Wai Lim Beneficial owner 16,000 Shares (L) 0.00%
BEBRE & @A 16,0000%(L)
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The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company
or the relevant associated corporation.

Mr. LU Run Ting's interests are consisted of: (i) the interest in the Company held
by GIHL, which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is
deemed to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO;
(i) his interests in 2,960,000 underlying shares of shares options to be issued
subject to exercise of such options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and 740,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Options Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015, and his interests in 1,000,000 shares
as beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,200,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii) 300,000
shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
exercised on 25 August 2015, and (iii) 1,200,000 shares awarded on 26 May
2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,600,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, (ii)
2,120,000 shares transferred from GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of the
Company and wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015, (iii) 400,000
shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
exercised on 25 August 2015, and (iv) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017
under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LU Xiaozhong's interests are consisted of: (i) 1,000,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and (ii)
501,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. WU Sigiang’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,000,000 shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (ii) 130,000
shares as beneficial owner; and (iij) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017

under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LING Wai Lim holds 16,000 shares as beneficial owner.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the year ended 31
December 2018.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended
31 December 2018, no Director had declared interests in any entity
which competes, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1) and
(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is confirmed that
the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above is/was in force
for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance; and has been in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2018,
respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, every
Director or other officer or auditor may be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure
incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted to be done or
alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by him as an
officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in
his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with
any application in which relief is granted to him by the court from
liability in respect of any such act or omission.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 31 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 235 to 241 of this
Annual Report.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year 2018.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2018 are set out in
Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 209 to
213 of this Annual Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined
in the Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all
the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and one
share award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and
eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the
paragraph headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 31 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 235 to 241 of this
Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year
2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARE CAPITAL

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO
recorded that, as at 31 December 2018, the following persons and
corporations had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company:

BEEEHRE (@)
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Approximate
shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held® percentage
A EmE FrsESsgAM BARRES T
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation®V 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42 .62%
EEELAE R H AR R0 355,259,422 %(L)
Beneficial owner® 4,700,000 Shares (L) 0.56%
i AQ0 4,700,0008%(L)
Ms. ZHANG Jian® Family 359,959,422 Shares (L) 43.18%
RELL® ERIS 359,959,422 %(L)
Gemalto® Interest of Controlled Corporation 152,931,181 Shares (L) 18.35%
RiEHpERE R 152,931,1810%(L)
NTAsian Discovery Interest of Controlled Corporation 50,328,000 Shares (L) 6.04%

Master Fund®

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position in the shares of the Company or (1)

REHEE R

shares of the relevant Group member.

2) The disclosed interest represents: (i) the interest in the Company held by GIHL, (2)

which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed
to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO, (ii) his
interests in 2,960,000 underlying shares of shares options to be issued subject
to exercise of such options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and 740,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015; and his interests in 1,000,000 shares as
beneficial owner.
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3) Ms. ZHANG Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (“GISA”), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto, whose shares
are listed and traded on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam and NYSE Euronext
Paris. Therefore, Gemalto is deemed to be interested in GISA’s interest in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

(5) Based on the Disclosure of Interests notice filed on 2 October 2018, the
disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by NTAsian
Discovery Master Fund.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 10.8% (2017: 10.8%) and
approximately 36.3% (2017: approximately 38.9%), respectively, of
the Group’s total turnover from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 12.5% (2017: approximately
28.8%) and approximately 40.7% (2017: approximately 50.7%),
respectively, of the Group's total purchases from suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the shares of the Company in issue)
had interests in the any suppliers or customers of the Group.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following related party transactions entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2018 constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Group under the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that the following disclosure with respect to the
continuing connected transactions has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Gemalto

The Group had been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto
(a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company). On 15 November 2013, a module supply
agreement was entered into among the Company, Goldpac
Datacard Solutions Company Limited, Goldpac Limited (the
“Goldpac Entities”) and Gemalto, pursuant to which, Gemalto
supplied to and the Goldpac Entities purchased from Gemalto or its
affiliates Gemalto IC chips for a term from 4 December 2013 until
31 December 2015. On 25 February 2016, the Goldpac Entities
entered into a mutual supply agreement for a term from 1 January
2016 until 31 December 2018 (the “Mutual Supply Agreement”)
with Gemalto, pursuant to which (i) the Goldpac Entities shall
supply to Gemalto with, among others, products such as banking
card modules, cardbody and personalisation machines, equipment,
spare parts and relevant consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac
Products”); and (ii) Gemalto shall supply to the Goldpac Entities
with Gemalto IC Chips (the “Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).

Pursuant to the Mutual Supply Agreement:

o the annual caps in respect of the Supply of Goldpac Products
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
are RMB12,000,000, RMB16,000,000 and RMB20,000,000,
respectively; and

o the annual caps in respect of the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are
RMB750,000,000, RMB750,000,000 and RMB750,000,000,
respectively.

BEEEHRE (@)

FEBEXRS

B EmRA - REE2018F12 83181
ZFEEMHTI@E XS BRAEER
BRAERS - NRRERUT AN SFERE
RPZBEBECDETLITHRRE4AZEZHRE

2 e

Gemalto

REEBERSHER(RAFTEERRE -
WM AERARBEATD)RESTEERA
N RABRERREFLAANMEIES - I8
B RO @BEREEREHR]) - 482013
F11R158 » @EHMART] - & HEHIE
BRRAGF - @ HEERAG(EHEPEE
B —MmRRMHtERE - B - 852013
F12A4822015F12 318 IHEME - &
HRRSHEERBHEEMSHEEBRDH
MR EMBRARKBEHAEERSA o R
201652 H250 » @ HEBLEESHEREI L
—EEHEGZE([BEHERSR]) &
Itk B2016F1A1HE2018%F12 A31HER
M (eHEEginefhttEsEm -
BIEETRRIRITRER - R - BEAK
2 .RE - TEREENEEREY ((SHEE
mEE]  URG)eHRERE BEERHE
EeEREERoh ([ SBEREEFEHE
) o

IR B R

e S HEEMHEENEZE2016 - 2017
K2018F 12 A3 BZFE LR »
A & AR #12,000,0007T « AR
16,000,000t & A R#20,000,0007T °

o SHMIRERREAREBAREZE2016 -
2017 %2018 12 A31BZ2EE LR
o Bl A AR #750,000,0007T « AR
750,000,0007T & A R # 750,000,000
5T o

SHEHABZRERAT —T-N\FFEH 63

Financial Corporate
2018 FRER

2018 Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Directors and Senior [ Management Discussion

B 2
o
£t
99
&2
2a

Environmental, Corporate Governance
Report

Social and Governance

B

Financial Statements

Information

Highlights
HRHE

and Analysis
BE B

Management

953

ETERE

2 A

REERE

=

&

EEEHRE

EEREE

HEREA

5

1

B



As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) (as defined under the Listing Rules) calculated by reference
to the annual caps is less than 5%, the Supply of the Goldpac
Products from the Goldpac Entities to Gemalto as contemplated
under the Mutual Supply Agreement is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements, but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) (as defined under the Listing Rules) calculated by
reference to the annual caps is/are more than 5% and more than
HKD 10,000,000, the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips by Goldpac
Entities from Gemalto as contemplated under the Mutual Supply
Agreement is subject to reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Mutual Supply Agreement, the Purchase of
Gemalto IC Chips as contemplated under the Mutual Supply
Agreement and the annual caps contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 25
February 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the actual transaction
amount in respect of the Supply of Goldpac Products and the
Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted to 0 and RMB93,635,000,
respectively.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Auditor”), the auditor of the
Company, reviewed the Group's continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Auditor has issued a review report to the board and confirmed
that for the year 2018:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap approved by the
extraordinary general meeting on 25 February 2016 in respect
of each of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions arising from the Mutual Supply
Agreement with Gemalto in respect with Supply of Goldpac
Products and Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips during the year ended
31 December 2018 and confirmed that the transactions were:

i. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
i.  onnormal commercial terms; and
iii. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE @)

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that has publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
permitted under the Listing Rules since the Listing until the date of
this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2018, no material event has occurred.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting on 22 May
2019.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out in
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year 2018.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent
as the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the “"Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERRE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of
the Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (Note)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to
37 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 37 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on
the Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally.

Note: Mr. LING Wai Lim was re-designated from non-executive Director to executive
Director with effect from 15 March 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a term of three years and is
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, environmental and social responsibilities, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the Board
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, each Director has read
books/journals and attended relevant training to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the Chairman and members of each board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 to 4 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions, arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. LIU John
Jianhua and Ms. YE Lu.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TRERBHRE (#)

The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration of the
senior management is listed as below by band:

Band of remuneration

3 48 Bl

BERZEENTAENTESRENELT
EONEZBENETT T MREE °

SREEE N M

RNEE2018FE12A31BILZEE  aRE
BEHF A ROT ¢

Number of person
A

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000

Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive
and Employees are set out in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on the pages 209 to 213 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee met for one time to review and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all
employees as a whole, the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company, and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and other related matters. Currently the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. LIU John Jianhua
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
and Mr. LU Run Ting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s gender,
age, character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members
currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. LIU John
Jianhua and Ms. YE Lu.
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The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will
consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, language, cultural background, educational background,
skills, knowledge, industry experience and professional experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable

objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERRE (&)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2018, there was no change in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in the year ended 31 December
2018 as required by the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the table
below:

TEEBRRE @)

EENEEENENHETE

BNEFLBRRNANREZE2018F12 A31
BE2FERNBITNEES ZEQLH
AR A& H EE RSN TN RATR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE &RRY
Annual
General
Nomination Remuneration Audit Meeting

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee REBE
EEpE Exg REEEE FMEES EREES &
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 il 11 N/A i
EFHERE
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 il N/A N/A i
FEEE
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A i
EBREE
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
BB
Mr. WU Sigiang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A i
RERESE
Mr. LING Wai Lim (Note) 4/4 N/A N/A N/A i
B Rl BR ST (71)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 7 1”71 2/2 1”1
BXRESE
Mr. LIU John Jianhua 4/4 il 11 2/2 i
BlEErst
Ms. YE Lu 3/4 il N/A 2/2 i
9 3

Note: Mr. LING Wai Lim was re-designated from non-executive Director to executive
Director with effect from 15 March 2019. Therefore, Mr. LING Wai Lim attended
the meetings in this table as a non-executive Director.

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors
during the year 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

5 A\Aiﬁ IIE

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 117 to 125 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB1,608,000 and
RMB371,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out below:

ESRMBRERNVBE

EERRENTREARNRNFEHE2018F
12A3MB L2 FENBHHRERNBE -

EEVTABEMBABAEESARATE
REENZHNERNERNFHRBERANEXN
THARERE -

E2)NVNCIE VA S S GRSl )
PROAE N AN FRZBIZBMREE1TE
1258 -

BB AV =

SR FARBINEZEBMBBEE2018F
12 A31 8 1L 2 FERNZEARTS & IEZ RS
2B n R A AREE1,608,000TFA R
371,0007C ©

SN FARBINERBENRBEERT &5

FifTERE Z2018F12A31H I FEKX
RS MR ERIE 2B o iTIn T ¢

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category B8 g1 N E A

RMB

AR

Audit Services B AR TS 1,608,000
Non-audit Services IEZBUR TS

— Interim review —rh HAZE B 342,000

— Others —EHfh 29,000

1,979,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fullfiling its
oversight and corporate governance role in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group’s risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERRE (1)

Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to effectively
identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business, financial,
operational and compliance risks. The framework enables the
Group to adopt a proactive and systematic approach to identifying
and managing risks across the organisation to evaluate risk
severity and likelihood of occurrence. The framework also sets
out the procedures of risk management and clarifies the roles
and responsibilities of various departments in relation to risk
management.
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BEREERHE

RISK
IDENTIFICATION

CORPORATE STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVES
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ACTION AND

RISK
ASSESSMENT
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The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units of the Company review and access the
status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to achieve
their business objectives and/or those of the Group, determine and
implement treatment plans where risk mitigations are actionable.
This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately address
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
The system and internal controls can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as
they are designed to be managed, rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
40 to 45 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works to
improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace with
the changing business environment.

Internal Controls

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group’s risk management and internal control system. Internal
Control Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated
and ractified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group's compliance, financial, procurement and operations. On
a regular basis, Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit
Committee the results of their activities during the preceding period
pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls,
and follows up the progress of ractification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently in
an appropriate and transparent manner.

% = \A $& nﬁ

EENBRREEEEHE - AEREET
SERKHA MERRBE » KU KETH

BB NARE - BRI EHREREE R
WARERT A SERR A G R RCER - A KGE
%iﬂéii%ﬁuﬁﬁ}%—]ﬁ%% IARBERRM TR

2 - BRGNS RER S EMIFE
iﬂ%E ABERNKREREAREXR  BRE
BHEEEE  MIPHERAREERERBR
R o

EENTERBERFRAARFREIOE F£45
BN - AEBEBTEB DR &R K E R
Hl - BREETNETE L ERIRE -

B B 42

SEAMBTHARERREIERAGPEE
R RRFB G - WBEPERAPTE
BERERZ 8 QERARERAIIZSRAES

BB e EE MALE -

A EETEFIREA R AE RN EZS
o NEBEETHM2F TIEETE  MEAR -
W% RKEREESFSEENTEEIZEIER
B AHBAHFIREHSH LMEZE
BgERARN I —(EHHBEERNBEZES

RHRERBENTIEER @ WIREHZR
Fﬂﬁhﬂ@i&@ °

LK%IJTE%IJEIW*X*IE%%E&% ° &
BB BP - HERMEMBET Y
5&&$E@E’JEHA mX%ﬂuT\”"_ﬁf’Eﬂj
R WMEFEFEIRREE RAEH
Fﬁﬁﬁ‘tiﬁﬂ@ﬁﬂéﬁ?mﬂﬁxﬁﬁﬁ °

SHEHABZRERAT —T-N\FF5H I

*t

Corporate
Information
&

¥

Highlights

Financial
HRHE

2018 FRER

Chairman’s 2018 Major Events
Statement
EEHRE

and Analysis
BECY &R

EEE

BREERE

Management

953

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

&

Report of
Directors
ESERE

t
o
Q
9]
o

41
L
P
f
L
S|

[
9
c
©
(S
=
[
>
[<}
)
[}
=)
©
=
o
o
=
o
()

CHERER

5

Environmental,
Social and Governance

b

B

Financial Statements
BIHRE



The Company formulated the insider information policy and
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the insider information. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effectively implemented.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also accessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

To safeqguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as
the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively
of the Companies Ordinance. The general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting must be stated in the request.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in the Companies Ordinance for convening a general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia,
Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

- ’A\Aiﬁﬂ:(llﬁ

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through Annual
General Meetings and other general meetings. At the Annual
General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2018, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Group (or we) reaffirm the commitment to sustainability with
the publication of the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report 2018 (“Report”). This Report is prepared in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules and is based on the Group’s conditions. The
purpose of this Report is to present the Group’s environmental
and social performance in 2018 and for better communication
with stakeholders of the Group. The Board of the Company
acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of this Report
and to the best of its knowledge that this Report addresses all
material issues and fairly presents the Group’s ESG performance.
The Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

This Report supplements the Group’s Annual Report and discloses
performance and progress on ESG issues from 1 January to 31
December 2018. The scope of this Report covers the Company and
its major subsidiaries. The information stated in this Report was
obtained from the Group’s various reports and records of daily
operations.

Feedback

The Group considers sustainable development as its imperative
long-term goal. We would highly appreciate any comments on
improving the content and information delivery of this Report. If you
have any queries or suggestions, please feel free to contact us.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre,
No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202
Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Preventing systemic risks is the fundamental theme of the financial
work in the country. Benefiting from their safety and stability
features, smart secure payment products have been always playing
a crucial role in maintaining a stable and healthy operation of the
entire financial market. As a global leader in smart secure payment
total solutions, the Group upholds the vision of “Make Transactions
More Secure and Convenient” to deliver embedded software,
secure payment products and A.l. financial self-serve kiosks for
customers across the world. By leveraging innovative technologies,
the Group provides data processing, system platforms and other
total solutions for a broad range of customers including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation and retail sectors.

The Group are the only one supplier in China, which has passed
the qualification certifications issued by six global credit card
organizations. Product quality and customer data security are
defined as our prime objectives. We strive to explore and investigate
suitable corporate operational processes to cohere with the Group’s
sustainability development pattern.

The Group is committed to integrating its businesses with
environment and society, pursuing a sustainable development. We
formulate and implement policies regarding the environmental and
social aspects and update those policies after diverse internal and
external communications and appropriateness review, to decide
whether the ongoing policies are still suitable. During the year,
employees at all levels fully cooperated with the sustainability
management in practice. Led by the corporate business
management department, information collection and reporting
on environmental and social performance are completed through
collaboration among various departments, e.g. human resource
department, administration department, engineering department
and etc..
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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In terms of environment protection, the Group complies with
related environmental laws, regulations and standards. Starting
from the energy saving, emission reduction and waste management
as key aspects, we established a series of internal procedures
and systems to help our employees properly handle the wastes
generated in the production process. As a result, we are able to
enhance the productivity and operation efficiency, and bear a
greater responsibility of the environment protection.

The Group not only complies with related laws and regulations
relating to employment and safety, but also pays considerable
attention to employee welfare and safety, and at the same time
it devotes itself to a well-established management and training
system, offering employees a broader development space in a fair,
safe, healthy and harmonious work environment, to strengthen its
leader position in the smart secure payment industry.

Appendix 1 presents the list including but not limited to laws and
regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant impacts on
the Group.

Stakeholder Communication and Engagement

We are grateful to every stakeholder for their support on our
growth and improvement. In order to lay a solid foundation for
our sustainable development, we have made great efforts to
understand opinions suggested by stakeholders, e.g. investors,
customers, suppliers, employees, community, government and etc.
Stakeholders can deliver their comments on our ESG performance
and future policies through different channels.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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We believe that proactive two-way communications with
stakeholders will help formulate business strategies better
conforming to their expectations and requirements, improve the
ability of risk forecast, strengthen crucial relationships, and finally
realize the sustainable development in economies society and
environment together with them.

We identified 25 issues and held a survey among management and
stakeholders through questionnaires to communicate with them.
This Report is prepared and the coming sustainable development
work will be arranged based on the results of the survey.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Following the quality policy “All for better meeting customer
requirements, exceeding customer expectations and improving
customer satisfaction!”, the Group pursues to achieve operational
excellence. Guided by such policy, the Group has established
a quality management system supported by a set of policy
documents, e.g. Quality Manual for Card Business, Quality Manual
for Individualization Business and subordinate documents. During
the year, the Group successfully renewed the 1ISO9001 Quality
Management System Certificate. Together with the efforts of
all departments, our products and services implement strict
safety standards and meet the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations. The Group has been granted certifications by the six
global credit card organizations.

Regarding product quality, we have established the quality
management department, which is in charge of carrying out
quality check during the production process for raw material,
goods in progress and finished goods, in accordance with quality
management system and industry requirements. Unqualified
products are immediately adjusted, improved, re-manufactured or
even disposed. In terms of customer service, we offer high quality
services as well. For each customer, the sales staff designs tailored
sales strategy after a thorough analysis and a designated customer
service staff follows up after sale issues. The issuance of Customer
Complaint Management Process which defines how to deal with
customer complaints, effectively enhance our internal management
in customers’ perspectives. It thus improves customer satisfaction.
In addition, we build a special team to record, internally coordinate
and summarize customer complaints for future reference. Both the
product quality and services have received a high appraisal from
customers. During the year, we do not find any cases about privacy
leak or significant accidents that have material effects on the Group
in terms of the product quality and services.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Information Security and Privacy

The Group firmly believes that operational excellence and safe and
reliable information management are inseparable. Information
Security Management System Manual and its subordinate
documents are published to widely define the structure of security
management, target and arrangement of information security and
clarify in detail the security requirements of information processing.
During the year, the Group successfully renewed 1SO27001
Information Security Management System Certificate and was highly
recognized by the card organizations and customers.

The Group penetrates information security management into
every aspect of daily operations. When signing employment
agreement, employees have to sign the Confidentiality Agreement
and Competition Restriction Agreement as well. During daily
work, no employees are permitted to disseminate information
to unauthorized persons or outsiders without authorization, and
copying of information is strictly forbidden either. After our training
programs and regular assessments, our employees can handle
confidential information properly. Random and regular security
inspections by industry supervision authorities, card organizations,
customers and professional institutions reassure the reliability of our
service and ensure a high standard of security management. The
Group publishes specific management procedures to standardize
the management of information assets and intellectual property
rights that could be timely authorized with certificates and to be in
an invincible position in the fierce industry competition.
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The Group has proactively engaged in technology exchange and
cooperation with the world’s top universities and global leaders
of secure technology companies and chip manufacturers. In June
2018, the Group worked jointly with Guoxin Micro and CEC Huada
Electronic, driving a deep integration in industry chains to seek
the application of financial technologies in a wider area. Such
cooperations will empower China’s financial outsourcing service
industry to accelerate its steps into the world’s high-end value
chain.

Sign framework agreement with Guoxin Micro
H2Z O B4 28 AT HEZR 15 e

Focusing on the prospective research and development on secure
encryption technology, the Group has made progress in its technical
preparations for secure modules in Internet of Things, mobile
phone application white boxes, smart homes, machine interaction
and etc.. The Group owns mature techniques in the application of
electronic identification cards. It has become a new growth area
for the Group by employing such techniques in smart financial self-
services kiosks and oversea identity documents. During the year,
smart financial self service kiosks e.g. Goldpac A.l. Self-service Card-
issuing and Card-receipt Kiosk developed by the Group appeared
in exhibitions, attracted plenty of customers and successfully won
the bids for several citizen card projects. Meanwhile, various banks
or organizations have launched one-card solution products based
on our advanced core algorithms and security control techniques to
build smart cities.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Smart financial self-service kiosks in
exhibition

BT R AR TR

BI¥Eda TR E

Fintech has become one of the main driving forces in financial
industry. To passively embrace financial technology and tightly
combine with epoch-making technologies such as internet, big
data, cloud technology and etc.. In September, the Group started
the construction of Zhuhai Fintech Center which was authorized by
Zhuhai Municipal Government in late October. The center locates
at the core area in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Center Area and is expected to be completed in 2020. The center
functions as a core strategic platform, through which the Group
connects with the Greater Bay Area and attracts startup financial
technology companies, projects and talents to create a smart secure
payment industry center, a financial technology center, a Greater
Bay Area innovative talents center, a financial information service
industry cluster and a city of innovation. The Group will build
greater synergies to generate new motivations for more and faster
development in financial technologies.

Ceremony of commencement for
Zhuhai Fintech Center
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of
business ethics in terms of information disclosure, integrity and
accountability. Our Anti-Fraud Reporting Management System
strictly manages our businesses with all business partners, including
our customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors. We encourage
employee reporting on any suspected behaviors against policies
and protect the whistleblowers against any punishment due to
his/her accurate report. The whistleblower’s identities are strictly
kept confidential unless it is necessary for investigation, malicious
reporting or required by relevant laws and regulations. We treat
with and fight against fraud and bribery in any forms such as cash,
gifts seriously.

Whistleblowers can report to the Chairman of the Group's audit
committee or to the Chairman of the Board. Materials will be
forwarded to the other audit committee members for internal
investigation or to other departments for investigations given that
it is in line with the best interests of the Group. Regular evaluations
on management ensure compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations and their effectiveness. During the year, the Group did
not notice any issues relating to bribery, blackmail, fraud, money
laundering or any misconduct which has a material impact on the
Group.

Partnerships with suppliers are regularly reviewed to ensure
that excellent products and services are provided to customers.
Initial assessment on new suppliers and annual assessments on
existing suppliers are conducted to evaluate their qualifications
performance, and environmental and safety management practices.
The formulation of Supplier Evaluation and Control Procedures
ensures that all the Group’s suppliers possess adequate capacity
and are able to maintain suitable quality. After each assessment, we
prepare evaluation reports and update the list of qualified suppliers
to provide reference for screening suppliers. We will keep building
healthy relationships with supplies, achieving a win-win result and
grow together.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Our main principles in environmental sustainability are to diminish
the consumption of materials and energy and waste management,
achieving the “Energy saving and emission reduction” goal; and
to reduce negative influence on eco-environment, creating an
environment friendly enterprise.

In addition to seeking business growth by providing high quality
and high class techniques, products and services to customers,
the Group, as a leading provider of smart secure payment
products and services in China, always prioritizes environmental
management to mitigate negative influence on eco-environment
through operational excellence. The Group’s major impacts to the
environment were resulted mainly from the production processes
of smart secure payment products on environment are energy and
emissions consumption. Through risk control and measures on
minimizing resource usage, we will continue to monitor the impacts
on the human being and the environment. The Group has strictly
complied with all relevant environmental laws and regulations in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong. During 2018, we were not
aware of any practices or issues caused by environmental problems
significantly influencing the environment or the Group.

Guided by standards under the ISO14001 Environmental
Management System and referring to environmental factors, the
Group has established an environmental management system
in which Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual provides the general guidelines and other
subordinate documents describe the implementation details, in
order to make best utilization of raw materials and resources and to
reduce pollution, finally realizing the sustainable development goal.
The Group provides environmental data for all operational activities,
products and services. In addition, management designates
environmental management representatives to communicate
with stakeholders and understand their opinions, to confirm
environmental management plans and internal approval, and to
report to CEO to ensure the environmental management system
functions well.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REAHRE @

Internal
approval

P RREEHL

Stakeholder
communication

Programs
confirmation

st EIFER

GlEayisle b

To maximize the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates the
concept of environment protection with its business to realize the
vision of environment friendly and a harmonious development mode
between economy and environment.

Resources Consumption

It is one of the national strategies to build a resource-economic
society when implementing the scientific outlook on development.
The Group actively responds to the call of the government
by complying with environmental laws and regulations and
continuously monitoring the resources consumption.

The Group’s energy consumptions are mainly due to electricity
usage in production facilities and office activities, fuels used by
automobiles, and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG"”) consumed
by cooking stoves. Responsibilities of energy management are
further divided among different departments because of their
better understanding and management on themselves. We make
timely adjustments on the electricity supply to and usage by
lighting system, air conditioning system, ventilating and production
facilities. We analyze the energy efficiency based on the collected
data and computed statistics. If any exceptions are noted, necessary
improvements will be carried out. We have enforced a series of
control measures to improve the energy efficiency:

o Electrical engineers should be qualified to guarantee an
effective allocation and management of electricity to avoid

waste.

o Each department appoints person in charge to turn off
electrical facilities that should be closed state.

o Production facilities are turned on in accordance with
production needs to avoid long time turned-on status without
usage.

o Public transportation is recommended.

o Use energy efficient stoves in the canteen to increase the
energy efficiency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Our production does not involve massive water usage. Our water
consumption is mainly from daily office and life activities. In order to
reduce water consumption, we conduct staff education, propagate
information about water saving, and apply water saving tools.

During the year, both electricity and water consumptions increase
as a result of the commencement of the construction of Zhuhai
Fintech Center. As at the end of the year, it consumes electricity
of 32,523 kWh and water of 3,444 tonnes. The Group implements
stringent project management control procedures throughout every
construction stage from declaration, assessment and constructing
to final completion for the purpose of reducing resource waste
and mitigating destruction on eco-environment caused by the
construction. The environment protection measures include
introducing low noise construction processes and mechanical
ventilation system to reduce noise and air pollution, applying energy
saving equipment to avoid unnecessary waste of resources, and
monitoring water and electricity usage. After the center operates,
the electricity and water consumption is believed to return to
normal levels.

BE  HEREBRHE@E

KERERTE  BHPANEEBRETNFEXR
ERKOIF  FEKERERREIAE
W BERE - RIBBETHETIE
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IKETRARE

KER  HRAEBIHET SRR AL
BERE  BEHEKERERESBERM LA -
HEARFE  ZIBE £HME32,523F R - K
B LA K 3,444HE7K o AEBERHFEER
TR REASHIE R EIBEHIIRF - RIBEEE
HBEFRR - FE - ERIEERTRIN
B—ERE  ®RLERRE  REEL
BRRHARLERRRENFE - ABRREHE
BREFARBSELARNEMBRZRS
DRIPREIR Z M RSSA - RN
IETRERERREE  UREEKER B
TERBR - KK - BEZEEENRARE
A AEENAEERKEREEBORES
K o

Resource type Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity
EREE By wmy BEEN BE
Electricity kWh 13,785,088 kWh/RMB million turnover 9,770
BN TR & TR -B/ ARECEEEXE

LPG KG 23,165 KG/Employee 13
BAL AR N R/ BUET

Water Tonne 99,983  Tonne/RMB million turnover 71
ERYN A e,/ ANREEBLEE

Unleaded petrol Liter 11,088 Liter/RMB million turnover 8
YUH vai FHAAREEEEERE

Diesel oil Liter 2,920 Liter/RMB million turnover 2
By 7+ FAAREEBEEESE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REAHRE @

Emissions Reduction

On one hand, the Group strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations; on the other hand, the Group makes special pollution
preventing procedures to standardize pollutant emission processes
and to control the emission of exhaust air, greenhouse gas, sewage
and noise.

Each department is responsible for the control and prevention the
possible water, air and noise pollutions generated during their
production and office activities. The engineering department takes
the responsibility of regular maintenance and the management
of the equipment. The quality management department works
together with qualified testing organizations to monitor pollution.
They will compare the testing results with standards in relevant
laws and regulations and report to the environmental management
representative. Once any inconformity is noted, departments
involved have to investigate and solve the problem in accordance
with the Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures,
and then propose improvement measures.

D B X

BAMRL SRR - ARE—7
HERETHEBEER  Z— T EHETH
FIESRPDERRT - RERERDMELD
ARMBERURIE - EHIER  RERE 5
K BREETEER

AEESHBFIRBEL BENREMBERLR
EBEESMPaEE  MABEP AR

HEHK - ZRAMBEFR - TRIBRIERE
RIEREE BN EIZARR AR o B
TR TE 7% 18 B8 2 B2 O IRIE TR AR E ©
AEENREEENEFEGNRAIKESR
REZBE  HKEETSRENTE K
ERREBAERIEOIREETHER - I
FRREERRSRE - EERBEBER - A
2 B0 P e+ PR AL IE AN TR B #8 ha e A2 Fr ) 2
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During the year, independent testing organizations has tested the
quality of noise and sewage produced in Zhuhai plant, the Group’s
main production and office place. It indicates a qualified result when
comparing with relevant standards.

The main sources of the Group’s exhaust air emission come from
fuel combustion, vehicle exhaust and volatile organic compounds
("VOCs") during production processes. Based on the Group’s
records on fuel and vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the
amount of air pollutant emissions as presented below:

R2018% - AEB T EAERPAM —IKE
JBR [ ) R SR A R 32 PR B ST ARORI AR E T 0 Y
BEMEKEEETRE - BRETINER
& RIS -

AEEBERRFRREZBMERE - 1=
ERMEAEBRETEENEELEEHRY
(TVOCs ) = RIBAS BIAF K B8 HO (£ A
B BRAFELREHANEEENERS
ZEYPWRE - SR

Air pollutants Unit Total
BREFY By B
Sulfur oxides (SOx) KG 0.2
ety (Sox) YN
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) KG 19
Af/ty (NOx) NI
Particulate matter (PM) KG 1
R (PM) NI
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

With gradually focusing on greenhouse effect, global warming and
other related issues, people have already realized the importance
of monitoring and slowing down the speed of greenhouse gas
emissions. The Group's production and office activities, such as fuel
combustion, electricity consumption and vehicle fuel usage lead
to both direct and indirect carbon emissions. We encourage low-
carbon office activities, e.g. using clean energy and energy saving
equipment, saving electricity, reducing paper consumption, taking
public transportations, and etc. The emissions of greenhouse gases
during the reporting period are presented as below:

BE  HEREBRHE@E
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Scope of greenhouse gas Sty

(CO,e) emissions Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity E, EE
BERR(CACHER) FREER By mw BEEN mg 7

s .

Scope I: direct emission Tonne 108  Tonne/RMB million turnover 0.1 §_§§

HE— : BN 48 W AREEBEEESE gii

Scope II: indirect emission Tonne 7,266*  Tonne/RMB million turnover 5 ‘é-fw%g%ﬁn

E— : MEHER L7 WEARBEELERSE s

* Include indirect emissions of 10 tonnes COze from electricity consumption due ~ * EWETERMBER OEIIEREE N EEHERD § g%

to the construction of Zhuhai Fintech Center. 10 —EfbixrE=E - 2 é%

§ 5

In terms of emissions of the particulate matter (“PM”) and VOCs, ¥R ZTREZHEN ([EZRBEIEN|)ME §§m

we install an air ventilation system in printing workshop after taking
a full consideration of their emission quantities, concentration,
economic feasibility and relevant regulations. An adsorption and
purification device is set for exhaust air treatment before it is
discharged to the atmosphere. Specifically, the device has the
capacity to filter tiny PMs and to absorb the VOCs with activated
carbon, holding back pollutants before they are discharged.
Regular inspections and component replacement are carried out to
ensure the efficiency of PM filtering and VOCs absorbing. For the
production techniques, we adopt advanced production processes
which reduce errors and wastes, and improve efficiencies in the
production of smart secure payment products.

The Group has been treating sewage and effluent according to
wastewater treatment plan made in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to mitigate the impacts on the environment.
The Zhuhai Fintech Center currently under construction is designed
with wastewater treatment facilities, which can handle wasted
water from in kitchens and toilets and industry organic wasted
water.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REAHRE @

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Improper disposal of wastes is one of the crucial reasons of
environment pollution. Therefore, waste management is another
key focus for the Group’s environmental management. Under the
requirements set out in relevant laws and regulations, we publish
the Waste Disposal Control Procedures to manage the generation,
storage, marking and disposal of wastes in the production of smart
secure payment products, to pursue a deduction of wastes and to
prevent and lower the negative impacts on environment.

We compile a detailed list of wastes annually to conduct a
comprehensive review on the waste production and treatment
and submit it to the environmental management representatives
for approval. Waste is classified into non-hazardous waste and
hazardous waste based on whether it is injurious, while the non-
hazardous waste is further classified as recyclable non-hazardous
wastes and non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes based on its
nature. Through collaboration among departments, specific waste
management is designed to each type of waste according to their
classifications. Departments where the wastes are generated
accounts for the collection and storage. The administration
department is responsible to contact qualified waste management
contractors for treatment and final disposal of recyclable and non-
hazardous wastes and part of hazardous wastes. For non-recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, they are disposed with the assistance of the
municipal sanitation department contacted by the administration
department. The storage department is in charge of contacting with
suppliers to recycle the hazardous waste during the procurement
process.

18 3 R JB&
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During reporting period, the Group's wastes are mainly recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, e.g. leftover production materials, wasted
packaging materials, wasted paper and etc. Hazardous wastes,
mainly from printing process, account for only a small part of total
wastes. Our waste management system allows most of the materials
are recycled so that environmental impacts were significantly
reduced. Wastes generated during the reporting period are
presented as below:

BE  HEREBRHE@E

RARERR  AEBEBEERYEESA DK
—RERY  TEEELEMFEAR B
ZNREDE  BERARRSE - BREEY
REBERVMEEN—/\BD TEXREEM
EN - AP E Y & 12 Rt K EE 0 Mokt
SURERNA  BEMREERENEEY
& RBREHNEENERERYIIRET

Types of wastes Wastes Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity
EREYER BEY B wme REEN BE
Wasted ink Tonne 19 KG/RMB million turnover 13
& h 2 i AT/ AREEELER
Developer/
fixative solution Tonne 9 KG/RMB million turnover 7
R/ TERER i DT/ AREEBEESR
Haiardius waste Wastes with
RRERY paint and dye Tonne 7 KG/RMB million turnover 5
BE - RREY WA D/ AREBBEXS
Wasted empty
barrel Tonne 7 KG/RMB million turnover 5
REZETR A RT/AREEBEXR
Recyclable Tonne 234 KG/RMB million turnover 166
Non-hazardous waste  AJ [B] 1 18 DT/ ARBOBEESR
—RREEZEEY) Non-recyclable Tonne 14 KG/RMB million turnover 10
A [l A AT/ AREEELER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE8REAHRE @

In our production and transportation process, packaging materials
are mainly composed of paper boxes, paper carton boxes, tags,
tapes and fillers. These materials are necessary to prevent the smart
secure payment products from any damage during the production
and transportation process. Packaging materials are strictly
forbidden to be discarded, and are regularly recycled by professional
companies.

BAEENEGBETRANBEDHEE
BREAR  &F B8 BT EBEx9E
BARESRLEXNERELEERESB
BRAZEBENLEBRRY - BRVHE
BREEER  AREXQRETE D KE
® -

Types of packing materials Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity
BHEMRIER By wmy EEBEN BE
Paper box Unit 2,245,200 Unit/RMB million turnover 1,591
wae 18 B/ ANREBBEESE

Paper carton box Unit 219,750 Unit/RMB million turnover 156
i) 12l B/ AREEELEERE

Tag Piece 6,185,000 Piece/RMB million turnover 4,383
RE i RKAANRBEOELERE

Tape Roll 57,825 Roll/RMB million turnover 41
B & B/ ANREOBEEE

Filler Piece 663,034 Piece/RMB million turnover 470
EFEW iR wOARBEEEETE

Green Product REEMR

We aim to innovate in the development of green products, realizing
the production and the use of smart card. During the year, we
continuously invested in environmentally-friendly cards with better
decomposable materials which can reduce environmental impacts
during the product life cycle. We also integrate the concept of
environment protection into the product design to convey its
importance to our customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

Employees are critical support to our on-going development. We
treat our people well to bring mutual advancement. The Group’s
operations also need to cooperate with the community. Thus, we
proactively contribute to the community and endeavor for mutual
prosperity.

Recruitment Policy

The Group issues Human Resource Management Procedure and
Staff Manual to stipulate in detail the recruitment requirements
and procedures. Under the principle of being open, fair and just,
we treat every candidate equally without any biases, regardless
of their race, religion, complexion, gender, age, region, marital
status or whether disabled. However, employing child is prohibited.
Candidates have to pass a written examination and several
interviews in order to obtain the offer. Besides specific professional
skills and working capabilities, candidates should be honest, possess
a correct working attitude and a high professional dedication and
comply with laws, regulations and ethics. Similarly, procedures
for termination or cancellation of employment also follow the
requirements and procedures stated in the above two documents. In
line with the core value of “People-oriented”, the Group treasures
every staff, pays attention to staff thoughts and takes action to
retain talents as early as possible.

The Group's employment policies comply with all relevant labor
laws and regulations at each operation location. During the year,
the Group observed no violations of any applicable labor laws and
regulations including child labor and forced labor issues.

HTERERRE (B

IRIE -

UIFEZE R BEESHF - B
B R RERE o AEEEL T
R EFIEELET S BEH

ETE2E N
=EFET

HEAIE

HFTEEH -

EREX

AEBGIENCANBEREERZF)MCET
FH)HARE T SEBAN BRI ENHER

BRE - RMBRERF - 2F - RE - #E
BERAMERRR . TwiEk Rk Be -
RE MR Fie o i BREARRER
RRFGFEHFRERKBE - BEREER

BT - AEERBBIET  KBEFLER
REOEANZHE - KREABEENEE
REEMTIERE S - KBEEDAHNETE
KM ENSBEENDEOM RS &8
SPERERML G RE - R - KR
%“ BRINEEBST Ll X e RER

o REBARZE [AAB/KINZLEEER -
@ﬁﬁ-&%l'&%%%élﬁﬂ'%E
REVEIREAA

AEBHNREREETEHES %Emﬁ@
BENEREMER - R20185F - NEIBER

EARRERERER  URERETLR
W5 TEBMR

SHEREERERAT —B-NggH 105

Financial
High lights
HHRHE

2018 £AER

2018 Major Events

EEHRE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
BEEHRRDN

REEE

Management
=

BER

Directors and Senior | Management Discussion

Report of
Directors
EEERE

Corporate Governance
Report
CEEREE

B HEREAR

Q
v
c
— ©
2 £
c o
[T
€8
cL©
o T
= c
> ©
&5
v
o
wv

B

Financial statements



Achievements of the Group are attributable to the hard-working
of all employees. Therefore, we consider humanistic care being
important by creating an enjoyable working environment and
providing sound payment and harmonious working atmosphere.

Remunerations are determined and adjusted based on factors
including economic conditions, personal experience, performance
assessment and operational results. To motivate employees at every
level to fully utilize their potentials, in addition to basic salaries,
we still offer bonus, allowance and option plan. Employees have
the rights to take paid leaves, including but not limited to annual
leave, overtime leave, marital leave and maternity leave, as stated in
applicable laws of their working places. Number of working hours
also complies with local laws and regulation, as well as the industry
norms. Forced labor is prevented within the Group that provides
reasonable subsidies to overtime which is voluntary.

Statutory benefits are offered to employees under the requirements
of local laws and regulations. Such benefits include insurances and
paying entity’s section of accumulation funds on time. The Group
arranges physical examinations for all staff every year, usually in
the second half of the year. During the year, it has been completed
in the third quarter. The group companies convey policies about
settling down in local household to employees and support them
on such issue. Furthermore, the Group distributes festival gifts,
pays attention to physical and mental health of female employees,
holding thematic essay writing activity, and providing activity

AREFEBHE ARG BREEET
FHHENER - Bt RHERAXH
B BNEEDRG TIEES - RUER
BRERIRAA NS SE -
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funding to each department for team building and strengthening HFEES - MBEKER F EAELHEB
the sense of belongings. R o

“Caring female employees” workshop Team photo
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The Group sees employees as an important asset and emphasizes on
their performance and development. We encourage and motivate
skills and knowledge improvement so as to offer better products
and services to our customers. Training Management Procedures
clarify types of trainings and how to participate. Comprehensive
internal and external trainings are provided. Internal trainings
include compulsory orientation, job skill training, fire safety
training, improvement training, information security training and
etc.; while external trainings include meetings, coursed offered
by various institutions and organizations. Training allowances are
provided accordingly. During the year, we successfully organized a
training related to management improvement in human resource
management, invited experts to conduct a course about employee
psychological safety and emotional stress management, contact and
support employees to go out to intend several seminars. Trainees
are evaluated at the end of the training to ensure the effectiveness.

Information security training
ZE LI

Management training
B E 5|
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According to Management Method of Performance Appraisal,
employees are assessed on a regular basis, that is, performance
appraisal, to review their work progress, quality and effectiveness,
in order to set further improvement plans and better goals in the
future. Performance appraisals are carried out every month, quarter
and year and its contents should be specific and quantified. The
results serve as a vital reference in deciding salary, promotion and
training opportunities, as well as strengthening communications
between department and employee. In addition, benefiting from
a complete promotion procedure, the Group’s management team
is able to improve its overall quality and competence. A broader
platform could be provided to qualified employees through
comprehensive assessments under the principles of being open,
fair and just. Meanwhile, the Group becomes energetic with
positive competitions which also lays a good foundation of greater
progresses in the future.

The Group is committed to investing continuously in occupational
health and safety. Since 2012, the Group has obtained and
successfully renewed the OHSAS18001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System Certificate. The Group issues the
Environment and Occupational Health and Safety Management
Manual as a general policy, together with other subordinated
documents as procedures. Our policy related to occupational health
and safety, aiming to manage risks and mitigate the operational
impacts on employees, complies with all applicable laws, regulations
and standards. It also creates a safe and harmonious environment.

We encourage employees to engage in the management of
occupational health and safety to establish a safe workplace.
Employees have appointed the management representatives
to implement the management of occupational health and
safety. Employee representatives are also selected to act as a
communication bridge with management to reflect employees’
opinions about matters related to occupational health and safety.
In addition, there are regular internal monitors by the quality
management team to ensure the effectiveness and compliance of
the health and safety management system, operational controls
and emergency preparation control procedures. To promote
the occupational health and safety education, the Group strictly
implements the employee safety training.
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The Group is committed to growing together with the community.
We understand the importance of the community engagement
and encourage our employees to participate in charity and
donation activities to strengthen our relationship with the domestic
community. During the year, the Group supported the infrastructure
construction in villages and towns nearby through donation. In
response to the development of T.I.O CITY by Zhuhai Municipal
Government, the Group proactively propagated this project and
tended to build Zhuhai Fintech Center into a solid foundation for
the financial industry and for innovation technologists to connect
and communicate with each other in Zhuhai and even around the
Greater Bay Area, promoting an industrial upgrading within the
region. In addition, the Group also supports educational programs
through establishing partnerships with domestic universities and
offering training programs and venues for educational purposes.

By leveraging our experience and expertise, we offer supports in
a wide range of areas in infrastructure construction, technology
development, education and etc., fostering the development of the
community and giving back to our society.

Promoting T.1.O CITY to advance industrial
upgrading
EfE=ReFlE|/|#H - 1B E I ERTTR

AREEFHEHE —RKRNEDS - RAIE
EHRSENERN  BEHRNBET2HEZK
EMBRIAD ﬁLﬁfﬁ/\EﬂiﬁzﬁEE’ﬂﬁ
& RAFR  AEBRBERHEERHE
HENEMREERTIE - RERIKERFFH

BERBR=ZZX MAVNERRE - ARERE
EE - BHBIKETLRBH R OITER R

HKAEMDEBERBRKNER S BEZEMBIFE
TR B E B R B pafEH - ﬂﬂﬁlﬁﬁ}?‘%%
BERAR - N AEERBHEE Wj( 2
VENBERATEHEEE - WRH |\u%
BERISHS#E -

RAERRBENERNER E%W?’*E&E’J
Ry AERREER BHRER  HE
Bz BE AT RHESIEMER - TE&E%iE
TR - BIROETE -

Letter of thanks for eliminating poverty

et

C BN IEKEE | B

EHEREERERAA —B-NFER

2018 FRER

2018 Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Directors and Senior [ Management Discussion

Report of
Directors

Financial statements
B®E

and Analysis

Management

BER

Corporate Governance
Report

ETERE

EREVE

EEE

REERE

=

ESERE

EEREE



The following table presents the list including but not limited to
the laws and regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant
impacts on the Group.

GENERAL

Constitution of the PRC

General Principles of the Civil Law of PRC

The Criminal Law of the PRC

Contract Law of the PRC

Company Law of the PRC

PRC tax laws

The Basic Law of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region of the PRC

Companies Ordinance

Inland Revenue Ordinance

LISTING
Listing Rules
Securities and Futures Ordinance

OPERATION ISSUES

Information security and privacy

Guidelines for the Supervision of Information Technology
Outsourcing Risks in Banking and Financial Institutions

Guidelines for the Administration of Outsourcing Risks in
Banking and Financial Institutions

Cybersecurity Law of the PRC

Intellectual property laws

Card organization

Rules and guidelines on the qualification certifications, quality
control certifications, security management for product
manufacturing and personalization enterprises

PCI" Card Production Physical Security Requirements

PCI Card Production Logical Security Requirements

! PCl stands for Payment Card Industry
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Product and service quality
The Work Safety Law of the PRC
The Product Quality Law of the PRC
Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of
Production License for Industrial Products
Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes

Anti-corruption
Law of the PRC against Unfair Competition

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ISSUES

The Environment Protection Law of the PRC

The Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

The Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

The Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

The Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Pollution From Environmental Noise

National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

The Labour Law of the PRC

The Labour Contract Law of the PRC

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

The Social Insurance Law of the PRC

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour

Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours of
Workers and Staff

Labour Relations Ordinance

Employment Ordinance

HEREBHRE (#)

IRIE -
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KPIs
BA R 4E MUIBE(KPI)

A. Environmental
ARIR

Aspect A1

EBmEA1

General disclosure

—REE

KPI'AT.1

KPI'A1.2

KPI'A1.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI'A1.5

KPI'A1.6

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BERBERX S IESGHREESIER

Emissions

29587

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

FHERIOAERBEEN - FUKETHBEET - BER

EBEEBVNEESFS

(a) BXE: Rk

(b) BEFUHETABEAZENHEEERRBAOHER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B TERE AR P IR BUR -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.

BERBAHME (S R (ER) BE

(A EES8M S1ENmetE) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity
FELAEEEYRES (B8 R(ER) =&
(WABEEEM - BIEZRETE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity
FrEAEEREEDAS (UMBAE) R(ER)ZE
(WA ESEMN - BERBTE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved

R PR E B i R TSR ©

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
MR REREEERZEYN T L  REELEENEHE
REFBRR °

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Section/Remarks
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Environmental
Management
Emissions Reduction
Waste Reduction and
Recycling

Appendix 1

RREE
PR
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Emissions Reduction
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Waste Reduction and
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE - EREARARE (&)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

BE SR A IR B (KPY) ERBAR B ESGRE I ER BE

Aspect A2 Use of resources EE@

BEA2 B 1 258

General disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, Environmental ‘§m

water and other raw materials. Management @iﬂ&

Resources Consumption é{i

— R EE BERERER(BIERIR - KREAMEME) B BUR - RGER =g
BIRE A i

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total ~ Resources Consumption

(kWh in '000s) and intensity
REAESWEER SLHEEER(NE - fEh) BEE EIREA
(ATFEFEREBAE) MEE (A EBESEN - BIERG

EEHRE

Chairman’s
Statement

B - 3«
22R
g
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Resources Consumption g&“:’;f
QROKEREE (MASEREN - SHERHHH) - AR tiE
g
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results ~ Resources Consumption =
achieved. 5
R BE IR AR AT 8 R PIS AR © BIREA 3 5B
T £
G 9%
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Resources Consumption § g&ﬁ
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results g=8
achieved. °
$ S U R KO AT (IR R 5 g
DARIRFH KR EE BI RS AR o sis
&0y
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Waste Reduction and
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Recycling
produced.
X mATABEMHNES (AN E) X (Es) TBER R R

[

5]

c

©

S 4

"
o

o ap

o o

e

s

o

2

S

]

BEEEBMUHRE -

Aspect A3 The environment and natural resources
[EEA3 BERRAER !
— ©
E tiu
General disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuers’ significant impact on the Environmental ééﬁ
environment and natural resources. Management gz#
—MRIKEE WRETABRRRERRNERENERZ BB RIEEHE E=8
O
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Emissions Reduction

environment and natural resources and the actions taken Green Product

to manage them. i
M E RS HIRBERRAERNEATER A BE IR e
ERREEAHETENTTE - REEMm
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KPls
B8 SR & WIS HE(KPI)

B. Social
B.AE
Aspect B1
fEEB1

General disclosure

—RIREE

Aspect B2
fEHEB2

General disclosure

—RIEE

KPI'B2.3

Aspect B3
JEmB3

General disclosure

—RRIEE

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
ERBER S MESGHREHESIER

Working conditions
TR

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer related
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity and
other benefits and welfare.

BEHWRERE BEREA - TERE - KA TS5

g Zfb - REBGUREAMGFEREN

(@) BX: &

(b) BTFHBITAEEAXZNEEEZRBROIFER -

Health and safety
REREZ2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FARELZE2TIEREMRREREERABEL TN :

(@) BE: &

(b) EFHETABEARENHEBERIROINER -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted and how they are implemented and monitored.
HMFT RN R R R L 2 - AREERITRER
FIVE o

Development and training

BREREI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BERTEERTT LIERE B MR HBUR -
R FEE) -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE - EREARARE (&)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B8 S 4 BB AR(KPI) BERBMERSESGHREHESIER BE
Aspect B4 Labour standards

[EEB4 ZITAR

General disclosure

—RRIE

Aspect B5
[EEB5

General disclosure
— R

KPI B5.2

Aspect B6
[ETHEB6

General disclosure

— IR E

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.5

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labour.

B IEE T sksaH& T ¢

(@) HEE: R

(b) HBTHETABEAZENEBEEERAGNER -

Supply chain management
HEEERE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain
ERMEENIRE R GRARBOR -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
BRI A EREED - mERTHERIBHN
HEBHE ARBEBBOHNRITRERTE -

Product responsibility
EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

BEMREERNRENRERLZS - BE  BEMLE

EEAKBR A ER

(@ BE: &

(b) EFHBETABEAZENEMEEZIROINER -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
fi ot BB 4 2 T AR PR AN ERE B RO 1B B -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
OB E ERHMRE RALBBUR - U RAERAITRER
JIE »

EHERARERERAA

Recruitment Policy
Appendix 1

BIEBER
B85 1

Supply Chain
Management

HrEE e

Supply Chain
Management

HERE R

Information Security
and Privacy
Appendix 1

=BT RER
B85 1

Information Security
and Privacy
ERZ R NEM

Information Security
and Privacy
SRLE KRBT
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

Eepvet ()] ERBEX S TESGHREIESIER 4= )z

Aspect B7 Anti-Corruption

fEEB7 RES

General disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
(@) the policies; and Appendix 1

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— MR BRI ILRRES - B1R - MEFFMOERER - RER
(@ HE: R Bt 8% 1
(b) BEFHBETABEAZENHEEERKAOIEER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
TRy 0I5 e S SR IRIR 0 LA EREII T REER 50K o REE
Aspect B8 Community investment
[EHEB8 HERE
General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Community Investment

needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
—REE BRI E2EREREEMTHRFEZNBEREAXESEY HELH
2 EEME N EABUR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Investment
X E RIS o HE2n
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDPAC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 126 to 267, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR S ETE T EAE )

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

BRETER

PR E S EERERMNIXHE - RAE
HAHEEPBERENBIR/EENE
o BUEEREARMBAERBEAMBR
REHABREETREN  RATEYHE
LERREHREBBNER -

Expected credit losses (“ECL") assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets

ERERKREREENEARFESE(REEEEE] MG

We identified ECL assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and contract assets
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgement and management
estimates in evaluating the ECL of the Group’s trade
receivables and contract assets at the end of the
reporting period.

BB EKRER LA REENTAMES BB GEHENS

MRESEE  BRERERNRARAEEE BSEEL
BHMBRRRPEEREH  URETH BEEERR

THRERERRAREENENEEEERTEIER
HIETR B IR B (hET

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's trade receivables
and contract assets net of allowance for doubtful debt
amounting to RMB413,840,000 and RMB13,564,000,
respectively. As explained in note 20 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, in the current year,
the Group adopted HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
recognised an additional impairment of RMB741,000 on
trade receivables as at 1 January 2018 in accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.
M20185F12A31H - EEEEKERRERAEE
(MK RIEEE) 95l A AR 413,840,000 T F A R
#13,564,0007C ° WAL A B IS RS M sE20 k2148
i BEEBAFTERN T HEETHHELENF S/
TAJWARBEEBHBHREENFIFRMBAEGRR - ©
20181 AVBEER T ARKE741,000 T EEFRE ©
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Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment of trade
receivables included:

BAHEEEFRNEREEBERMEZETFEE

o Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets;

s BHMEBEMAEBRERNEREEBREER
EVRASEFE )

o Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made
by the Group as at 1 January 2018 on initial
adoption of HKFRS 9;

o HIFE BEEMN2018F1A1BEXEMNT BB
E%E‘EE\'J%9%}%%%%%@%?%%?&#%%E’\JEEEE

o Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables aging analysis as at
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant sales agreements
and sales invoices; and

e MEARERERVEAEREKCANGEINE
T BREHEZE2018F1A18M2018F 124
BTHMEREFETRESDIT - E—LLBERE
FEERAEERREMEEERE - AR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

R S CTE T EE )

FEETEE @)

Expected credit losses (“"ECL") assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets (Continued)
EWERREREENEHEEBE(AHEESED
4l (&)

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets based on provision matrix through grouping
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering historical default rates and forward-
looking information of respective trade receivables
and contract assets. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information.

MABREMBHREMII7THE X BEEEETEERRE
BEEE EEZETRKERREREENELELNE
FAEMES®E  HABHUEEREXNER AET
D REMEFEKERREREENKSTHBREER
Bt BEEERNERABRAZHIANELAIEREZ
HE - WRBAEIEESETHE -

Details of the ECL are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EHMEEEEF BN NG M BERRMEIT7 -

Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment of trade
receivables included: (Continued)

B RKEFNEREEBRIGZEFEE : (B)

o Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018, including the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the trade debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix (with reference to historical default rates
and forward-looking information).

e HEREEEMIABUKERNAREEN2018F1
A1EM2018F 12 A3 AN EEEBEBEROE
RANHE  EREEBHEBAERBERSTD
AR RN EEERESERR P RAMGE
BERENER(EEELENTNMAREMLER) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR S ETE T EAE )

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

FEETEE @

Estimated allowance for inventories

FEREMSE

We identified the estimated allowance for inventories
as a key audit matter due to the management's
judgment required in identifying slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and determining the allowance for
inventories.

BB EEREGLAHIAHERETEE BRNEEE
FEEHBAF I REFETREF B L #IE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management identifies slow-moving
inventories and obsolete inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sales based on aging
analysis, and estimates the allowance for inventories
based on aging of inventories, technology changes
and current market demand. The carrying amounts of
inventories of the Group amounted to RMB211,952,000
as at 31 December 2018. Based on the management's
assessment, the allowance for inventories was
RMB53,837,000 as at 31 December 2018.

WRE MBI TAPTKRE - EEEREBEREONH
FIBHEHETBEARNEERHENRETE - URE
FEERER RNMEFNERNMSRREATERE -
BHZE2018F12A310 EEENTFEFRAERARYK
211,952,0007T - IRIBFE R ERTE - BE20185F 128
3Rz FEREER ARKS3,837,0007T -
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories
included:

B FEREEOREE ZFHEREFeE :

o Understanding the basis of the allowance for
inventories adopted by the Group;

. W BEEOTEHEERE

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging analysis of inventories to the relevant
documents including goods receipt notes;

o YHERBWEEREAMNMBERBEXHETHENR - A
HRTE R DT e EMIE

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the
management assessment on the identification
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories and
the sufficiency of the allowance for inventories
with reference to aging of inventories, usage or
sales record for aged-inventories, current market
conditions and technology changes;

e HEEEERBTERK MREFENERANHE
ERCEE ~ B AT 5k BT 5T P A Rl B
HARETFTENEEMURTFERENT M



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued) BARETEEHm@

Estimated allowance for inventories (Continued)

FEREMLT ()
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BRHE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories
included: (continued)

BMEFEREEOREEZFEREFeE - (8)

2018 £ AER

2018 Major Events

EEH/RE

Chairman’s
Statement

° For raw materials that no allowance have been

made, considering the subsequent usage of raw s
materials and tracing a selection of subsequent § o
usage of raw materials to the raw material é—égé
delivery notes; and gfgﬁg}
o HRRELBEORME - ZERERMEOHIERE g“’ﬁ
RIERALMERRERNRMHTEE : & f
.g L
° For finished goods that no allowance have %%ﬁ
been made, considering the subsequent selling g %’&E
prices of finished goods and comparing the unit g=p
[a]

costs of a selection of finished goods with their
subsequent selling prices.

o HRREHBHENKR  ZRKMOBEIHER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR S ETE T EAE )

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B A AN RS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE #
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

V2
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

124

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%F/\E\/

Htt 2H WA XK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2017
Notes RMB'000
Btaz ARMBFTT
Turnover 2 5 1,411,127 1,400,842
Cost of sales HER A (1,020,996) (983,661)
Gross profit ER 390,131 417,181
Other income HAd YA 6 88,089 78,274
Other gains or losses H i Esia 7 25,672 (49,830)
Reversal of impairment loss BOElER
on trade receivables VEREN SR 208 9,384
Impairment loss on amount due from FEUES & A RIFRIE 2
an associate VEREN S (11,460) —
Impairment loss on interest REERRZEE L
in an associate BEEE 17 (27,191)
Research and development costs A3 Ak AN (113,854) (109,053)
Selling and distribution costs SHE KR AN (106,020) (105,719)
Administrative expenses THHEX (37,489) (35,919)
Share of losses of associates FEIR B & R E) AR 17 (284) (5,554)
Profit before taxation BiAIAHE 8 207,802 198,764
Taxation iiE 10 (33,154) (34,287)
Profit for the year FEFNHE 174,648 164,477
Other comprehensive income (expense)  FEHMEEU A (FAX)
for the year
Item that may be subsequently AIREE BT D SR B 2
reclassified to profit or loss: EA -
— exchange differences arising on — REBINEREER
translation of foreign operations fEH =58 1,321 (1,021)
Total comprehensive income for FEZHWRAHLLE
the year 175,969 163,456
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

REEERAEMEEBAR@E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

g8z
2017 ‘gg,;%
Notes RMB’'000 SEd
Hat AREFTT
s
¢ o=
25%
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:  E/EEERE(EE) - o
Owners of the Company EiN/NEJEZZS N 164,477 -
Non-controlling interests FEPERR iR — o
ge
164,477 g«
Total comprehensive income (expense)  FERZEMEUA (FIs ) 42%8 ¢ § g%
attributable to: EEM
Owners of the Company KAREERA 163,456
Non-controlling interests FEIER = — g
228
5 2et
163,456 S<w
€ o [
& & B
2
Earnings per share BRAEN 12 -
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARED) 20.0 S m
— Diluted (RMB cents) —HE(ARED) 20.0 g %’“‘é
228
[a]
T8
god
g5
©
s 4
3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R IR R &R

At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H

2017
Notes RMB’'000
btat AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 13 335,019 335,921
Land use rights T A 14 26,206 26,665
Goodwill EES 15 1,375 1,375
Intangible assets A E 16 6,676 8,966
Interests in associates i /N P vy 17 — 27,475
Amount due from an associate JFE B 4 N R FRIE 23 — 819
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 29 9,104 8,730
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIFH 24 150,000 —
Fixed bank deposits HRITEAITFR 24 100,000 100,000
628,380 509,951
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 211,952 207,609
Trade receivables FEU s 20 413,840 417,729
Contract assets EREE 21 13,564 —
Other receivables and prepayments HAth pE AN TR 3K 22 40,665 45,197
Amount due from an associate FE Y Bk 28 N B FRIE 23 — 9,422
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFAER
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (2REEFTAEZE]
B E 18 232,649 —
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRRITIFR 24 15,573 111,309
Fixed bank deposits RITEHER 24 750,787 830,234
Bank balances and cash RITERRES 24 321,042 575,424
2,000,072 2,196,924
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables ENERRENEE 25 437,721 550,703
Contract liabilities aREE 26 27,176 —
Other payables H M RERT R 27 129,381 157,981
Government grants T A 28 3,000 17,700
Taxation FRIE 24,696 30,737
621,974 757,121
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,378,098 1,439,803
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e BRI R (®|)

At 31 December 2018 2018412 H31H

2017
RMB’000
ARETIT

Corporate
Information
EER

Notes

Wit

Financial
Highlights

BRHE

Total assets less current liabilities REERRBER 2,006,478 1,949,754

Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHBEE 29 26,395 19,871

2018 £ AER

2018 Major Events

Net assets EEFE 1,980,083 1,929,883

Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital R& 2 30 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves R 785,187 737,521

ETERE

Chairman’s
Statement

Equity attributable to owners of the RARVER AEE#ERS
Company 1,977,549 1,929,883
Non-controlling interests FEIERR i 2,534 —

and Analysis
BEBHRRDNT

Total equity A 1,980,083 1,929,883

REERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 267 were #E& R 2019E3A 15X ITREBE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 126 B X267 B4i A B EBRNER - A H
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: NTESEREREE -

=3

Management
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nV_\ /EI\ *E ﬁ '%E

B &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

Shares
held
under
Shares shares Share Non-
Share  award  award  options Translation Other  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  reserve  scheme  reseve  reserve  reserves  reserves  profits Total interests Total
Bt
Rfi%B  #BeE ERE AR FER
& B RERA B ENBE AMRE  iERE G fit & fit
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARHTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR
(Note)) — (Notei)
(i) (W)
At January 2017 MOTEIR1E 1,191,941 - (510 52586 4,900 4,631 81673 470 1873309 - 1873329
Profit for the year ERilE - - - - - - - Te4T7 164477 - le4dm
Other comprehensiveexpense ~ EEEMAERR
for the year - - - - (1,001) - - - (1,021) - (1.021)
Total comprehersive (expense) — EFAE(FENAS
income for the year - - - - (1.001) - — 164477 163456 — 163456
lssue of shares upon exercise of R EREMEAH
share options (note 30) Rithizz0) I} - - (189) - - - - 3 - 3
Recognition of equitysettled  IWEREENRAHRA
share-based payments (note 31) (%31 - W - 4426 - - - - 17163 - 17183
Forfeiture of share options BERT - - - (19 - - - 1991 - - -
Transfers &R - - - - - — N7 Q0714) - - -
Dividends recognised ARREMWEE)
a distribution (note 11) - - - - - - — (13475 (1347 — (13475
Shares vested under the shares — BER A B R
award scheme 58 - (7825) 7990 - - - - (987) (822 - (822)
om0 26 - — o (18185) (106900 — (1060
At 31 December 2017 H017E12A318 1,192,362 4912 (170) 54832 3879 2631 102387 546,002 1929883 — 1929883
Adjustment (note 2) 2 (:1)) - - - - - - - (741) (741) - (741)
T3 4% (702) B 3819 A6 103 5260 1929142 - 190
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mMEREZSH X @

For the year ended 31 December 2018 A& ZE2018F 12 A31H L FE

Share
capital

L
RMB000

ARETT

Profitloss)fo the year ERHE(8E)
Other comprehensive income for — £EE 2 EMA
the year

Total comprehensive income ~ EE2AAA (R )48
(expense) for the year

Recognition of equitysettled share- S [E&EEARAT
based payments (note 31) (Wa31)

Forfeiture of share options BRERN

Capital contrbution from non- 3-8 [ £ 8 RE
controling nterests('NCI’) /)2 &HEA

Deemed disposal of partia BARNERAZ

interest in a subsidiary EREATRE
Transfers =
Diidends recognised NEREMW)
as distribution (note 11)
Shares vested under the shares BN #E RN
award scheme 55
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A318

Shares
award
reserve

k%R
1]
RAB000

ARETR

Shares
held
under
shares
award
scheme
Bt
£Bity
KERf
RMB'000
MRETT

Share
options
reserve

RER
i
RMB000

ARETR

Translation
reserve

EXGR
RMB000

ARETR

Other  Statutory  Retained
reserves  reserves  profits

il
R ieRE AR
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBI00

Non-
controlling
Total  interests Total

$28
S
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARET
(Notei) — (Noteii)

(H) (K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mEREREH R HE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

132

Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves
into capital of a subsidiary of the Company, Goldpac Limited in 2011 and
contribution from a shareholder and share of other reserves of associates.

Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”"),
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after tax
based on their statutory financial statements. The statutory reserves may only be
used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or
to increase the capital of those subsidiaries.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

2017
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Operating activities KEES
Profit before taxation 154 A1 A1) 207,802 198,764
Adjustments for: KT SERAE
Gain on fair value of financial assets BARBEFAEBERZ
FVTPL TREEAABENS (2,649) —
Investment income from financial BARBEFABRZ
assets at FVTPL TREERERA (9,034) (3,815)
Interest income EWA (28,061) (23,374)
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - RENREBITE
equipment 43,916 44,475
Amortisation of intangible assets A ERH 2,290 2,290
Operating lease rentals in respect of T FEREGEHER S
land use rights 459 624
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEWE  WENMKREER
equipment 94 15
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWBR FORL B T
receivables (208) (9,384)
Impairment loss on interest in an B R R Z BRI E
associate 27,191 —
Impairment loss on amount due from FEU B & A R IR VA
an associate 11,460 —
Allowance for inventories TFEEE 2,887 4,925
Equity-settled share-based payments R EE RGN T 10,076 17,163
Share of losses of associates FEIREEE A RIEE 284 5,554
Operating cash flows before movements 2 E&E$EHRNELHERE
in working capital 266,507 237,237
Increase in inventories ZEEN (7,230) (1,322)
Decrease in contract assets GREERD 3,086 —
Increase in trade receivables FENE FRIE N (13,294) (68,375)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables H b pE s 18 R FE A~ A
and prepayments A (g ) 3,482 (20,560)
Decrease in contract liabilities ARAaERD (8,299) —
(Decrease) increase in trade and bills BB MR EMZE Rl )N
payables (112,982) 35,602
Increase in other payables H At & A< R AN 6,356 7,650
Decrease in government grants TR 468 Bl R (14,700) —
Cash generated from operations KEEBENRE 122,926 190,232
Taxation paid BAHIE (33,073) (40,923)
Net cash from operating activities KEEBFEIRE T 89,853 149,309
SHERSERERAT —TB-NEFEHR 53
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HERESERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2017
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Investing activities KREES
Redemption of financial assets BREA R BEFABRZ
at FVTPL SREE 490,000 765,600
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits IREVRITE BiTF K 1,171,285 160,850
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits R EFIRITIFR 125,263 73,789
Increase in amount due from JE LS B 2 N B FRIB A N
an associate (1,219) (963)
Interest received A E 29,111 23,374
Investment income received from BUIEZEAREEFABR S SRE
financial assets at FVTPL ERERA 9,034 3,815
Receipt of government grants WA B T 4 B — 3,000
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant BREWE  WEMEREIRA
and equipment 8 95
Placement of fixed bank deposits 5 HERTTE BATF 5K (1,080,838) (912,084)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERARBEABRZZRE
= (720,000) (765,600)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEEMIETER (179,527) (45,391)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WELEREN
equipment and land use rights b A4 (43,087) (202,174)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFAE ST (199,970) (895,689)
Financing activities BEEE
Dividends paid B B (140,289) (120,601)
Capital contribution from NC| IIERE R 2 EAREAN 3,265 —
Increase in dividend payable to FEAHE A EIE A0
employees = 1,498
Proceeds from issue of shares upon AT PR EMm TR
exercise of share options RFESEES = 232
Net cash used in financing activities B ESTAR ¢ R (137,024) (118,871)
Net decrease in cash and RekBeFEMRLFE
cash equivalents (247,141) (865,251)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January THTEBRSRREEEY 644,424 1,513,430
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [ER &g & 3,759 (3,755)
Cash and cash equivalents 12A31HKR & X
at 31 December ReEHEY 401,042 644,424
Analysis of the balances of cash and B FRReEEBMERDIT
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITER MBS 321,042 575,424
Fixed bank deposits which matured 316 A A AR R R 1T 7E HATF 5k
within three months 80,000 69,000
401,042 644,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and
ultimate holding company is Goldpac International (Holding)
Limited (“GIHL") (a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lu Run
Ting, who is also the chairman and executive director of
the Company. The Company acts as an investment holding
company while the Group is principally engaged in embedded
software and secure payment products for smart secure
payment and provision of data processing, equipment, system
platform and other total solutions for customers in a wide
business range including financial, government, healthcare,
transportation and retails by leveraging innovative financial
technology (“Fintech”).

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are set out in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R M )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

136

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018

HEED )
7N £F B 00 o A R A HT AT R AR
BRI B R MR EER

AEERANEEEREMNTATHE
A AE([EREHAAE])MR

2 N BB SRS ERMER]
BBV EHRERER SR TA
F955
EEYBHERER HEPAHZI
£ 155 AKX EREERT
BB (EBRTER  INEXZRIEN
LRELZEY) RE
—BEE22%
EETBMEED  UARRMD AEE
FE2R2MERT YRRz
A2
BRI RERER BEFBMERE
FASR 2 55T AR FA5R [ R
BAEH | —HtE
BEBIE®R
A AERIZEIGR
[&mTA |
BB G ER ER2014F %
285 2185 2016 F A~
BB RE
AERIF [E o
") — B
BB TR REEEHER
F4057 28] iR
BrUA T B oh - ANEE YT ML

AIRBMBHREENNRA - XRY
AEBMAFERZAFENTHRE
MR - MK EREFBRRT A
BEBR  ENEENTE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B RS AR MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue
and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained
profits and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue at a point in time when
the control of the embedded software and secure
payment products, data processing and equipment are
transferred to the customers at the designated locations.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R M )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

138

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

S T 2

Df 2

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

REBIETEBY KR
IR ERA ([ BB B 5
28 ]) @)

z1§%%ﬁ§%$%%w

RHEEFEHZWAm

BRRMERMBRERE
AISEISREANPERE

201851 A1 HE4RA SRR
KRR SHEOME W T FHE -
AZBIEZEZEEARTEY -

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017  Reclassification 2018*
R2018F1A1H
R20175 REEEMBRE
12A31H ERIE155
HIREE ENSENEE FEREE*
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Hizt ARETL AREFIL AREFL
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables &R (a) 417,729 (16,650) 401,079
Contract assets ARBE (a) — 16,650 16,650
Current liabilities ik =N
Other payables Hth R (b) 157,981 (35,475) 122,506
Contract liabilities ARBE (b) — 35,475 35,475
* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from the * 25| e BRRME B IS HRE &R

application of HKFRS 9.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. MR RZETEERBYBEH
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEB R ([ T8I
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEZER ) @)

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 2.1 BERUMBREELE S
Customers (Continued) REEFEHN ZH&)\(%@)
Summary of effects arising from initial BARNEBUMKREE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) Al 15 EENFERE

(#8)

Notes: Mt -

(a) At the date of initial application of HKFRS 15, included in the total (a) REREMNA  FREXRFHE
trade receivables amounting to RMB16,650,000, is related to the FREENREBRSCEAARKE
retentions held by customers. These balances were reclassified to 16,650,0007T « SRAH B EME
contract assets upon application of HKFRS 15. AERIE155R1% - ZEBRBRETD

BRAEREE -

(b) At the date of initial application of HKFRS 15, included in other (b) REXRMNE  EHEMREAR
payables amounting to RMB35,475,000, is related to advance #35,475,0000 2 FTEUGK - BRAK
from customers. These balances were reclassified to contract EBMEHRELERE ISR - ZF
liabilities upon application of HKFRS 15. BERETHIEAARAE -

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying RANE B ISR &S 2B 55 1550 &

HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of AEEEZE2018F12A31HH

financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its BEMBRARREERENE

consolidated statement of cash flows for the current year ROSTEBBERNTIREY - Kk
for each of the line items affected. Line items that were S EZHEARTEY -

not affected by the changes have not been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e gbr e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEIRBIETEEBUKER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEBWERHN ([ EABIK
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEZEA ) g
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 2.1 BEARAMBREERES
Customers (Continued) FREHEFSHNZWA @)
Summary of effects arising from initial BRRRBERMBREE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) AR ISHMELENTERE

(#)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HEREMBERARNTE
position
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
KRB
EBHE
HEER
BEW EfoHE E15%
&8 WEHE HNEE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Miat ARET T ARBFIT ARBFIT
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FEWE T (a) 413,840 13,564 427,404
Contract assets EREBE (a) 13,564 (13,564) —
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H At 3R (b) 129,381 27,176 156,557
Contract liabilities ERBE (b) 27,176 (27,176) —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ] REETEBHBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEBWERM ([ EEBMK
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEZEDD @

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 2.1 BBMBREERE S
Customers (Continued) FEEFEHN ZH&)\(@)
Summary of effects arising from initial BRARME B ERELE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) Al 15 EENFERE

(&)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HEREMERTROTEE)

position(Continued)

Notes: Bier

(a) Prior to the application of HKFRS 15, retentions held by customers (a) RINE B YRR LR 1558 AT -
was classified as trade receivables. For illustrative purpose of the HEEEBMNREBRE D EAEK
table above, retentions held by customers of RMB 13,564,000 was ER . FliREARSEEN - &
reclassified from contract assets to trade receivables. A AR13,564,000TH M EF

BENREFBEEREEENDA
EERRER -

(b)  Prior to the application of HKFRS 15, advance from customers (b)  HRAE B BIRELEAIFE 15585 -
was classified as other payables. For illustrative purpose of the BRI B AHE M EWER -
table above, advance from customers of RMB27,176,000 was FTHlREARKFAERN  @FAA
reclassified from contract liabilities to other payables. R#27,176,0007tWE FFE K &

GRAGEEN DB H MUK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e gbr e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEIRBIETEBU B R
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEANRN ([ FEY B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEZEA ) g
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 2.1 BEBMBREERIZES
Customers (Continued) REEFEHNZWA @
Summary of effects arising from initial BIRRANE B EREE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) BISE1SEEENTERE

(&)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows HESHEESRERNETE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
REEH
BERMEK
HE%EAR
HREW EFoHE %155
-] HEEE & EE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT AREFIT
Increase in trade receivables  JEY S FRIZ AN (13,294) 3,086 (10,208)
Decrease in contract assets BRIEBERD 3,086 (3,086) —

Increase (decrease) in other  Hfth FE T ZIE hn Rt 4>)

payables 6,356 (8,299) (1,943)
Decrease in contract liabilities & R& &R (8,299) 8,299 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R T E G AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. R RASIEET BB MR ﬁ
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 43 B R4k ([ B 8 B 78 33
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEZEL ) @) -

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the 22 BBMBHREEREI
related amendments eI AERABBEE £
Z
5K
In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 REBRAREZRMN T EBIB %
Financial Instruments and the related consequential WMEKAEIE LM T ARYH §§

amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and contract
assets and (3) general hedge accounting.

MEEMBHREENNRER
7] e BAYBMELRFEIRN
MTHESR  BEMEBEEMN
TRABHNIEESE - Q2/
BEENMAREEMNTBHEERBRE

Financial
Highlights

BRHE

ETERE

Chairman’s
Statement

(RMEEERDAG) S -

it

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the BIEESHEREERF IS g“’?ﬁu
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied BEEBRR REBBEEEMRT 2

the classification and measurement requirements EEMRMELRB|EISE - I g -

(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively HWEZE2018F1 A1 (B XER ﬁé%ﬁ

to instruments that have not been derecognised as H)mARZIEHERN /T AR Egﬁ

at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has HAstE2MoBEER(eEEHE é%ﬁ
[a]

not applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018
are recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

BEEBEXTZRE) WHEE
TRPHAZE  MABYHEZE2018
F1ATABERIEERNSRT
EfER Fill Bkl B HiEITE W
FE - R2017F 12 A31HHE
BIBEEE MM 2018F1 A1 AR
MRMEE BN EEDERES
2R 53 B2 ) B8 A0 EL 4 4 25 4B Ak 2B
o ALEREFT2IILERES -

Report of
Directors
ESERE

Corporate Governance
Report
TEEREE

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not Hit - IHBE SR FE39 3 é;ﬂnﬂ
be comparable as comparative information was prepared gem T A RN EFRES ééﬁ
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and HE D LB E B Rl e N EfE A L §§ﬁ
Measurement. Mo Egﬁ

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R M )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2.

144

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. I RLIET BB ER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FEANERM ([ FEBBE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS WEZER]) @

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of trade receivables from goods and
services subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

22 BERMBHREERE9

HEBMTARARGET
()

BB R BREER
FORELENTERE

TRFIBER2018F1 1B
RERNE - IRBE BN EHREE
Ao R B BT A FE 3957
HERREREEBFENKREE
) % AR 75 1) FE AN & SR A 2 BN T

= °

Trade
receivables
from goods Retained
and services profits
REEYR
PR %5 69 B W & X R EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Jiipea ARBTIT AREFTT
Closing balance at 72017 12A318/
31 December 2017- HKAS 39 HIRAE - B A G5
R 3957 401,079 1,929,883
Effect arising from initial BRRWNE BV RS
application of HKFRS 9 FRIFEREENTE
Remeasurement Ea
Impairment under ECL model FEHEEEEEAXT @)
Z BME (741) (741)
Opening balance at 1 January 2018  #R2018F1H1HH
HY)ERER 400,338 1,929,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

me KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Note:
(a) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all contract assets and trade
receivables. To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
the contract assets.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit loss allowance of
RMB741,000 has been recognised against retained profits. The
additional loss allowance is charged against trade receivables
from goods and services.

All loss allowances for trade receivables from goods and services
as at 31 December 2017 reconciled to the opening loss allowance
as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:
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HEm T ERMEEIEET
(4&)
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it -
@ EREEERERT2AE

AEBRANFT B HREERF
SR EMBRREEREK
BEFRNKGBEREERE - &R
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Amounts remeasured through opening retained profits REAR D BEEF B EF T2 741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEIRBIETEBU B R
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEANRN ([ EEBY B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEZEA ] @
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue BEMEERERNWFITR
but not yet effective RIETTEBMBREER
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBETEREFEAATERMER
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet REBZFIREETEBY RS
effective: R -
HKFRS 16 Leases! BAMBmEER HE
F165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? EBTEHELED REEHS
E175%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax &8 (BRI BHRE FEHRER T
Treatments! ZELZET) T e M
—REFE235%
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* BEVBREED EHIER
FEI21EE]
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BEVBMELER BEBEBHECTE
Negative Compensation’ EXErvd I 1~ ZR A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERYEMELED KREHERAEBRE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F105 BB WEEDE Y
Associate or Joint Venture? S YERIZE 2857 BREELE
ZAEE] T A2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Materials BB AER] [EEW | ZERS
and HKAS 8 FVRREEG
AR ZE R 2 1E7]
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or EE &R sHEHER ~ 4R
Settlement! F195 2185 AR
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates BB GEHER B ME SRR
and Joint Ventures' F285R 2185 RHER
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRTIEIHREEN 2015F E20174F
2015 - 2017 Cycle! 21E3] RERZ BAEY
s 2R F
SR
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue EEAEMRERWHTR -
but not yet effective (continued) RIETTEBMBREER B
() T2
gt&-
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 7 K2019F 1 A1H 3z #Fits.z F B+ 2 =
ﬂ ~N
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 RGET 2 AR 2RI 2 FEHRE é é%
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U n
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 K2021F 14103z #FitEz FZHR~E -
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4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 4 HIERABL2020F1 A1H 2 A%E — § 5%
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o) ©
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 EHEHEEWIEERN g
s
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 5 2020 1 4103tz #Fits.2 FZ B +E & m
# s5m
w @
Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors BRTHRENFIBBTHREE SsR
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other Bl - RRBIEETBFTEREMAFTR -
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact RIS E B HREER AT TE RS N
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable ARTeHEEHBRREKERY %ﬁﬁ
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions
to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted
as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to
subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flow by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised assets for
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is
a leasee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they are owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosure are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group as lessee has non-
cancellable operating lease commitment of RMB9,088,000 as
disclosed in note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB1,636,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as
additional lease payment and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair-value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group'’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGU), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGU) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associates other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or services (or

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods that are substantially the same.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or services.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i. e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable the future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when there
has been a transfer of risks and rewards to the customer,
no further work or processing is required by the Group,
the quantity and quality of the goods has been determined
with reasonable accuracy and standard, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonable assured. This is
generally when title passes and the goods have been delivered
to the designated locations for the sales of magnetic strip
cards, smart cards and the related personalisation services.
Revenue from the sales of on-site card issuance equipment
and the related revenue from the provision of on-site card
issuance system solutions are recognised when the equipment
are delivered and the services are provided at the designated
locations and after inspection of the equipment.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries is recognised
when the owners’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
construction in progress are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B RS AR MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using the exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of the translation reserve.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and the related verification
procedures have been completed and approved by the
relevant authorities.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF") are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior periods. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in pofit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Warranties

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
the relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the
date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s
obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payment
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBERm)

(Continued)
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Classification and subsequent measurement of THEBEEN S ENEETE (IRIE ;%E
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in Btat2z B (L RN E BRI 53R & 2E éﬁﬁ
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued) FIsE98E 1) () 2

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains or losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, other receivables, amount due
from an associate, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits
and bank balances and contract assets). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(ii)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a)

186

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over three years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i. e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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188

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the below basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables are each assessed as a separate group.
Amount due from an associate is assessed for
expected credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status; and
o Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying amount of
these debt instruments/receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
amount due from an associate, pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables have
been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised are the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables are reduced
by the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
in recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are not taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits. Any excess of the amount
received upon exercise of the options over the price paid
by the employee share trust to purchase the shares initially
is accounted for directly in equity, for example in retained
profits or another part of equity specified by local law and
regulations.

Share award scheme

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
shares award reserve. The cost of acquisition of the Company’s
share held for the share award scheme is recorded as treasury
shares (shares held for share award scheme). At the time when
the awarded shares are vested, any differences between the
amount previously recognised in shares award reserve and
the relevant amount of the shares held under shares award
scheme reserve will be changed/credited to retained profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of awarded shares that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to the shares award reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to withhold an
amount for an employee’s tax obligation associated with a
share-based payment and transfer that amount, normally
in cash, to the tax authority on the employee’s behalf. To
fulfil this obligation, the terms of the share-based payment
arrangement may permit or require the Group to withhold the
number of equity instruments equal to the monetary value
of the employee’s tax obligation from the total number of
equity instruments that otherwise would have been issued to
the employee upon exercise (or vesting) of the share-based
payment (i.e. the share-based payment arrangement has a
“"net settlement feature”).

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares to fund
the payment to the tax authority in respect of the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment
as repurchase of vested equity instruments, therefore, the
payment made shall be accounted for as a deduction from
equity for the shares withheld, except to the extent that the
payment exceeds the fair value at the net settlement date of
the equity instruments withheld.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for inventories

The Group carries out inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and provides allowance for inventories.

The directors of the Company reviews the inventory aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period and identifies the
inventories that are no longer suitable for use in production
or sales. The directors of the Company estimate the allowance
for inventories based on aging of inventories, technology
changes and current market demand. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a further impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts
of inventories of the Group were RMB211,952,000 (net of
allowance of RMB53,837,000) (2017: carrying amount of
RMB207,609,000, net of allowance of RMB50,950,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment and provision of ECL
for trade receivables and contract assets

At 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company review
the aging analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period and identify the long-aged receivables
that are no longer probably to be recovered in the future.
The Group considers the aging of trade receivables, credit
portfolio of the debtors, default or significant delay on
payments and makes necessary allowance for doubtful debt
where appropriate. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a further impairment loss may arise.

At 31 December 2018, the Group uses provision matrix to
calculate ECL for the trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings as
groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.
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%ﬁ$%%ﬂ%2igﬂ
IR (1K)

BREREEREERE®N
SARBEHEESRBEMGE

MR2017%F 128318 ARBREER
WMEMREHEUREROERER DT
Al 1 R AT e A A U B B R AR B Y
BUWER AEEESEWRERNE
B BEEANEHRAS  BEHERK
BESANSN - WER SRR IR
AIRERIEHMVENEE - ERKN
ReRe N NREEE  KHRERE
SUANIRIZ R B S EFR(K - BRI 88
FEEHE—PRREE -

M2018%E12A318 » AEEMBEME
EEERERERMEREENTES
EEEE - BHEZERBAEERUE
BEXANEBEADHEEHRIE BT
Mo BEEEENREBETBSHRA
BN A ESHEFAEENSE
RAGMEEMEBENAREEELE
HE - NEERER  SEmEMKE
BWE (L EFFHEEBANESLE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR5 B S R OR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment and provision of ECL
for trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in note 20 and note 21
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables from goods and services were RMB413,840,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debt of RMB7,595,000) (2017:
carrying amounts of RMB401,079,000 net of allowance for
doubtful debt of RMB7,254,000). As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying amounts of contract assets were RMB13,564,000
and no allowance for doubtful debt was made.
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BRERKSEREERER
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M2018F 12 A31H kB EYW X
REHEBKEFNDERERSARE
413,840,000 T (E k& BAARKE
7,595,000 T )R BR B 18 ) (2017 F BR
MmE A AR 401,079,0007T @ 24
braEE A AR7,254,0007T K R BR &
%) > R2018%F12A3180 * AREE
BREE A AR 13,564,000 @ KaTi2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e RME (#E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BXHERTHEHR
INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2018 REBZ2018F12A31ALZFE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts HEFEHAZWARD

with customers

Embedded
software
and secure Platform
payment and
products service Total
BAXEHER
REXNER FTARERK et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT ARETTT

Types of goods EYER
Embedded software and RAREG 2
secure payment products Eo 1,110,420 - 1,110,420
Data processing BB EE - 157,268 157,268
Equipment B - 143,439 143,439
Total 4o = 1,110,420 300,707 1,411,127
Timing of revenue L ON =1
recognition
A point in time RE R 2 1,110,420 300,707 1,411,127
Geographical markets WET S
Overseas and the special BINR B BFERITEER
administrative regions of (T&E])MBFIEFR
Hong Kong (“Hong Kong”)  {TIH[& ([#&F9])
and Macao (“Macao”) 67,051 15,142 82,193
Mainland China AR A B, 1,043,369 285,565 1,328,934
Total =t 1,110,420 300,707 1,411,127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

For embedded software and secure payment products, data
processing and equipment, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been shipped to the designated location (delivery).
The normal credit period is 30 to 150 days upon delivery. A
contract liability is recognised for sales in which revenue has
yet been recognised. Sales-related warranties associated with
the goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as
an assurance that the goods sold comply with agreed-upon
specifications. Accordingly, the Group accounts for warranties
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets consistent with its previous accounting
treatment.

The contracts for embedded software and secure payment
products, data processing and equipment are for periods of
one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Segment information has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports which are reviewed by the
Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker, in order to allocate resources to the operating and
reportable segments and to assess their performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

204

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

Embedded software and secure
payment products for smart secure
payment

Provision of data processing,
equipment, system platforms and
other total solutions for customers
in a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare,
transportation and retails by
leveraging innovative Fintech

Embedded software and -
secure payment products

Platform and service -

Each operating and reportable segment derives its turnover
from the sales of products. They are managed separately
because each product requires different production and
marketing strategies. For segment reporting, these individual
operating segments have been aggregated into a single
reportable segment due to similar nature of the products.

Segments results represent the gross profit earned by each
segment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g R e EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segment recognised in a point in time:

5. EEERIEBER @

AT BAEEZAIREDFRE—F

RN EXBNREAZOMN

Turnover Results
R B
2017 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETF T AREET T
Sales to external parties of RINREE 7 e
— embedded software and ~ — #x AR EEFI
secure payment products TEYTER 1,110,420 1,149,968 271,549 312,315
— platform and service — & kiR 300,707 250,874 118,582 104,866
1,411,127 1,400,842 390,131 417,181
Research and development  #FZEAL A
costs (113,854) (109,053)
Other operating expenses HiiEZEEH (143,509) (141,638)
Other income, gains or losses EfbUg A -
Wi sk S 18 53,549 51,070
Interest income F B A 28,061 23,374
Operating profit FegwlbE 214,378 240,934
Investment income from BAREBEAED
financial assets at FVTPL ZERMEERE
WA 9,034 3,815
Net exchange gain (loss) 0 WUk (1B R) /FE 23,117 (49,815)
Share of losses of associates  JE{EEE A RIE1E (284) (5,554)
Reversal of impairment loss on 1[5l fE I & ZURE
trade receivables E51E 208 9,384
Impairment loss on amount  [fEUEE & N B FUE 2
due from an associate EEE (11,460) —
Impairment loss on interest  REEL AT 2 R
in an associate DEREY SE (27,191) —
Profit before taxation i B A 207,802 198,764
SHEBEERERAT —B-NFFEH 205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5.

INFORMATION (continued)

The management of the Company makes decisions according
to the operating results of each segment. No information of
segment assets and liabilities is available for the assessment
of performance of different business activities. Therefore, no
information about segment assets and liabilities are presented.

Other information

Turnover from external customers attributed to the Group by
location of the operations of the customers is presented as
follows:

EEERDHBER @

ARREREBEREEDHMEEREN
HRE - EDHEERREBEERA
RAFBEIRAEHEBHHRR -
b WEEHOHEERABER -

Hft &

AEBRANBECPNERBEREP
M EREE D 25T ¢

2017
RMB’'000
ARMBFTT

Turnover B
— Mainland China — R A 1,328,934 1,312,173
— Overseas, Hong Kong and Macao — BN - BAFRP 82,193 88,669
1,411,127 1,400,842
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

me KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Other information (continued)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets except for
financial instruments and deferred tax assets by location of
assets is presented as below:

EEERDHBER @)

HiaER @)

AEBERESBMTAREERIEEEMNU
INZFTBIERBEEZRFAAHE D2
Wanr

2017

RMB’'000

AREET T

Hong Kong BB 171,587 179,342
Mainland China R A 197,689 221,060
369,276 400,402

Information about major customer

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there was one
customer with turnover of RMB152,019,000 in aggregate
(2017: same customer with turnover of RMB151,473,000 in
aggregate) from the segments of both embedded software
and secure payment products and platform and service which
accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total turnover.

OTHER INCOME

FBEEEFNESR

HZE2018F12A31BIEZ2FE - B
BARNBHFMNZE2ZHERMEES R
REDPE—BREPNEEFEAG
B AR 152,019,000 7T (2017 £ :
BA—E2EFPHNEXBRTAARYE
151,473,0007T) ' G REEBEESE
B910% LA £ ©

HAb A

2017

RMB’'000

ARBTT

Government grants IEgER e 31,091 23,304

Interest income F BUA 28,061 23,374
Investment income from financial assets BAREBEFAERZ

at FVTPL PRMEERERA 9,034 3,815

Value-added tax refund 18 (B R E T 18,987 24,905

Others HAith 916 2,876

88,089 78,274
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OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES

7. HiblsmsEE

2017
RMB’'000
AREFTT
Net exchange gain (loss) fE AWz (18K FE 23,117 (49,815)
Gain on fair value changes of financial BAREBEFAER ISR
assets at FVTPL BEZARBEZES K 2,649 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and REWE  WEMXREEIE
equipment (94) (15)
25,672 (49,830)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BiAIFIHE
2017
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Profit before taxation has been arrived HAIFEE bR -
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EE5Me(Mi79) 17,399 20,672
Other staff costs HiiE B 197,650 167,468
Other staff's equity-settled Hibg B AR EE
share-based payments A% 1D 2 A~F 6,896 11,329
Other staff’s retirement benefits H e BiRIKET
scheme contributions STEIH K 6,879 5,903
228,824 205,372
Allowance for inventories included in cost of sales &+ A S5 Ak AN 917 &5 B 45 2,887 4,925
Amortisation of intangible assets m B EREE 2,290 2,290
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AR & 1,608 1,508
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMEETE
equipment 43,916 44,475
Operating lease rentals in respect of REHERSD
— land use rights — T HbE AR 459 624
— office premises —WRE 7,567 7,685
— machinery — Hes 2,041 —
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERERI 2 FEKAN 833,630 810,877
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EEX -  ERHTEHEIAN tik
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEHMEERMS 534
EMPLOYEES —
S5k
2017 §§§
RMB'000
ARBTFE i,
b
5
Directors’ fees EER 733 676 E%
Other emoluments to executive directors EMFHRITEFNHE —
— basic salaries and allowances — EARF o EEH 8,385 8,445 £ Eyn
— bonus — B4T 5,016 5629 b
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — 3R {K4& 5 24 5% 85 88 S e
— equity-settled share-based payments — DRERAE ARG T 3,180 5,834 .
i
22R
17,399 20672 Sk
The bonus of the directors was determined with reference EEgHARREAEERES HAK é .
to the Group’s performance, individual performances and AR AT LM IS S st BRI E - —
comparable market statistics. § .
Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (“the Chief Executive”) EEREHNRARARABEERAITE @ fib £ 5&@
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed below include NS ETEREE  BIERAEETE .§§m

those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. BHITE FTIRME RS E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e gbr e NEESE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9.
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

sl

BB 2 bR R R A 7 55 FRR
BrEERERAGTEAEE Y BE
m -

2017
RMB’000
ARET T
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Lu Run Ting EEELE
— basic salaries and allowances — ERFSFMER 3,578 3,617
— bonus — N4 2,292 2,574
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — E{RIEFIETEI4tEL 15 16
— equity-settled share-based payments — NESEENROZA 277 669
6,162 6,876

Mr. Lu Runyi ERREE
— basic salaries and allowances — EAFH o R 1,059 1,071
— bonus — NAL 557 625
— retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ — BRI EH B % 15 16
— equity-settled share-based payments — UEREENROZN 754 1,373
2,385 3,085

Mr. Hou Ping R

— basic salaries and allowances — EXEH 2R 2,352 2,377
— bonus — D4 1,834 2,059
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — RREFIEH 21t 50 15 16
— equity-settled share-based payments — NEREENRO M 1,017 1,787
5,218 6,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

me KRR (&)

2018 MEZ2018F12A318IL2FE

2017
RMB'000
ARETTT
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued) BITES(E)
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong EpEEE

— basic salaries and allowances — BEAFEFER, 770 767
— bonus — N4 63 71
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREF TR 20 20
— equity-settled share-based payments — DEREEHRO T 453 813
1,306 1,671

Mr. Wu Sigiang (Note) REBILE(HE)
— basic salaries and allowances — ERF S FER, 626 613
— bonus — D4 270 300
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRBEHFTEMEFR 20 20
— equity-settled share-based payments — UEREENROZN 679 1,192
1,595 2,125
16,666 19,996

Note: Mr. Wu Sigiang was appointed as executive director on 18 May 2017.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

Mt - REBSESEER2017F5F18BEZE R
TEE -

LRARTEEZHEREEEARA
RAEEEHZREE -

2017

RMB'000

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EHTESE ARETT
Mr. Ling Wai Lim EEREE

— directors’ fees —Be 169 106

169 106

The non-executive director’'s emolument shown above was for
his services as director of the Company.

Mr. Ling Wai Lim was re-designed from non-executive Director
to executive Director with effect from 15 March 2019.

LRFRATEE RS TEREER
ARRAEEZRGE -

BB AR 2019F3 A 158 B IEH
TEERATANITES -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S . . TEHEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID & @)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
2017
RMB'000
AR®ETT
C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BV EHITES
Mr. Ye Lu S-S
— directors’ fees — e 169 106
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BXBRAE
— directors’ fees — g 226 228
Mr. Zhu Lijun (resigned on 18 May 2017) RUBERE
(7201745818 ABHT
— directors' fees — e - 65
Mr. Liu John Jianhua BiEEL s
— directors’ fees — e 169 171
Total /Nt 564 570
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LB TERTES I NS TERE
above were for their services as directors of the Company. ERARRIZEZZREE -

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EX - BERHTEHEI[
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEETMEEME @
EMPLOYEES (continued)
The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 REZE2018F12A31BZ2FERAUK
December 2018 included three (2017: three) directors of the SHMALTBRE=6(20174F  =41)
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. EF HEHeFBINLER BREZ
The remuneration of the remaining highest paid individuals FEEHTEN  AEEHTHRS
who are neither a director nor Chief Executive of the Company HMALHMSWT -
during the year were as follows:
2017
RMB’000
ARBFTT
Employees EE
— basic salaries and allowances — EARF S ER 2,375 2,393
— bonus — D4 909 990
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — R {R38F 5+ 24 2% 63 63
— equity-settled share-based payments — UERGEENRD 1,133 1,975
4,480 5,421
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the BREFEUIIGRFMATHASET
directors of the Company whose fell within the following XEHEN :

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

BEAR

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001##%3,000,000% 1 2 —
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001;8 ¥ % 3,500,000/ ¥ — 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAEERN NEBREREEZNT
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including ZEMBES AT (BREEELEE )X
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon RHERZBINE BN € E B R B B hn A AN
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There EFMNREBN R EBNEE o s
was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief EENEFANTEREARENXRE
Executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during WEEAEE -

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

10.

214

TAXATION 10. HiIE
2017
RMB'000
AREFIT
The (charge) credit comprises: () AEEE :
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax RE AR
("EIT") ([¥EmEHR) (21,497) (31,180)
Underprovision of EIT in prior years BEFELEMSH
FHE 2 (2,332) (1,906)
(23,829) (33,086)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABFEFH (3,257) (405)
Overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFENEHZRE
in prior year 82 234
(27,004) (33,257)
Deferred taxation (note 29) EERIAE(KT7229)
Current tax REFEETHR (6,150) (10,429)
Underprovision in prior years BAFERTE — 9,399
(6,150) (1,030)
(33,154) (34,287)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HKD2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKD2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will

continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RERNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

TAXATION (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, starting from the current year, the
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HKD2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HKD2 million.

The EIT is calculated at the applicable rates in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are subject
to EIT at 25% except that Goldpac Limited is approved for
3 years as enterprise satisfied as a High-New Technology
Enterprise and entitles the preferential tax rate of 15% in
2017, 2018 and 2019.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only
the profits earned by Goldpac Limited prior to 1 January 2008,
when distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered
with the exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its
Implementation Rules, dividend distributed out of the profit
generated thereafter, shall be subject to EIT at 10% or
reduced tax rate if tax treaty or arrangement applies. Under
the relevant tax arrangement, withholding tax rate on dividend
distribution to the qualifying Hong Kong resident companies is
5%. Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned
since 1 January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

10. BiE @)

RABEERBVITHE B WA
M SBEEGREYBREPIELTE
Ko HEEH - HAFEFR  BH2008
BEGTERBRF AN E SRS E
FA8.25%FTE + HiB2008 B HH
BEFGHAER16.5%TE -

@ % 118 BRI o7 B Ut B A0
RERBANBEH -

NN B EY AR B R Y B B A B3R 25%
M RBMDERNER - EEHESR
RAGEHRT AL E - I
Al A 201745 ~ 2018F K 2019F 2%
15% KB BT K o

R IE B RS K B R B 7% 48 BB H(2008)
FIREABA - RAIEINEEEED
DIk - RBESHEARAFN2008
F1A1B Z BRI FIE AT %4 T8N
oo AT IRIBREFERIESEIBRE
7GR EEHMAIEIMERTE - UE
BELENFESKERER - B1E10%
(MBI TR L HER) RIERF
KEMPEMSGH - REBABEHRKE
B 2ETEERBEEERARRKRE
RFBITL K A5% - 820084118
BEINORSEFEEERBEEMLE
R5% M EFHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M| R M )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. ﬁIE(?E)
Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation FERBX EERATF A ERNOT
as follows:
2017
RMB’'000 %
ARBTIT

Profit before taxation B FR BT A 207,802 198,764
Tax at the applicable income REA S ETEH

tax rate (Note) I (K aE) (51,951) (25.0) (49,691) (25.0)
Tax effect of expenses not AT H0HL 3 2 BB 7S

deductible for tax purpose a8 (12,965) (6.2) (17,905) (9.0)
Tax effect of income not BEMBWABT

taxable for tax purpose we 13,457 6.5 3,787 1.9
Utilisation of tax losses FRARER 2 KRB

previously not recognised — = 1,248 0.6
Tax effect of tax concession  FRIBEEMTHETE 25,659 12.3 31,193 15.7
Tax effect of different tax rate FEEMIIE A EAER

of subsidiaries operating in & & KB A

other tax jurisdiction TRBRENHGZE 1,024 0.5 503 0.2
Tax effect of share of losses of fE{LEEE A FIEE 2

associates Mg (71) (0.1) (1,389) (0.7)
Mainland China withholding 7% & %I;E &) & [

tax on undistributed earnings A FEFNFL (6,524) (3.1) (9,760) (4.9)
(Under) overprovision in prior @7 5 E 25

years BE(TR)ZR (2,250) (1.1) 7,727 3.9
Tax effect of tax losses not KRR Z HiGERE

recognised BB 467 0.2 — —
Tax charge and effective tax FEMNFEES K EE

rate for the year BE (33,154) (16.0) (34,287) (17.3)

216

Note: The rate applied is the applicable tax rate in the Mainland China where

the operation of the Group is substantially based. BEHEE

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R T E G AE )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

DIVIDENDS

1. K2

2017
RMB’000
ARETT
2018 Interim - HK4.0 cents per ordinary share 2018F FEPH - Tk
(declared on 17 August 2018 TR s 4. 01l
and based on 833,561,000 shares) (20188 F17HEIR
$4833,561,000%)
2017 Interim - HK4.0 cents per ordinary share 2017FFEFREH—FX
(declared on 17 August 2017 TRAAE 4,01
and based on 833,561,000 shares) (FR2017F8A17BEIK -
£71833,561,000/%) 28,954 28,105
2017 Final - HK10.0 cents per ordinary share 2017FFEEARH -
(declared on 16 March 2018 and @A 10,011
based on 833,561,000 shares) (#2018%F3816HE K
$4833,561,000%)
2016 Final - HK7.0 cents per ordinary share 2016 F FE R —FK
(declared on 21 March 2017 and @B T .01l
based on 833,561,000 shares) (RA2017F3A21BEK
£71833,561,0004%) 68,060 51,353
2017 Special - HK6.0 cents per ordinary share 2017FFERRIRE —BK
(declared on 16 March 2018 TR A 6,011
and based on 833,561,000 shares) (#2018%F3H816HE K
#4833,561,000%)
2016 Special - HK6.0 cents per ordinary share 2016 FFERFIRE -k
(declared on 21 March 2017 and TR A 6.0
based on 833,561,000 shares) (R2017F3R821AEIK -
£72833,561,0008%) 40,836 44,017
137,850 123,475

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents (2017: HK10.0 cents) and a special dividend
of HK6.0 cents (2017: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

EREEEERERAA

WMERE  ESSEZEREZE2018
F12A3MALZFEIRERAKRE ST
A BA S 10.01L ( 20176 BB
10.01) - AR5 RIAR BB A% B AR
e.0l(2017F A& ®e6.01L) - BZA
ERENBRITHREFAFAE LA
NARER Z HEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

12.

218

Bt 75 ¥R R B EE ()

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

BREF

BENARBEA ANTRER N
SERNITIRIEATBIRETE -

2017
RMB"000
ARMBFTT
Earnings &7
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings  FTEEREKRBFIFTEREN
per share (profit for the year attributable to ~ BF| (& QBHHE A B
owners of the Company) FEFHE) 175,187 164,477
‘000
F A%
Number of shares BRHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HESREARBFEFTRAL
shares for the purpose of basic earnings NGBk (M 7E)
per share (Note) 826,134 822,949

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years has
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company
by an independent trustee under the share award scheme of the
Company.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (as defined in note 31(a)) and share awards because
the exercise prices of those options and the option under
fair value of those share awards were both higher than the
average market price for shares for both 2018 and 2017.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMIEHRRMEEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - BERRE 5%
Furniture, —
fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction = L
Buildings  equipment vehicles machinery  in progress Total § ;i 2
ffh %8 C®
BF e fE  HBERHR HRIR h -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 % W”;
ARBTL  ARETr  ARBTR  ARETRT  ARETR  AR¥TR Epn
S ©
cosT Ak 3
At 1 January 2017 R017E1A18 57,732 44 475 5073 248,031 22,551 377,862 £
Currency realignment Eas - (42) (61) - - (103) E jgj #
Additions RE 174,181 8,699 268 5116 24,707 212,97 SEH
Disposals RE — (578) (216) (7.860) — (8,654)
Transfers L1 - - - 18,557 (18,557) - s
Se&
At 31 December 2017 20175124318 231913 52,554 5,064 263,844 28,701 582,076 2 ?%
Currency realignment BEAZ - 3 43 - - 75 g ;é E%
Additions FE - 7,779 380 12,006 2,922 43,087 g
Disposals RE - - (241) (128) - (369) =
Transfers &Y - - - 20,19 (20,196) - 5
At 31 December 2018 20185127318 231913 60,365 5,246 295,918 31427 624,869 § ;-55?
DEPRECIATION i °©
At 1 January 2017 R017E1A18 24142 25,180 2,53 158,708 — 210,283 S
Currency realignment BEAZ - (36) 23) - - (59) € QE
Provided for the year EERE 7314 10,303 503 26,355 - 44,475 258
Eliminated on disposals RERHHE - (578) (216) (7,750) - (8,544) .
At31 December 2017 R0TF12831R 31,456 34,869 2517 177313 - 246,155 g :%%
Currency realignment BEAR - 28 18 - - 46 s g
Provided for the year FERE 8,032 9,488 534 25,862 - 43916 g 4
Eliminated on disposals RERH — — (241) (26) — (267) ]
At 31 December 2018 #2018F12A318 39,488 44,385 2,828 203,149 — 289,850 5 ééfﬂ
CARRYING VALUES REE £2 ;
At 31 December 2018 #0185 127318 192,425 15,980 2,418 92,769 31,427 335,019 & E [T
At 31 December 2017 201751274318 200,457 17,685 2,547 86,531 28,701 335,921 %
The Group’s buildings are erected on land held under REBEFENPERAMANEEE %%
medium-term land use rights in the Mainland China and Hong A AT HEI R R g
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

13.

14.

15.

220

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, as follows:

2% - 5%
20% - 33'3%
10% - 20%
10%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

LAND USE RIGHTS

The balance represents the prepayments of rentals for
medium-term land use rights situated in the Mainland China
for a period of 50 years.

13.

14.

M - BERRKRE®@

BREZTIRI  ElME  BHERE
BHREREBRIEER - RAFA
ERFRART I F R U HERER
e :

BF 2% — 5%
R~ EENERE 20% - 33'5%

RE 10% —20%
8= i 8% 10%
+ 3tb {55 FA #E

fE R TR AL 70 P B A b SR BR 50 4F #
T ERENTENES

GOODWILL 15. &
RMB’000
ARBFIT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE AR BREE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 2018 M2017F1A31H - 20179 12A31H
&2018F12A31H 1,375

Management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment in the CGU (i.e. embedded software and secure
payment products) containing the goodwill during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B B R AR MY R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & & S5k
Trademarks
RMB'000 258
AR¥EFTT
COST R gﬁ
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 20171418 » 2017124318 28
31 December 2018 &2018%12A31H 18,318 =
5
€ E
AMORTISATION 18 6 35h
At 1 January 2017 72017461818 7,062 o
Charge for the year FEHEH 2,290 5
%«
g-i(n
At 31 December 2017 M2017%F12H31H 9,352 %:&:f
Charge for the year FE#H 2,290 5ER
g
=
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H 11,642 5
- gl
CARRYING VALUES FREE s S
At 31 December 2018 2018 12H31H 6,676 §§ﬁ
a
At 31 December 2017 2017%F12A31H 8,966 5 gg
&0y
On 15 November 2013, a trademark agreement was entered H2013E11 8150 @ & FPiEFELER
into between GIHL and the Company, in respect of the NEIREE BB <
trademarks registered in Hong Kong, Macao and the PRC, and BRI T —HEERE - BigpE %t%
pursuant to which GIHL agreed to transfer the trademarks HEREERAENET((ER])IFE Egﬂg
to the Company at a consideration of United States dollar T(HAEARKISIEET) WL S g
("USD"”) 3 million (equivalent to RMB18.3 million). = L EIE AN T o S
The trademarks are with finite useful lives and are amortised HMEEEFERER 0 BESHOE £ 3
on a straight-line basis over the periods of 5 to 9 years (2017: (2017 : SRIQE ) LA B L3R4 o %8;‘3
5 to 9 years). G
S g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M %R MR (|

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

17.

222

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. A
2017
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT
Unlisted investments in associates, at cost & RIE LT 2B L NF]
dD RN 32,120 32,120
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 193 193
Share of post-acquisition results and reserves & & Wk M FEE (5,122) (4,838)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate  FEEE QA 2 w2 R{EEE (27,191) —
— 27,475
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting R E B R A & B B 2 A R 2 5F 48
period are as follows: ERWT :
Proportion of issued
Country of ordinary share and
incorporation capital indirectly
Name of entity and operation held by the Group  Principal activity
mAEE
FEEREN
BREE BRI MBS B ERTEBR2EE FEXH
Kaixin Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 45% 45% Investment holding
JEBERARADA ERERRES bl NS
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. Philippines 45% 45% Data processing
FRE BigmRe
Sichuan Zhongruan Technology Ltd. ~ Mainland China 19.68% 19.68% Smart city platform
("SCZR") (Note) (Note)
MINHREREERLRA(T IR HREAM (Hfit) (ffit) B2WHTA
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over SCZR because it Bt - REBREL TR EIEMEAXZE - 7753
has the power to appoint two out of the seven directors of that company REFELI)| & NA]ERE  REEEEE
under the article of association of that company. R+ EZEEPHFE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17.

18.

e B S RO MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. R E DT 2 R @) ﬁ
Aggregate information of associates that ERIEE KEE QB ESR .
are not individually material =5-1 s 2@
2017 Er=
RMB’000 ﬂ
ARSBFE  CE
o5
>
The Group’s share of losses of associates ~ AEEELIE AR 2 BE (284) (5,554) g
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s  ZN&E[E B & N B4R 2 g g%
interests in these associates BREEAR — 27,475 gﬂ‘i
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the interest HZE2018F 128310 - fE5—1HE— % =
in SCZR has been tested for impairment in accordance with BE AN PEESHEREDE 283
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset. The ER L ER B30 [ FEME B it
Group takes into consideration the estimation of recoverable TRERS - AEEEE THLS AT 5ER
amount of the associate and determined that an amount (Gt a] Y B & ZE 0 AR 32 00 ) || o B é .
of RMB27,191,000 is recognised in profit or loss as an FEME  RTEARKE27,191,0007T —
impairment loss on interest in an associate based on the value EBREZNT R EEEST % e
in use of SCZR. AdB2Es o é i%
¢ O
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. BAABES ABE > gem
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS £F -
2017 2e
RMB'000 o
AR¥EFTT :
S 4
Structured deposits EREMTR 232,649 — éﬂ%ﬂ
5 4
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREBNZAN -
Current assets MENE E 232,649 — ~ %f
8 S
As at 31 December 2018, the structured deposits represent M2018F12A31H @ &MU GFEFH AS sz
the principal-guaranteed financial products amounting to BERNETEHITHNERASHERAR E%i};
RMB230,000,000 issued by the banks in the PRC with an ¥£230,000,0007C ° TEEI (KR H) & &
expected but not guaranteed return varying with the range (LU EEE2.6%E3.35% 2 + B £
from 2.6% to 3.35% per annum, which depending on the AR BIEEBETEES  RITREXR éﬂﬂ
market price of underlying financial instruments, including MESEANENSR T AN TEE ‘_Eg
money market funds, inter-banking lending and debentures. o LB RVBERERIET %E
The structured deposits were designated at FVTPL on initial BIE AN EEAEBZ - GEHER £
recognition. Details of fair value measurement of structured NREBEREEHEHRENHNE38 -

deposits are set out note 38.

SHEHABZRERAT —B-NFFEH 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e EHRRME (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

19.

20.

224

INVENTORIES
2017
RMB'000
ARBEFIT
Raw materials R 135,974 150,625
Work in progress K 4,787 5,316
Finished goods X 71,191 51,668
211,952 207,609
TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. ERE R
2017
RMB'000
ARBEFIT
Trade receivables R E
-goods and services — B AR 413,840 401,079
Retentions held by customers EPEAENRER = 16,650
413,840 417,729
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade BZE2018%12A31H k201841 A
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to 1B BEFAHNZERERSEY
RMB413,840,000 and RMB400,338,000 respectively. Al A& A R 413,840,000 7T & A R
400,338,0007T °
As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade receivables HZE2017F12H318 - k&S
are retention amounts of RMB16,650,000, of which are due HEFEANREREEAARE
within one year. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the retentions 16,650,0007T * R —F A o R
receivables were reclassified to contract assets. WEBTBREERNFE155E - ZE

WREBFEEFTDRREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g 2 e A )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. FEWE 2 () £53
Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices HEPHNRERETEARE - & —
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers from — R BHEET30HE2150BAH g%g
date of issuance. The following is an aged analysis of trade BESMN - EMZTNHB(ESH K E%‘f_;f
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debt presented HER B ERE) 25AEWE (30 B
based on the date of delivery of goods which approximated M RIRBE ) BREE DTN - ‘ép
the respective dates on which revenue was recognised: gﬂ

2017 =°

RMB'000 B
ARBFE  5oE
S S
5at

Age BRER -
0 - 90 days 0-90H 308,371 297,292 % _ﬂ%
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 41,946 56,046 < -
181 — 365 days 181 -365H 32,416 34,794 E;ﬁﬁéﬂ
Over 1 year A 31,107 29597 o7

=
413,840 417,729 2. =
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. REEWEMZEERTEEEER é;:%«
oh ° £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

N e AC D)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB11,544,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. The past due balances have been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default. The directors
of the Company consider that the recoverability of these debts
are high based on historical experience. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, 95% of the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring
attributable under the internal credit scoring system used by
the Group.

At 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade
receivable balances are trade receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB21,251,000 which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as counterparties have sound financial
background.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

20. EWE R @)

R2018F 12 A31H - AEFEEKSE
HREBPEERABATAARE
11,544,000t EEBERFEBE @
HY o @ EARARE B A0 B I B R R E
BEX - BEBEELLEH  NREESR
BREIZEBH A RS - ASEI
B ERESA EMERD -

2017128318 @ RIEBEAREEHRE
EAFD REE - BARBEARERED
JEW ST - 5% EBREERTD °

R2017F 128310 - AEEEKSE
FHBREFEEEEAEATAARK
21,251,0007C ) FEIR & St ¥ &5 H B 28
BR o RSB M AREEFHRBERE -
TEREFERIFNTBES -

EaMERRENERERERNOT

is as follows:

2017
RMB'000
AREFIT

Age iR
91 - 180 days 91-180H 8,796
181 — 365 days 181-365H 6,042
Over 1 year HBiB—F 6,413
21,251

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the debtors
since the credit was granted and up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B S RO MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. B E K m)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debt are as follows: RIEBEEHH T -
2017
RMB’'000
ARBTT
At 31 December — HKAS 39 M12A318 —&EGHER|
395 7,254 17,431
Amounts remeasured through opening BRANE BT SRS 2R FH 95
retained profits upon application of & REYIRS BN BE
HKFRS 9 HEt=E 741 -
At 1 January ®1A1R 7,995 17,431
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BOoDRRREEE (208) (9,384)
Bad debts written off BBz (192) (793)
At 31 December ®12A31H 7,595 7,254
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the EREFNEZE2018F12A318 12
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 37. FREARER G AETR M 374 -
21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21. ERAEE
1.1.2018"
RMB'000
AREFTT
Embedded software and BARTMENLZ 2T ER
secure payment products 7,163 7,150
Equipment B 6,401 9,500
13,564 16,650
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the * 25| 5 BB B IR AN BB R R 155
application of HKFRS 15. BTG5 258 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GmEMERERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
receive remaining payments from customers and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the satisfaction of
quality over the products delivered at the reporting date. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The condition is fulfilled upon
the completion of retention period which is normally between
6 months to 1 year.

21.

EEEEm@m

EREETIREERSHELERE
BRI - HRARUEBO XK
BEE RN - BRENE R EGRT
B AREERELSRIRER - BF
BREIB6MEAEIF -

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. HibEUW N FEAST =R
PREPAYMENTS
2017
RMB’'000
ARBTTT
Rental and utility deposits He KkEHRE 1,968 1,747
Tender deposits I RE S 6,379 5,561
Deposits paid to suppliers SRGEHRERNES 2,966 12,014
Prepayments to the Trustee (ERAEUREN
(as defined in note 31(c)) (28 MiE31(c) 4,303 2,792
Interest income receivable JE WA B A 14,081 15,131
Customs deposits BERE 3,678 -
Other prepayments and deposits HinBNRRESR 7,290 7,952
40,665 45,197
23. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 23. FEIEE DN R
The balance is unsecured and interest-free. At 31 December EHRAEER - 28 - R2017F12H
2017, an amount of RMB819,000 is expected to be repayable 318 » AR¥819,000 LT8R 1%
after one year, and the amount is therefore shown as non- EE A AIERBEE - R20175F
current. At 31 December 2017, the remaining amount of 12A318 + AR®9,422,000LHFEZE
RMB9,422,000, the amount is repayable on demand. SKIEE °
228  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23.

24.

e B S RO MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

23. EWWEE DB R @)

Movement in amount due from an associate are as follows: FEURER & N R IEEE I ¢
2017
RMB’'000
ARBFIT
At 1 January »A1H 10,241 9,278
Increase in amount due from an associate  FEUCHEE A BIZRIEIE O 1,219 963

Impairment loss on amount due from an FEUEE L N R RIEREESE

associate (11,460) -
At 31 December ®12A831H - 10,241
At 31 December 2018, the Group impairs the amount 2018F12A31H » BEERA—XK

due from an associate of RMB11,460,000 when there is
information indicating that the associate is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The pledged bank deposits are pledged for
bills payables and carry the fixed interest rate ranging from
0.3% t0 4.13% (2017: 0.36% to 4.13%) per annum. As at 31
December 2018, RMB 150,000,000 (2017: nil) represents bank
deposits pledged to banks for the Group to issue bills in the
coming years and, accordingly, were classified as non-current
asset.

BENFHNEREV SRR RRE
E1E - At AL B EWE SR A
FIEREARE11,460,0007T ©

24. SHEARITER - BRITE
MM ROTERREAS

BIEALRREBELAEEMEEN
Bek=ARE=1EA LRI EH
METER  BEBETERAER
JERZE > #£03%E4.13% (2017
F5036%ZE4.13% ) B E T FF =
5B o R2018F 1283180 - AR
150,000,0007C (20174 : ) B8R 1T

ﬁ REEARBRIT - UBREERE
BIOTRE - MR ZEFFEOE
HIFRENEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e EHRRME (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

24,

25.

230

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH (Continued)

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the floating
rate of 0% t0 0.3% (2017: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group and the Company are
denominated in RMB and carry interest at the fixed rate of
2.88% to 3.85% (2017: 2% to 4%) per annum. Included in
the balance as at 31 December 2018, RMB100,000,000 of
fixed bank deposits are carried with original maturity over one
year (2017: RMB100,000,000).

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 37.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24, SEHRITENR - 8]

=+ P Al =+ ??E
HEDH  RITEFRERES

(&)

NEBMEBANRTHERIZESHER X
0% % 0.3% (2017 A0% E1% ) 5+
B o

REBMPBPAENRITTCHFTRAARE
B 0 1%2.88% £ 3.85% (20176 B
2% E4% ) MEEFFEREFTE - HE
2018 12A31H0 « R HB B —F AR
T BT A AR 100,000,000
J0(20174 A AR #100,000,0007T) °

REZ2018F12A31HIEZFERE
WHIEITFR - BITEHFRFET
TR R E R A ET R I FE3T o

25. ENERRESRE

2017
RMB'000
ARBEFIT
Trade payables FERER
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto N.V. — Gemalto N.V.( Gemalto])
("Gemalto"”) (Note) SOl EPNGINE ) 9,533 85,258
— Related company of Gemalto — Gemalto® @5 A 7
— DataCard Corporation — DataCard Corporation 10,621 10,066
— Third parties —F= 249,476 319,403
269,630 414,727
Bills payables — secured EERENER
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto — Gemalto®Ifft B A &) 23,021 78,383
— Third parties —$= 145,070 57,593
168,091 135,976
437,721 550,703

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g 2 e A )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 25. ENERRENEE @)

Corporate
Information
EER

Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands Wiat - Gemalto iR 1 7af B % X 57+ B IR 17 TE#E
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam H—ZBES X G2 FTIET A B AR = £
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus International S.A., a ERZZH FTR5 > Gemplus International < Eg
substantial shareholder of the Company throughout both years, which is S.A.#1GemaltofF#ll - B — KK EREFM £ 2R
a limited liability company incorporated in Luxembourg. HERE LG - HEREEEZANG AL —
T BRI - 5{;;
55
The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 to 180 days REE—REHENEH‘COBE180H %g
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of the MEEH - TIRERERARETEE g
Group's trade and bills payables based on invoice date and bill ENERRENRERERBHAERE
issuance date respectively at the end of the reporting period: EF A BB BRE DT -

EEH/RE

Chairman’s
Statement

2017
RMB'000  ©
ARBTT 258
S
5§k
€ o
]
Age BR R g m
0 - 90 days 0-90H 353,550 391,592 =
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 65,026 129,681 % Lo
181 - 365 days 181 - 365H 11,911 27,579 % %g
Over 1 year fRiE— 7,234 1,851 o 3h
g3
= el
437,721 550,703 P
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. 5 258
1.1.2018* .
RMB'000 %gfﬁ
s — O g
ARBETTT sof
g
3
Embedded software and BARNRENZ 2T ER g
secure payment products 27,176 35,475 K} gﬁfn
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the * ZHNEERRMNE BN BREERE155% 'égﬁ;ﬁ
application of HKFRS 15. PriEsiRis &5 - Yo
Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, receipt in advance from REEM B R E LR FE 155 &KXKMM §
customers included in trade and other payables amounting to H2018F1H1H » ENEREEME ot
RMB35,475,000 was reclassified to contract liabilities as the ft# & ARM35,475,000 0% P72 §§
date of initial application, 1 January 2018. WK - ZeBRENsEEARAE - E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M %R MR (|

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES(continued) 26. EEIBEEm

The Group receives 10% to 100% of the contract value BHEEFRI MR AEBEKERE
as deposit from customers when they sign the agreement FAHNLSEMNI0%E100%EARFIR
with customers. Contract liabilities represent the receipts in B cRABEREPEBRFN  BE
advance from customers which is recognised as revenue at a MItHENE R EE TP
point in time when the control of the goods are transferred RN - REZ22018F 128318 1t
to the customer. During the year ended 31 December 2018, 2 FE - AR®35,475,000CH £—
revenue recognised in the current year relating to contract FERABHEZSBA -

27.

28.

232

liabilities at the beginning of the year is RMB35,475,000.

OTHER PAYABLES

27. HESFE

2017
RMB’'000
AREFTT
Customers’ deposits EPRES — 35,475
Payroll and welfare payables FERT T E KR 52,004 45,925
Value-added tax payables FEHEET 55,402 61,903
Warranty provision IREBE GBS 4,775 4,775
Delivery and postage payables ENEBERBE 2,919 4,411
Other tax payables HAth FE S 5K 3,642 2,137
Payables for marketing events FET & S R B R IR 5,239 -
Other payables H Ath fE T 5RI8 5,400 3,355
129,381 157,981
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 28. BT EL
2017
RMB’000
ARBTTT
CARRYING VALUE BRHEE
At 1 January W1A1H 17,700 14,700
Government grants received during the year A BT T 475 B — 3,000
Released to profit or loss during the year FRFFAREZE (14,700) —
At 31 December M®12A31H 3,000 17,700
Goldpac Limited received government grants from the relevant S HE AR QA AR HY AR B A
Mainland China local authorities as an incentive in relation to FIrRE = BB e R MR Ri%
technical know-how on the development of smart cards and il 3% 2 ) 520D o It KRB 4 B AE B B
solutions services. Such government grants were recognised FERK - AR ERET TR W ESFF
in the profit or loss as other income when the research was A 3 T B P L 1% 18 1F s E M U A
completed and the related verification procedures have FFAIEER ©

been completed and approved by the Mainland China local

authorities.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29. LRI i3
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement HRAEMBRARKPHBOEEHRIEE -
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities EMEFREHEMAEEEE - LT AR g‘é@
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred SHIRIEERIBHZES T - §§§
taxation balances at the end of the reporting period: B

2017 i
RMB'000 e
AREFRT £
£Eu
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE 9,104 8,730 £ éﬁ
Deferred tax liabilities BB EE & (26,395) (19,871) o4
(17,291) (11,141)  °.%
S<ik
The following is the deferred taxation recognised and LT ADHIANBEILEREREERY 5ER
movements thereon during the year: SE) é .
Temporary ; e
differences Mainland 2 %é@“
arising from China § o
allowance for withholding g >4
doubtful tax on .
debtand  undistributed g EE
inventories earnings Total 258
MRER Ko EFIEH .
FERBEEEN HE R §
ERUEER SEEIE) At i.o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 f;gnﬂg
AREFT ARETT ARETTT A
At 1 January 2017 R20171A1H — 10,111 10,111 28
(Credited) charged to profit or loss XK IB2EH (L N) kK gé@
during the year (note 10) (Kiz#10) (8,730) 9,760 1,030 % %a;
w . e
At 31 December 2017 2017812 A31H (8,730) 19,871 11,141 m
(Credited) charged to profit or loss £ R B EEH (12 0) 41k 2
during the year (note 10) (Hfz£10) (374) 6,524 6,150 Eﬂé
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H (9,104) 26,395 17,291 E

SHEHABZRERAT —B-N\FFH 233
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

29.

30.

234

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB1,868,000 available for offset against future profits
(2017: nil). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB60,692,000 (2017: RMB58,204,000) in
relation to allowance for doubtful debt and inventories.
Deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is probable that the
temporary differences can be utilized in foreseeable future.

9. IEAEBLIE (@)

R2018F12 8310 » AEER AR K
MAKRABFZ RKERORBEEEBA
R#1,868,0007C(2017 & £) - MAK
2 F B9 AN A FERIME o A B R 3 B
ZHEEEERECEHBEE - %5
B 0 30 4% [ E HARR o

MN2018F 12 A31H » REBRER
GERFHOHTNREREZEEASA
K #60,692,000 7t (2017 : AR
58,204,0007T) ° A E R = ZERE 74
AR ARRWER - WZ TR
TR EEZBECERASELERIBEE

SHARE CAPITAL 30. R
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZER#AR X -]
Note ‘000 HKD'000
Hfat + BT T
Issued and fully paid: EETHAR -
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 818 833,464 1,498,995
Issue of shares upon exercise of EATE I AR P 31T
share options 7 A 1 (a) 97 503
At 31 December 2017 20175124318 K&
and 2018 2018 12H31H 833,561 1,499,498
RMB’'000
ARBFIT
Shown in the financial statements as B T 5815 R%E
— at 31 December 2017 — 1201712 A31H
and 2018 &2018F 12 A31H 1,192,362

Note:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2017, 97,000 share options were
exercised and converted into 97,000 ordinary shares at the conversion
price of HKD2.71.

All the shares which were issued during the year ended 31
December 2017 rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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(a) REZ2017F12H31HI1EZ FE -
97,000/ fE IR #E1Z 2 BB B 2. 71 T 7T (€ 300
#2597,000/8 ZEH

FIBEEEZE2017F12A31R It EE
BONBRNSHTEERERNFEAR
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme"”) for the primary purpose of recognise
the contribution of certain employees and directors
made or may have made to the growth of the Group
and/or the listing of the Group on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, and will expire on 3 December 2019.

At 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
27,738,000 (2017: 28,117,000), representing 3.33%
(2017: 3.37%) of the shares of the Company in issue on
that day.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November
2013, upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B RS AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

31. MR R ERN AR S

(a)

EREEEERERAA

E)ﬂ’&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂi%

Bl

BRAFABEABERETERN
201311 A15HE 2R E U
EEREME(BERABERER
BRESE )  BEEEEAEH
AETEERESENIBETRE
EREALBEE N SHRGER
BERFT TR ERL - WigR2019
F12H3B83)8 -

MR2018F12A831H - EE XA
FZEERBRESSTERER
RITERMDAEE 527,738,000
(2017 : 28,117,000) * 1§ &R
AR 2018F 12 A31 B E #17
B M) B2 #93.33% (2017 -
3.37%) °

BB ENEE2013F11A4

198 BT A B 1.0 ER
T LA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e EHRRME (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 31. UR M RERNZTR S
TRANSACTIONS (continued) (8)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (d) BXAHREBIRIE
B0
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TRBEBEAARZEENEB I
share options held by directors and employees and BEHERENENREZ2017 X
movements in such holding for both years ended 31 2018F 12 A31HZFE 2 #

December 2017 and 2018:

Number of share options
ERERA
Exercise At1  Transfer  Exercise Forfeiture At31  Exercise Forfeiture At31
price  January during during during  December during during  December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2017  theyear  theyear  the year 2017 theyear  theyear 2018
20175 20178 20185
RiHEH RS 8 BRTEE 1B18 FRER  EAGE  FRAN  NANA FAGE  FRAN 128318
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(1) (K#2)
Directors
£
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2014 to HKD2.71 200,000 200,000 — — 400,000 - - 400,000
3 December 2014 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013%11A19A2 B2014512A4R% BT
2014512738 201912438
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2015 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 200,000 — — 1,840,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2015 3 December 2019
013511198 8201351181982 820155128482 EELIIT
2015512438 2019512438
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2016 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 200,000 - — 1,840,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2016 3 December 2019
20135115198 EW13E1A19RE B2016512A4RE R
2016512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2017 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 200,000 — — 1,840,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2017 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19A2 B2017512840E RELIT
2017512838 2019512838
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2018 to HKD2.71 1,640,000 200,000 — — 1,840,000 - — 1,840,000
3 December 2018 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19A2 B2018512A4R% BT
2018%12A3A 201912738
6,760,000 1,000,000 - — 1,760,000 - — 7,760,000

736 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

NEE2018FE 128310 IF2EE

31. MR R ERN AR S

(%)

(a) BRABRERBRE
EEC )

Corporate
Information
EER

Financial
Highlights

BRHE

Number of share options g o
BREZA &
5K
Exercise At1  Transfer  Exercise Forfeiture At31  Exercise Forfeiture At31 ‘gﬁ
price  January during during during  December during during  December g =
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2017 theyear  theyear  the year 2017 theyear  theyear 2018 -
R017% R2017% R2018% -
ETE) b B ] SRAER  1A1R EAEE  EAfE  EARN 1ANA  EAGE  ERRN 1ANA sol
(Note 1)~ (Note2) 5 g 'ﬁ
(W) (K#2) o
S
Employees § ” ﬁ
8 3 z;z
<
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2014 to HKD2.71 3,006,000 (200,000) (9,0000  (148,000) 2,649,000 = (12,000) 2,637,000 e E%
3 December 2014 3 December 2019 g
WI3E11£198 B2013E11 J19AZ E2014E1IRE BN s
2014512838 2019512838 5
g m
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2015 to HKD2.71 4,508,000  (200,000) (4,000 (312,000) 3,992,000 - (88,000) 3,904,000 ﬁ é i
3 December 2015 3 December 2019 5o
013%115198 B01351181982 0155128482 BELIIT § o
015512838 2019512538 g=p
[a]
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to ~ From 4 December 2016 to HKD2.71 5,284,000  (200,000)  (84,000)  (484,000) 4,516,000 - (93,0000 4,423,000 NE—
3 December 2016 3 December 2019 2 S
20135117198 BNBFNAIGEE  ANI6F1A4AE LTI 258G
2016512838 2019512838 < O
(]
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to ~ From 4 December 2017 to HKD2.71 5,284,000 (200,000) —  (484,000) 4,600,000 - (93,000) 4,507,000 é
3 December 2017 3 December 2019 5 g
2013517198 ENBENAIGEE  ANITENAAE LTI g&m
2017512838 2019512838 % & g&g
‘g S
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to  From 4 December 2018 to HKD2.71 5,284,000 (200,000) —  (484,000) 4,600,000 - (93,000) 4,507,000 é
3 December 2018 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013511A19R2 B2018512A4R% AL E
201851283A 201951253A :_E géugﬂ
S 9
£ g
23,366,000 (1,000,0000  (97,000) (1,912,000) 20,357,000 —  (379,000) 19,978,000 _§ ° ﬁ
Total 30,126,000 - (97,000) (1,912,000) 28,117,000 —  (379,000) 27,738,000 2
A ”
C
o
Note 1: The transfer during the year represents share options held by a Wat1 . FNERIEHESFANBERE § %
newly appointed director, who was previously an employee. BRZHEFRBNBRE - Z = §
FIEERFRABEZFKRESE :
C
Note 2: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is Miat2 : RITHE B B F B 15 BB
HKD2.35. 2.357T
SHERSERERAR —B-NEFEHK 23/
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 31. R AR TR S
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (d) BXAHREBIRIE

238

The share options shall vest in 5 tranches subject to
specific period of services of certain of employees,
executives and officers for the Group and/or the listing of
shares on the Stock Exchange. Due to the resignation of
certain of employees, executives and officers during the
year ended 31 December 2018, part of the share options
were forfeited.

The fair values of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at
RMB69,935,000 (equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using
the Binomial Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

HEC 3

BEETET  EBREMBEY
REBERAE®R LTS E
R EARS - BAREAE D AR
B - EHZE2018F 1283181t -
HRETET  EEERBEN
BEER - S BEARAE R -

REZE2013F12A8318 1t 25
E BEENBEREQAEARERE
BozEXEEERERAFEL A
AR #69,935,000 T (ré B
88,954,0007T) * KA T -

Share price HKD4.52 & & A 527T
Exercise price HKD2.71 1TEE BE2.717T
Expected life 6 years TEHAS W 64F
Expected volatility 46.9963% T8 B I8 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822% TE HR AR B s 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426% 4 [ 1) 1.2426%
Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791 BHERE,  BM2.42500E

NREE 52,4791 7T

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB2,497,000 (2017: RMB4,426,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme,
approved by the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15
November 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”), are
substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange;

the maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of offer to grant; and

the exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company at their discretion and will not
be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

As at 31 December 2018, no options were granted or
agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

240

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015
(the “Adoption Date”) with a duration of 15 years
commencing from 11 December 2015. The objective of
the Share Award Scheme are to (i) align the interests of
any employee, adviser, consultant, agent, contractor,
client or supplier of any member of the Group whom the
directors in its sole discretion considers may contribute
or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”);
(ii) recognise and motivate the contribution of the
Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of
the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the
long-term growth and further strategic expansion of the
Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”) to administer and hold
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company by way of
contributions.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During both years, nil ordinary shares of the Company
have been acquired. As at 31 December 2018,
10,374,000 shares have been granted or agreed to be
granted to the Participants (2017: 10,374,000). The
share awarded shall vest in 3 years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date in equal portions. The first
vesting date is 26 November 2017. The estimated
fair value of the awards granted are HKD27,564,000
(equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the market
price of the relevant shares at the grant date. The Group
recognised the total expenses of RMB7,579,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB12,737,000)
in relation to the share awards granted by the Company.
There are 4,843,000 (2017: 7,867,000) shares held by
the Trustee and RMB4,303,000 (2017: RMB2,792,000)
was placed to the Trustee as prepayments at the end of
reporting period.
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EREEEERERAA

% 17 88 Bh 51 &l ()

RBWFEARN - RRFHREEA
LEAY - A = 2018512 A 31
H © 10,374,000 f% ( 2017 &
10,374,000% ) B 17 B 48 % F 3k
RERE TTE2mEE - HER
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32.

242

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows from financing activities.

32.

METBHEECERE
FEI

TREAMIBAAEERAREEZDEL
MBEEZEY BRRESLIRTE
B ARMELTPEEINRERESNE
EGeReRERTHAOBRABE
BOBEAREETHNRSRICRKER
EREBNEE -

Dividend

Payable

EBARE
2017
RMB'000
ARMBFTT
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1H1H = —
Financing cash flow BEEER SN (140,289) (120,601)
Dividend declared BIRARE 137,850 123,475
Foreign exchange gain (loss) INEEIRE I 2 (E548) 2,439 (2,874)
At 31 December M®12A31H — —
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33. OPERATING LEASES 3. REMAE S5k
The Group as lessee rEBEREAEA -
=
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed MRS BAR - N5 B S A 3B g%g
to make the following future minimum lease payments MRS T E S T ¥ SR R
for office premises and machinery under non-cancellable ARFEBEENZEE - BIHWT - g
operating leases which fall due as follows: %ﬂ
.%&_
S
2017 =x
RMB’000 —
AR¥EFTT Sty
€ E®W
S o
Sat
Within one year R—FR 4,801 6,093
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZEFRF 4,287 954 2 .
e 2
9,088 7,047 52
€ o
& & B
g o
Leases are negotiated for a term of 1 to 5 years and rentals AE1R5F - e FHMFRETH =
are fixed for an average of 2 years (2017: 1 to 5 years for an (20174 : FAE913)5F - HEFHM g m
o BB
average of 2 years). FREFEH) ° 3 “g@
5 S
N £ S
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. AR D
£
2017 5 gg
RMB'000 S iff
ARBFE ¢
g HI
Capital expenditure contracted for but BRWEDE - BEX § e%
not provided in the consolidated financial B #&#IE 5T 4918 51 A g2l
statements in respect of acquisition of RERE SRR AR g h
property, plant and equipment e 18,035 14,804 -
5
8 S
 Iu
4
B
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35.

36.

244

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
salaries, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF are held separately from those of
the group companies in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligations of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme are to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits
as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank loans.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

37. €T A

eI AEER

2017
RMB’'000
AREEF T
Financial assets TREE
FVTPL AR BE ABR RS
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL BARBERAEBRFE 232,649 —
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKATEZERMEE 1,779,478 —
Loans and receivables (including cash and BN EKFZIE(BIERS
cash equivalents) RIRE&FEY) = 2,072,558
Financial liabilities cRAasE
Amortised cost - E IR 446,040 558,469

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due
from an associate, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade,
bills and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

MBEREEE REER

AEENTESR T A BERIH S
DA FRIA - EUWE R HE MR UK
HBHEWRITER  RITERF
K ROTFEAERE BNER &
NEEREMBEMNHTIE ZFERT
BEMFBENABEMIERE  ZFeR
TAMARRREETSER (¥R
BREAERER) - EERR KRR
@ o MBI T RBRABREN T -
AEEEEEEEREEZSTAR -
VARE(RIE & M IR TR S B ~ BT o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. €@ T B

Financial risk management objectives and BEEREEEZEEBEK

policies (Continued) (8)

Market risk T 35 3 b

(i) Currency risk (i) EHEE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign AARETHERRGINEHE
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group NERAE - 2 ARRA AEERSETHI SN
to risk of USD. The percentage of the Group's sales SERME - REBAETT(BIA M
and purchases that are denominated in USD, currency AEBERRAYEEEUINGE
other than the functional currency of the relevant group EITENHEEREENBT DL
companies are as follows: mr
Sales HE 1.0% 5.2%
Purchases g 21.7% 15.2%
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. €@ T B @) §
Financial risk management objectives and BEEREEEEEREK -
policies (Continued) () 52K

G =%
Market risk (Continued) T2 E B ) £2®
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) E#EpEE) %@
'%t&-
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency AT AN E B E AR EEARAIN g%
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BIAENEBEENEBAER -
the end of the reporting period are as follows: M1 : é é%
Assets e
BE c
2017 £
RMB'000 0%
ARBFRL  oE
s "
=
HKD B 80,281 38,763 5w
usD e 341,853 831,393 35R
RMB AR 99,706 909 oo
Euros ("EUR") BT (T&T ) 284 842 in
Singapore dollars (“SGD") AN ([ 57 n3g s ) 599 650 o
British Pound Sterling (“GBP") AT EE g ([ 58 ) 36 672 5ok
Liabilities o
a&
2017 g &
RMB'000  CCn
ARMET T g «
HKD ot 23,941 2,183 N
usD X 44,732 47,027 4=
SGD 3N s = 22 §o#
zZom
Esg
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

248

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below includes the Group’s
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items where the denomination of the balances is in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies at the end of the reporting
period and has been determined based on the exposure
to exchange rates against the functional currency of
relevant group companies. For a 5% weakening of these
currencies against the functional currency of relevant
group companies and all other variables being held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year is as follows:

37. €@ T B )

B E T B R EBUR
(#)

™5 &k (&)
(i) E¥EpE)

TREINBRESTBIEARE
B AR R I ARORE & e N R
BEE¥EAREEQRHEE:
EREEEQRENELEEED
REBEE  BERBEAARH
EXHEAREERFNINGEEE
METE - BELEEHEREE
RAEINEEEERZESS - Eftb

FENERD

Decrease in profit for the year

— HKD — B

— UsD —XET

— RMB — ARE
— EUR — BT
_SGD — N
— GBP — W

FIERERFIE  AEEFE
FEERIT

2017

RMB'000

ARBETT

(2,113) (1,372)

(11,142) (29,414)

(4,162) (34)

(11) (32)

(22) (24)

(1 (25)

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year where the respective currencies
strengthens against the functional currency of relevant
group companies by 5%.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
at the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate pledged bank deposits and fixed
bank deposits (see note 24 for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets, mainly interest bearing bank balances.
The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
denominated bank deposits and balances. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

37. €@ I Eum)

B R EE B REBUR
()

™ i5 R B (E)
(i) FI=E & fz

AEBEN2ABENEREREE
% B E F R 8 B AR ERIT 17 5K
KARTTRE B A (R LM aE24) ©

AEENRERNEXRBREIRS
MEZBHHFESHEENT
2 IZRUABRTERNE
B AEENRERMNEIES
FRABARBITHNERREZ
FHHEEARB BRITER
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

250

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing bank balances at the end of the reporting period
and assumed that the amount of assets outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. 50 basis points were used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
management does not anticipate a decrease in interest
rate in the next financial year having regard to the
trends in market interest rates and global economic
environment. Accordingly, sensitivity analysis on a
decrease in interest rates is not presented.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. £ T B i3
Financial risk management objectives and BEREEE B ZERENE -
policies (Continued) () sim

T =8
Market risk (Continued) 5 @A @) £2®
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIZEEEE (4) %E
T
If interest rates on bank balances had been 50 basis T ERTTIF AR = F50 @ &2 - ég
points higher and all other variables were held constant, WEHBEMESNE  HEE -
the potential effect on profit for the year is as follows: FEBERZEMT - £ty
2017 S
RMB’000 s
AR®BTT § L5
o <z
Increase in profit for the year FEAHER 1,204 2,158 g?é%
. §
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is ERERL  HRERGFER 5
unrepresentative of the inherent interest risk as at the S ERBEAERLERNY AR 2 ﬁé?ﬂ
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during ZAHGRESFTRAGRAS § :-fwf[
the year. o é ‘gﬁ
[a]
Credit risk and impairment assessment =2 E B AR E SR 5 gl
s G
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause HZ 5T RENBEHAESED R Zo
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an DS REERBTHEE  HAEH g
obligation by the counterparties at the end of the reporting SR RERNEERR LR RA guﬁ
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets T RENNEBRSSMBRRIER % %2{;
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the FRREBEEE  AEBETESR LS T g“‘jﬁ
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group. B B G AT (A R 4 2 Sk B PR A §
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit AEBNEREMSR - .
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its 3 é;ﬂnﬂ
financial assets. géﬁ
=
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37.

252

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
pO|ICI€S (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit approvals. Other monitoring procedures are in place
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on trade balances and contract assets based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 56% (2017:
76%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2018
which was due from customers engaged in the banking
industry.

The Group also have concentration of credit risk on fixed
bank deposits which are deposited with banks with high
credit rating. Other than the above, the Group does not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk. The credit
risks on pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with good reputation
and high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and has
assessed the expected credit loss rate under 12m ECL method
based on the Group's assessment in the risk of default of the
respective counterparties.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has assessed that the
expected loss rates for other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances were
immaterial. Thus no loss allowance for other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances

was recognised.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. € T B )

Financial risk management objectives and BREREEBZENEK
policies (continued) (&)

15 B 2 B 0l B 5 £ ()

Corporate
Information
EER

Financial
Highlights

BRHE

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises NEE AR AR b R BT B 1 LA
the following categories: THERI

Trade receivables

2018 £ AER

2018 Major Events

Category Description and contract assets Other financial assets £ é%
5 e ERERRAREE HiteMEE fom
S

Performing The counterparty has a low risk Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL é -
of default and does not have credit-impaired §§§
any past-due amounts ggf
1T HHEVRRBEAEAHEE KEEHEEEBR 1216 A SER
—RMEARE EHEEER § ‘[““
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL % -
due dates but usually settle credit-impaired Som
after due date E gﬁ
BREE BEAZRAMERERERY KREEHEEER 121E A é%ﬁ

HHE —RNMEARE EHEEEE °©
5 il
Doubtful There has been a significant Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL - not 5 ﬁﬁ
increase in credit risk since credit-impaired credit-impaired §5m

initial recognition through -

information developed é
internally or external resources g g:.:u%
=3 NEELMIINFERNESR KIEHEEERE BRETEREERBR Egg*nﬁ
TMERER B MR HERE LR —RMERARE —RMERRE s 4

FRELE N S
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL 3 é;u”ﬂ
asset is credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired 255
&8 BiBERPAEECERARE REEREERBE BREEREEBR g™
— B ARE ~BRARE B

2

I8
SHEEHERERAIA —T-NFFEH 253
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37.

254

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. M T B
Financial risk management objectives and BREREE B ZEHEBEEK
policies (Continued) (8)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = E =B B M B 7214 (@)
(Continued)

Trade receivables
Category Description and contract assets Other financial assets
bl i BRERREREE Hith & E
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

*Z 8 BERBRPEBALRBEN
R #E B A& B R R 2 Yy ol

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected lives of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information, including
but not limited to expected growth rate of the industry, that
available without undue cost or effort.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed based on provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering historical default rates and forward-looking
information.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. €M I A $Ex
Financial risk management objectives and R EE B ZEHEBEK —
policies (Continued) () sEn

Y
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & B b MR E R () =I®
(Continued) 2,
Gross éﬁ
Internal 12-month or carrying © S
2018 Notes credit rating Lifetime ECL amount R
12{8 B B EEEE el
Htat A 815 A REAR RESGHEHEEES IREEARE g %g
RMB’000 §§w
ARMETF T
Trade receivables 20 Performing Lifetime ECL by 421,435 % 5
provision matrix é?ﬁ
— not credit-impaired éi@
JEWE TR BT IR EBEESY Qigv%;'ﬁﬂ
R TEEEEEE s
— kiSO -
S ea
Contract assets 21 Performing Lifetime ECL by 13,564  Cio
provision matrix £ ?uzz[
— not credit-impaired 28
AREE 917 BB RS =
REFEHIEEHE Sk
— R EMRE 2eh
o O iy
Other receivables 22 Performing 12m ECL 28,236 g
E At EIUR BiT 1218 A e RE B EE g &
Gom
Amount due from an 23 Loss Lifetime ECL 11,460 2 ggné
associate - credit-impaired % -
JE W Bt &8 R B FIR EE R TEEEEEE o
~EREAAE g
Pledged bank deposits, 24 Performing Lifetime ECL 1,337,309 éé’;*j_”}
fixed bank deposits — not credit-impaired %E;
and bank balances Yo
EHEHIRITIER - R1T BiT mETEEEEERE —
TE ERTF SRANERTT I 30 —KRERRE fé
84
The following table provides information about the exposure TREBEREZRAREEN2018F i:}g
to credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets which 128310 ERGFEEEZEBER(KE g
are assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 December ARE) R TREREEERET Y £
2018 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). ZRRER -

SHEHRBZERERAT —B-NFFEH 55
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. M T B
Financial risk management objectives and BEREE B ZEHEBEK
policies (continued) ()
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 & B b R (B 511 (&
(Continued)
Gross carrying amount IREEARH
Average Trade Average Contract
Internal credit rating loss rate  receivables loss rate assets
RS AR S =] S BRER  FHERE BEEE
HKD'000 HKD'000
BT BETFTT
Internal credit rating A= AR
Performing AT 0.23% 80,285 0.22% 13,564
Watch list BRELE 131% 273,249 — —
Doubtful (£33 5.64% 67,901 — —
421,435 13,564
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade ZRINBEANMERAEENTEEE
receivables within performing, watch list and doubtful at the BRRELERBER  ARAEER
end of the reporting period which have been past due over 7%5’:\ Eiﬁﬁfﬁiﬁiﬁﬂiﬂ%ﬁ B R %
90 days are not considered as in default by considering the REBMERENTHERE
expected subsequent and historical repayment from trade K I*L%’]

debtors and contract assets.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount RARESZRABEWE & A RIFIARS
due from an associate was within the category of write- WiZEER - BEBRBTRABALR
off. There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe BEVBEEEEBEARNEE ﬂixﬁ%uﬁl
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of B o B bk % 8 U B & & B SRR ET IR R
recovery. Impairment loss on amount due from an associate BEEEARK 1,460,00075 °

amounted to RMB 11,460,000 is provided.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed REZ2018F12A31HILLZFE » &
impairment assessment on financial assets other than trade SEHBRERERTNEREEINS
receivables and contract assets and concluded that the BEEETREMNGELRAETED
probability of default of the counterparty are insignificant and WATREMTEKXR A ARFTIREER
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided. BEE -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. €@ T A @)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk management

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by
continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and
the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

Weighted

average

Financial liabilities interest rate
miE

LHBE THFI=

%

B R EE B REBUR
(#0)

BN EL R E

AEEHNEEERARENGE - F
B RHRESMRDE S TR BLKA
ETEENRDERBRERER -
AEBRBHEFRITHE  HEZH
BHRRERRER  UREBEEN
FMBERREERDESRR

TERANAKETESRABENS
MR - ZRDERARB AL
fH&xFAMMNEREBEENRYERS
MAmE - HiETESRAERHA
HENMNERD -

Total
On undiscounted Carrying
demand cash flows amount
AER
BEX RenBsHE BEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTRT  ARETT

At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H

Financial liabilities SREE

Trade and bills payables ENEFRENEE — 437,721 437,721 437,721

Other payables Hit R — 8,319 8,319 8,319
446,040 446,040 446,040

At 31 December 2017 H2017F12A8318

Financial liabilities tREE

Trade and bills payables ENEFRENEE — 550,703 550,703 550,703

Other payables Hip T — 7,766 7,766 7,766
558,469 558,469 558,469
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(98]
o
kp
|
=
|_|
\

J

=
!
E’E
i
i
b= 2
_|_
bl

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF .
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ()

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (Continued) AEE @)
Significant Relationship
Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
Financial assets  Fair value hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SREE DMEE MEEER GEFERIZRAYE EATTUEN TUENEABER
HAYE RABEZBE
Structured deposits ~ As at 31 December 2018:  Level 3 Discounted cash flow Estimated return The higher the estimated
wEEEER RMB232,649,000 £=4 - future cash flows are  (range from return, the higher the fair
HZ2018F128318 estimated based on 2.6% 10 3.35%) value and vice versa
AR 232,649,000 estimated return, and it £4 BisEds ArBEE

discounted at a rate (BEH B RZFA .

that reflects the 2.6%%3.35%)

credit risk of various

counterparties.

REMAR

- ARRERRBEN X

BT RRBEAE

]

SRR -
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

260

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurement

The following table presents the reconciliation of Level 3
Measurement of the financial assets:

BARBERKEME
NEAEELHEEND
AREEm@m

E=NFTEHR

TREVNNEGRMEENE=FTEH
BE :

Structured

deposits

HREER

RMB’'000

ARBTT

At 1 January 2017 201761 H18 —
Net gain on financial assets TREEFNE 3,815
Purchase of financial assets BESREE 765,600
Redemption of financial assets BolorEE (769,415)
At 31 December 2017 72017 12H31H —
Net gain on financial assets TEEEFNE 11,683
Purchase of financial assets BEOREE 720,000
Redemption of financial assets BROlERERE (499,034)
At 31 December 2018 72018F12H31H 232,649

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
both periods.

The total gains or losses for the year included a
realised gain of RMB9,034,000 and a unrealised gain
RMB2,649,000 relating to financial assets that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period (for the year ended 31 December 2017: an
unrealised gain of RMB3,815,000). Such fair value gains
or losses are included in “other gains or losses”.
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

The Board of Directors of the Company has set up a
valuation committee, which is headed up by the chief
financial officer of the Company, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The valuation committee works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The chief financial officer reports the valuation
committee’s findings to the Board of Directors of
the Company when needed to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are
disclosed above.

Fair value of financial instruments at
amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values at the
end of each reporting period.

VEAEEEREEN D
REEm@m

ARFBEEGCKIAEERT
ERENKREEEEE E A
REBENRAABEFEMRES
A AR -

AR —BERRENAEE
B - NS B AR A T 5 ]
BRAISE - WMEARRE L
ABIE - AEBEEFRELNE
= ERMETTEE - REEE
BE/AEE B E RSN (ERD
BYEIE  EREENGBETA
Mg ABUBR Y (AEERL - 57
BHRERBERAARTEES
BEREBEEENENHARE
R-UEEBEEENRBELAAEE

REBZHEEMBBEAABERM
R EETT R RE BB AR
EZHREEECN LMK -

(b) ZBEBATENSHE

TENAREE

AEEEEERS  REERS
HIRIZ AN B ASE B
BHRENEHREELRSRAED
REEEEAAR(EERS -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

262

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related parties:

Relationship and
name of related parties:

CEYL YRy

Nature of transactions

REMHE

39.

SRS

BREETAMEBENEEB IS R
REERIN  MANFEER - A B R
TEUNTERRS :

Companies controlled by Gemalto
F Gemalto R FZ #l &) A A

Gemalto Pte. Ltd.

Shanghai Gemalto IC Card
Technology Co., Ltd.

FESHRERERRMERAR]

Gemalto Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SHARH(E8)BRAF

Purchase of materials

FMEER B

Purchase of materials

R RHR

Purchase of materials

R FH R B

2017

RMB'000

AR¥ETT

208 62
13,455 —
79,972 229,015

The details of compensation of key management personnel,
representing the remuneration of the directors of the
Company during the year are set out in note 9.
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40. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELEER

Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment/
operations
DAL/
fed  BX

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
RELNE e
RAEE/ ZfREe

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B RS AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

40. Fff B4 7

2018512 4318 &2017412 A31
B ARFHENHEBARIFBHR

T

Proportion of
issued ordinary
shares capital held
by the Company
RAREBES
EERLA

w20

Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited (Note i)
SHEBRAERRA M)

Goldpac Limited (Note i)

EARBRDA (M)

Goldpac Smart Card
(Guangzhou) Limited

BT EREREFERAA)

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong
Limited (Note i)

EARERHURERARLA (M)

Hong Kong

R

Mainland China
for a term of 50 years
as a wholly foreign
owned enterprise
commencing
21 June 1995
EA I
1199564218
RERTER
HEEELE

Mainland China
limited liability
company

A
EREAAT

Hong Kong

i

mH

Ordinary shares

— HKD500,000
TR

— 7%500,0007C

Registered capital
— USD43,000,000

Principal activities

TEEK

100% 100%

100% 100%

— %7143,000,0007

Registered capital
— RMB1,000,000

Falig=u

100% 100%

— AE1,000,0007C

Ordinary share
— HKD1
3l

— BB

60% -

EREEEERERAA

(Note iv) (Note v)

(Witiv) (Witv)

(Note iv) (Note v)

(Hietiv) (Biztv)

(Note v)

(Hitv)

(Note v)

(Hitv)
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40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. 1B A B &)

Nominal value
Place/Country of of issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ shares capital held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
RARY/ BRTRBEREH RAREERT
HWEAREH fed @R ROEE EfMES EERLA TEEH
- 2017
Goldpac Fintech Private Limited Singapore Ordinary shares 60% 100%  (Note v)
(Note i) (Hrziii) —SGD100
Y FRRI (Hiztv)
— MR 1007

Goldpac Innovation Limited

British Virgin Islands

Ordinary shares

100% -

Investment holding

(Note i) (Note i) (Hfzti) (Hizti) —UsD100
EEERRES 3l G) BRAF
— X100
Goldpac Investment Limited (Note i) Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Property holding
— HKD1
eAERERRANA (M) A LERD BHERE
— BRI

SecureTech Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands

Ordinary shares

60% 100%

Investment holding

(Note ii) (Hétii) — UsD100
EEEMRES LRRR RAA
— XTL1007
Goldpac Technology Service Mainland China Registered capital 100% — Inactive
Limited (Henggin) (Note ii) limited liability — RMB20,000,000
company
SREMBRBES)ERAAML)  FENY LRRA REE
AREARH — AR%20,000,0007
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40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

Directly held by the Company.

The entities are incorporated/registered during the year ended 31
December 2018.

In May 2018, the Group disposed of 40% interest in SecureTech Holdings
Limited and its subsidiary Goldpac Fintech Private Limited. The disposal
does not result in the Group losing control over SecureTech Holdings
Limited and, accordingly, the transaction is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

Embedded software and secure payment products for smart secure
payment.

Provision of data processing system platforms, other total solutions and
equipment for customers in a wide business range including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation and retails by leveraging
innovative Fintech.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e M %R MR (|

For the year ended 31 December 2018 W E Z=2018F 12 A31A L2 FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. BRI &

2017
RMB'000
ARBEFIT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets M A E 6,676 8,966
Property, plant and equipment ME - B KR 588 350
Investments in subsidiaries RE AR ZIRE 365,327 355,251
372,591 364,567

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG ] 507,727 527,335
Other receivables H b R 14,122 13,794
Fixed bank deposits RITEHER 571,787 741,632
Bank balances RITFER 12,029 8,496
1,105,665 1,291,257
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables HibE = 3,535 2,561
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERH B AR IA 139,889 234,389
143,424 236,950
Net current assets REBEEFE 962,241 1,054,307
Net assets EEFHE 1,334,832 1,418,874

Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital R A 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves G 142,470 226,512
Total equity EREH 1,334,832 1,418,874
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The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March
2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lu Run Ting
EEE
Chairman and Executive Director

EFETERWTEF

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2018

EEEDR2019F3 A 15BEZIT A
BARNBFEMRRREMNER - WA
UWTESSREER

Hou Ping
&F

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B B R AR MY R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 REH Z=2018F12A31H L FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. B ARR B R @)

(Continued)

Corporate
Information
EER

Movement in the Company’s reserves ARz @ ERE R sim
g5k
Shares g

held under o

Shares shares Share 5K

award award options Other  Retained ; g

reserve scheme reserve reserve profits Total g™

i
RGRE HEFEE BRE AOE

ETERE

e 2kt fefe  HttEE MR 3
RVMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT AREBTT ARBTE ARETT ARETR ARETRE

Chairman’s
Statement

.% -
22R
85
At T January 2017 R2017%1A1R — (25112 5258 37,681 321,310 386,465 558
Loss and total comprehensive EERANZEER %E%
expense for the year — - - —  (52,630)  (52,630) s "
Issue of shares upon exercise of R REm 21T .
share options (note 30) B (Hi230) — - (189) - - (189) €. o
Recognition of equity-settled REREEARR é 3=
share-based payments (note 31) BERYFFE g ?&E
(His231) 12,737 — 4,426 — — 17,163 g=8
Forfeiture of share options BREXN — — (1,991) — 1,991 — -
Dividends recognised as distribution B AP E RIS S E%
(note 11) (Hiz11) - - - — (123475 (123475) gEd
Shares vested under the share RERR RENEE S
award scheme of the Company ] (7,825) 7,990 — — (987) (822) )
At 31 December 2017 #2017%12A318 4912 (17,122) 54,832 37,681 146,209 226,512 é é;ﬂ%
Profit and total comprehensive FEFIEAZEARA § i
income for the year — — — — 44,251 44,251 s
Recognition of equity-settled NEREENRGD - ;
share-based payments (note 31) S (HE31) 7,579 - 2,497 - — 10,076 5
Forfeiture of share options BRI — — (602) — 602 _ E5M
Dividends recognised as distribution BABNEHRS g E‘Jﬂﬂ
(note 11) (Bat11) — - - — (137850 (137850)  :i=
Shares vested under the share RIER R RENE g
award scheme of the Company Bh&EB (7,620) 7,154 — — (53) (519)
At 31 December 2018 #2018F12A31H 4,871 (9,968) 56,727 37,681 53,159 142,470
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEBE

Year ended 31 December

HIEMN2B831BZEE
2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETITT AR®ETIT AR®EFTT AREFTT
RESULTS et
Turnover ] 1,521,069 1,684,632 1,393,713 1,400,842 1,411,127
Profit before taxation & F5 AT A B 256,552 296,179 244,566 198,764 207,802
Taxation Fi1m (43,045) (54,341) (39,666) (34,287) (33,154)
Profit for the year FERHE 213,507 241,838 204,900 164,477 174,648
Attributable to: FEAL -
Owners of the Company KATHEA A 213,507 241,838 204,900 164,477 175,187
Non-controlling interests JEIEREE = — — — — (539)
213,507 241,838 204,900 164,477 174,648
At 31 December
M12H31H8
2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREBTT ARETT ARE®TT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EMERE
Total assets WA E 2,317,297 2,606,841 2,599,582 2,706,875 2,628,452
Total liabilities wmaE (706,459)  (792,627)  (726,253) (776,992)  (648,369)
Net assets FEE 1,610,838 1,814,214 1,873,329 1,929,883 1,980,083
Attributable to: e -
Owners of the Company AABHAA 1,610,838 1,814,214 1,873,329 1,929,883 1,977,549
Non-controlling interests JEPERRRE S — — — — 2,534
1,610,838 1,814,214 1,873,329 1,929,883 1,980,083
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